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HIGHLIGHTS 2018-19 2017-18

T Lakh T Lakh
Gross Revenue 6038.80 4827.52
Profit Before Tax 1217.72 784.85
Profit After Tax 872.29 648.29
Total Comprehensive Income 874.42 649.36
Retained Earnings 7040.24 6400.92
Total Assets 9659.82 8894.91
Net Worth 7170.24 6530.92
Borrowings 500.00 500.00
Debt: Equity Ratio 0.07:1 0.07:1
Net Worth Per Equity Share T 551.56 T 502.38

(¥ 10/- Each)

Earnings Per Equity Share T67.10 T 49.87
(¥ 10/- Each)

Profit before Tax Ratio to 20.16% 16.26%
Turnover




Notice to the Members

MNotice 1s hereby given thart the Forty Eighth Annual
General Meeting of the Members of BENARES
HOTELS LIMITED will be held at the Registered
Office of the Company at Nadesar Palace
Compound, Varanasi 221002, on Friday, August
30, 2019 ar 3.00 p.m. to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Financial Sratements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 rogether
with the Beport of the Board of Directors and

Aunditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend on Equiry Shares for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019,

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rohit
Khosla (DIN 07163135), who retires by
rotation and is eligible for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Appointment of Mr. Puneet Raman as an

Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and if thoughr fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Puncer Raman
(DIN - 00341221), who was appointed as an
Additonal Director of the Company by the
Board of Directors with effect from Seprember
17, 2018, and who holds office upto the date of
this Annual General Meeting of the Company
under section 161(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 (Acr) bur who is eligible for appointment
and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing under Secrion
160(1) of the Act from a Member proposing his
candidarure for the office of the Director, be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to
the provisions of Section 149, 152 and other

apphicable provisions, if any, of the Act read
with Schedule IV to the Act and the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rales, 2004, as amended from time to time and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Mr. Puneet Raman who has
submitted a declaration that he meets the
criteria for independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for
appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not
liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a
rerm of five consecutive years with effect from
September 17, 2018 up to Seprember 16,
20237

Re-Appointment of Mrs. Rukmani Devi as
an Independent Direcror.

To consider and if thoughr fit, to pass with or
withour maodification{s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other
applicable prowasions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("Act”), the Companies
{ Appointment and Qualifications of Direcrors)
Rules, 2014, read with Schedule TV to the Ace
and Regulanion 17 and other applicable
regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations™), as amended
from time to time, Mrs. Rukmani Devi (DIN;
00552831), who was appointed as an
Independent Director at the Forty Third
Annual General Meeting of the Company and
who holds office up ro August 27, 2019 and
who is eligible for re-appointment and who
mieets the criteria for independence as provided
in Section 149(6) of the Acr along with the
rules framed thercunder and Regulation
16{1){b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and who
has submitted a declaration to thar effect and in
respect of whom the Company has received a
MNorice in writing from a Member under Section

160( 1) of the Act proposing his candidature for



the office of Director, be and s hereby re-
appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotarion, to
hold office for a second term of five vears
commencing with effect from August 28, 2019
upto August 27, 2024.7

NOTES

{a) The rclative Explanatory Statement pursuaant to

Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act'), in regard to the business as set out in Trem
Nos. 4 and 5 above and the relevant details of
the Directors secking re-appointment/
appointment as set out in Irem Nos. 4 and 5
above as required by Regulation 26(4) and
36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing
Regulations') and as required under Secretarial
Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by The
Institure of Company Secretanies of India, are
annexed herero.

() A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND

AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.
Proxics, in order o be effective, must be
received at the Company’s Registered Office not
less than 48 hours before the meeting. Proxics
submitted on behalf of companies, societies,
partmership firms erc. must be supported by
appropriate resolution/authority, as appheable,
issued on behalf of rhe nominaring
Organsation.

Members are requested o note that a person
can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not
exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capiral of the
Company carrying voting rights. In casc a proxy
is proposed to be appointed by a Member
holding more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company carrving voting rights,
then such proxy shall nor act as a proxy for any
other person or Member,

{c) Corporare Members intending to send their
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authorised representanives to attend the Annual
General Meetng ("AGM') pursuant to Section
113 of the Act, are requested to send to the
Company, a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authonsing their representative to
attend and vote on their behalf ar the AGM.

{d) In case of joint holders attending the AGM,
only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vore.

(¢

Members, Proxies and Authorised representa-
tives are requested to bring the duly completed
artendance slip enclosed here with o arrend the

AGM.

(fi The Register of Members and the Share
Transter Books of the Company will remain
closed from Friday, August 23, 2019 to Toesday,
September 3, 2019. (both days inclusive ).

The Dividend on Equity Shares, as recom-
mended by the Board of Directars, if approved
at the AGM, will be paid on or after
September 11, 2019, to the Members whose
names appear on the Company’s Register of
Members on Thursday, August 22, 2019, afrer
giving effect to valid transfers n respect of
transfer requests lodged with the Company on
or before Thursday, August 22, 2019. As
regards shares held in electronic form, the
dividend will be payable to the 'beneficial
owners' of the shares whose names appear
in the Statement of Beneficial Ownership
furnished by the National Securities Depository
Lirmited ('NSDL'} and the Cenrral Depository
Services (India) Limited ('CDSL') as at the
close of business hours on Thursday, August 22,
2019.

1)

(h) Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid dividend to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF): In accordance with the provisions of
Sccrions 124, 125 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, read with the
Investor Education Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transter and Refund)
Rules, 2016 ('1EPF Rules') (including any
stamutory  modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the ome being in force), the amount

a



of dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid for
a period of seven vears from the date of mansfer
to the unpaid dividend account is required to be
transterred to the IEPE mamntaned by the
Central Government. In pursuance of this, the
dividend remaining unclaimed or unpaid in
respect of dividends declared upto the financial
vear ended March 31, 2011 have been
transferred to the TIEPE The derails are
available on the Company's website at heps://
www benareshotelslimited.com and on  the
website of the Ministry of Corporare Affairs ar
WWW.MCA.ZOV.in.

It may be noted that unclaimed dividend for the
financial year 2011-12 declared on August 13,
2012 is due to be transterred ro the TEPF by
September 2019. The same can, however, be
claimed by the Members by August 2019,
Members who have not encashed the dividend
warrant(s) from the financial year ended March
31, 2012 may forward their claims to the
Company before they are due to be transferred
to the IEPE derails of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. In accordance
with Section 124(6) of the Act, read with the
IEPF Rules, all the shares in respect of which
dividend has remained unclaimed or unpaid for
SEVEN consecutive years or more are required to
be transferred to the demat Account of the
IEPF Authority. Accordingly, all the shares in
respect of which dividends were declared upto
the financial years ended March 31, 2011 and
remained unpaid or unclaimed were transferred
to the IEPE The Company has sent notices to
all such Members in this regard and thereafter
transferred the shares to the IEPF during
Financial Year 2018-19.

The details of such shares transferred is available
on the Company's website at heeps:/fwaw.
benareshotelslimited.com. The shares and
unclaimed dividend transferred o the IEPF can
however be claimed back by the concerned
members from IEPF Authority after complying
with the procedure prescribed under the IEPF
Rules. The Member/ Claimant is required to
make an online application to the IEPF

(i}

(1)

Authonity in Form IEPF-5 (avalable on
www.iepfigovin ) along with requasite fees as
decided by the IEPF Authority from time to
time. The Member/Clumant can file only one
consclidated claim in a financial vear as per the
IEPF Rules.

Members holding shares in electronic form may
please note thar their bank details as furnished
by the respective Depositories to the Company
will be considered for remittance of dividend as
per the applicable regulations of rthe
Depositories and the Company will not
entertain any direct request from such Members
for change/ deletion in such bank derails.
Further, instructions, if any, already given by
them in respect of shares held in physical form,
will not be automatically applicable o the
dividend paid on shares held in electronic form.
Members may, therefore, give instructions
regarding bank accounts in which they wish
o receive dividend o their Depository
Participants (*1)I%").

Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SERI')
has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number ('PAN') by every participant
in securities market. Members holding shares in
clectronic form are therefore, requested to
submit their PAN to their DPs with whom they
are maintaming their demarenalized accounts.
Moreover SEBI vide Circular No. SEBL/HOY/
MIRSD/DOTP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April
20, 2018 has mandated all listed companies to
update the PAN and Bank Account derails of
their security holders holding shares in physical
form who have not updated their PAN and
Bank Account Derails by March 31, 2019.
In view of the same the Company has sent
notices to Members holding shares in physical
form to submit their PAN and Bank Account
Dietails to the Company along with the proof
thereot.

(k) SEBI wvide notification No. SEBL/LAD-NROY/

GN/2018/24 dated Junc 8, 2018, has amended
Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations,
mandating transter of secunties to be carmed
out only in dematerialised form (except in case



()

of transmission or mansposition of securities)
which shall be effective April 1, 2019.
Accordingly requests for transfer of securities of
listed entities shall not be processed unless the
securities are held in the dematerialized form
with depositories. In view of the same Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to
consider converting their holdings to
demarerialised form rto eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for case of
portfolio management.

Members holding shares in physical form, in
identical order of names, in more than one folio
are requested to send ro the Company, the
details of such folios together with the share
certificates for consolidating their holdings in
one folio. A consolidated share certificare will
be issued ro such Members afrer making
requisite changes,

(m)Non-Resident Indian members are requested to

inform the Company or their respective DIYs
immediately of: a) Change in their residential
starus on return to India for permanent
settlement; b) Particulars of their bank account
maintained in India with complete name,
branch, account type, account number and
address of the bank with pin code number, if

not furnished carhier,

(n) As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act,

facility for making nomination is available o
the Members in respect of the shares held by
them. Members holding shares in single name
and whe have not vet registered their
nomination are requested o register the same
by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member
desires o cancel the earlier nomination and
record fresh nomination, he/she may submit the
same in Form No. SH-14. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested ro submit
the said details to the Company and to the
respective DIs in case the shares held by them
are in dematerialized form.

(o) Members holding shares in  dematerialised

mode are requested o inomare all changes

pertaining to their bank details/NECS/
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mandates, nominanons, power of attorney,
change of address/name, PAN derails, cte. to
their DIYs only and not to the Company.
Changes intimated to the DI’ will then be
automarically reflected in the Company's
records which will help the Company provide
efficient and better service to the Members, In
case of Members holding shares in physical
form, such information is required to be
provided to the Company.

(p) The Arendance Slip, Proxy Form and the

Route Map showing directions to reach the
venue of the AGM along with indication of
prominent landmark is annexed hereto.

(q) To support the “Green Initiative™ announced by

the Government of India, electronic copies of
the Annual Report and this Notice inter alia
indicating the process and manmner of e-voting
along with Artendance Slip and Proxy Form are
being sent by e-mail to those Members whose ¢-
mail addresses have been made available to the
Company / DPs unless the Member has
specifically requested for a hard copy of the
same. The Members who are desirous of
receiving the hard copy of the Annual Report
for the year 2018-19 may write to the Company
for a copy of the same. MEMBERS WHO
HAVE NOT REGISTERED THEIR EMAIL
ADDRESSES WITH COMPANY/
DEPOSITORIES ARE REQUESTED TO
CONTRIBUTE TO THE GREEN
INTTIATIVE BY BEGISTERING THEIR
EMAIL ADDRESS, FOR RECEIVING ALL
FUTURE COMMUNICATIONS
THROUGH E-MAIL. Members may note that
the Annual Report 2018-19 will also be
available on the Company's website at hreps://
www. benareshotelslimited, com.

ir} Relevant documents referred o in the Notice

and the Explanatory Statement are open for
inspection by the Members at the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days,
except Saturdays, during business hours upto
the dare of the AGM and also at the venue of
the AGM.,



(s) Voting through electronics means

i, In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, the Companies (Management and
Admimistration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased
to provide Members the facility to exercise their right to vore on resolutions proposed to be
considered ar the AGM by clectronic means either by (a) remote e-voting (by using the clectronic
voting system provided by NSDL as explained ar Tara IV herein below) or (b) the facility of voting
through ballor paper ar the AGM venue. Resolution(s) passed by Members through e-voring isfare
deemed o have been passed as if they have been passed ar the AGM,

il. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners
maintained by the depositories as on Auguste 23, 2019 ('the cut-off dare'), shall be entitled to vore in
respect of the shares held, by availing the facility of remote e-voting / voting through ballot paper at
the meeting. Any person who is not a member as on the cut-off dates should treat this Notice for
information purposes only.

ili. The Members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either by remote e-voting or voting through
ballot paper at the AGM. The Members attending the AGM who have not already case their vote by
remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right ar the AGM through ballot paper. The Members
who have cast their vore by remote e-voting are eligible to artend the AGM but shall not be ennitled to
cast their vote again.

iv. Instructions for Remote E-Voting

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after
despatch of the Notce and holding shares as of the cur-off dare, may obtain the login ID and
password by sending a request to evoting@ nsdl.co.in and may cast their vore by remote e-voting or ar
the AGM,

The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, August 27, 2019 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on
Thursday, August 29, 2019 (5:00 p.m. IST). The remote e-voring module shall be disabled by NSDL
tor voting thercafter. Onee the vore on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be
allowed ro change ir subsequently.

The process and manner for remote e-voting consists of “Two Steps™ as mentioned below:

Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast yvour vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

Access the eVoring websire of NSDL: Open the internet web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/fwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Onee the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login™ which is available under
'Sharcholders' section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D, your Password and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDI eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS logm. Onee you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using vour log-in credentals, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vore
clectronically.
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4. Your User ID details are given below
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or | Your User 1T is:

CDSL) or Physical
a}) For Members who hold shares in demar account | 8 Characrer I 1D followed by & Digir Client ID
with NSDL. For example if vour DI T is IN30O0* ** and Client
ID s 12****** then your user [T i3
INamuuulz_utuuhH_
by For Members who hold shares in demar account 16 Drigiv Beneficiary 112
with CI2SL. For example if vour Beneficiary 1D is

[2rerrrnnnnnsn® then your user [D s

]EP!FPFP!FF:HHHHH

¢} For Members holding shares in Physical Form, EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the company

For example if folio pumber is 001°** and EVEN is
101456 then user [D s 101456001~

5. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast
VOLLT VOEE,

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password'
which was communicated to vou, Once vou retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the
'initial password’ and the system will force you to change vour password.

¢) How to retricve your 'initial password'?

(1) Ifvour email 11215 regastered in vour demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' 1s
communicated to you on your email ID. Open the email sent to vou by NSDL and access the
attached PDF file viz. “remote evoting.pdf™. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or tolio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your "User ID' and your 'initial password'.

(1) If your email 1D s not registered, your imitial password” is communicared to vou on your postal
address.

6. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting then vou can use vour existing user ID and password
tor casting your vore. Sharcholders who forgot the user details/password can access the e-voting by
tollowing the below mentoned instructions

a) Chick on “Forgot User Derails/Password?™(1f you arc holding shares in your demar account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reser Password:™ (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

¢} If you are still unable to ger the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request ar
cvoting@nsdl.co.in menrioning vour demar account number/folio number, your PAN vour name and
vour registered address.

7. After entering vour password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions™ by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, vou will have to click on *Login™ burton.

9. After you click on the *Login™ button, Home page of e-Voting will open.



Details on Step 2 are given below:
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

o

=

8.

After successtul login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voring. Click on e-Voung.
Then, click on Active Voring Cyeles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, vou will be able to see all the companies’ “EVEN" in which vou are
holding shares and whose voting cycle 15 1n active status.

Sclect “EVEN" of Benares Hotels Limited.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voring page opens.

. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares

for which you wish to cast your vore and click on “Submit™ and also *Confirm™ when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message * Vore cast successfully™ will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation
Pﬂgﬂ.

Onee you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed ro modify your vorte.

General Guidelines for sharcholders

1.

Institutional sharcholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUE NRI etc. ) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/IPG Formart) of the relevant Board Resolunon/ Authonty letter erc, wirth amtested speaimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vore, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
investorrelations@tajhotels.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep vour password confidennal. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccesstul
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgor User
Derails/Password?”™ or “Physical User Reser Password?™ oprion available on www.evotng.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

In case of any queries, vou may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Sharcholders available at the downlead section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
on toll free noc 1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@ nsdl.co.in

Mr. Shreepad Korde, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 563) has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer by the Board of Directors o scrutinize the ¢-voting process in a fair and transparent
MANNCT.

"The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting ar the AGM, first counr the votes cast ar
the AGM and thereafter unblock the vores cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than two days from the
conclusion of the AGM, a consohdated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wriring, who shall countersign the same and
declare the resulr of the voting forthwith.

The Resulrs declared along with the Serutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www. benareshotelshimited.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the results are declared,
The Company shall simultaneously torward the results to BSE Limired where the shares of the Company
are listed. The Results shall also be displayed on the Notice Board ar the Registered Office of the
Company.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of vores, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the dare

Mie. st 30, 2019,
of the AGM 1.e. August 30, 201 B cider of thie Hoaid GE Dirsicn

of BENARES HOTELS LTD.

Place: Mumbai Vanika Mahajan
Dare: April 24, 2019 Company Secretary
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Explanatory Statement

As required by Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)

The following Statement sers our all macerial
facts relating to the business under Irem No. 4 & 5
mentioned in the accompanying Notice dared April
24, 2019,

Item No. 4

The Board of Direcrors appointed Mr. Puncet
Raman as an Additional Director of the Company
in the capacity of an Independent Direcror we.f
17th September, 2018, In terms of Section 161 of
the Act and Article 122 of the Arricles of
Association of the Company, he holds office as an
Additional Director up to the dare of the forth-
coming AGM of the Company, but is eligible for
appointment as Director. The Company has
received a Notice pursuant to Section 160 of the
Act, from a Member proposing his candidarure for
the office of Director of the Company ar the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board
commends to the Members his appointment as a
Director of the Company:.

Mr. Raman is a Science Graduate from St. Stephen's
College, Delhi and a Post Graduate in Business
Management from the Indian Institute of
Management, Ahmedabad (TIM-A).

Mr. Raman has a nich experience in mternational
carpet business, financial and project consultancy;
and srrategic & corporate planning besides being
actively associated with various agencies viz. Indo
American Chamber of Commerce, U Branch:
Culrural and Commercial Section of US Embassy in
Varanasi; and various trusts and educational
institutions in Varanasi. His vast knowledge and
experience would be of immense help to the Board
in realizing its objectives.

Mr. Baman is a Non-Executive Director and consi-
dered as Independent Director under the Act and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. As per the
provisions of Section 149 of the Act, an Indepen-
dent Director shall hold office for a term up to five
consecutive vears on the Board of a Company and is
not liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Raman has given
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declaranon wo the Board thar he meets the enitena of
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of
the Act.

The marter regarding appointment of Mr. Raman as
Independent Director was  placed  before the
Nomination & Remuneranon Commmuttee, which
commended his appointment as Independent
Director of the Company.

In the npini{m of the Board, he fulfills the
conditions specified in the Act and the Rules made
thereunder for appointment as Independent
Director and is independent of the management.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149
read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment
of Mr. Raman s now being placed before the
Members for approval,

The rerms and conditions of his appointment shall
be open for inspection by the members ar the
Registered Oftice of the Company during normal
business hours on any working day of the Company
up to the date of the AGM.

The Board commends to the Sharcholders the
appointment of Mr. Raman as Independent
Director on the board of the Company. Mr. Raman
may be deemed to be concerned and interested in
the Resolution mentoned in item No. 4 of the
Notice, Other than Mr, Raman, no other Director,
key managenial personnel or their  respective
relatives is in any way concerned or interested in the
Resoluton mentoned as Irem No. 4 of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 5

Based on recommendanon of Nominanon and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors
proposes the re-appointment of Mrs, Rukmani Devi
(DIN: 00552831) as Independent Director, for a
second term of five years from August 28, 2019 ro
August 27, 2024, not hable to renre by rotation,
Mrs. Rukmani Devi was appointed as Independent
Director ar the Forty Third Annual  General
Meering (“"AGM™) of the Company and holds office
up to August 27, 2019, The Company has, in terms
of Section 160(1) of the Act received in writing a
notice from a Member, proposing her candidature
fior the office of Director.
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The Board, based on the performance evaluanon
and recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Commirtee, considers thar given her
background, experience and contribution, the con-
rnued association of Mrs. Bukmani Devi would be
benefical to the Company and 1t 15 desirable o
continue to avail her services as Independent
Director, Since Mrs. Rukmani has arrained the age
of 75 years, her re-appointment will also require the
Shareholders approval. In the opinion of the Board,
the Company will have the benefit of her vase
experience as a Director of the Company in case she
is re-appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company.

Mrs. Rukmani Devi joined the Board of Directors
of the Company in 1988, Mrs. Rukmani Devi holds
degree in MLA. Philosophy. Mrs. Rukmani Devi has
rich experience in the ficld of Hoteliering. Further
details and current direcrorships have been given in
the Annexure to this Notice,

The Company has received a declararion from her
to the effect that she meets the criteria of
independence as provided in Secrion 149(6) of the
Act and Rules framed thereunder and Repulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Regulations, 2015
(“SEB1 Listing Regulations™). In terms of
Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, she
has confirmed that she is not aware of any
circumstance or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact
her ability to discharge her duries.

Disclosure  Requirements)

In the opinion of the Board, she fulfills the
condinons specified m the Acr and SEBI Listing
Begulations for appointment as an Independent
Dyirector and is independent of the management of
the Company. The terms and conditions of her
appointment shall be open for inspection by the
Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during the normal business hours on any working
dav and will also be kepr open at the venue of the
AGM dll the conclusion of the AGM.
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In compliance with the provisions of Section 149
read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 17
of SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable
Regulations, the re-appointmment of Mrs. Rukmani
Devi as Independent Direcror is now being placed
before the Members for their approval by way of
Special Resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution ar
Item No. 5 of this Notice for approval of the
Members,

Except Mrs. Rukmani Devi and her relatives, none
of the Direcrors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their respective refatives s, in any
way, concerned or interested, in the Resolution set
ourt at ltem No, 5 of the Notice,

By order of the Board of Directors
of BENARES HOTELS LTD.

Vanika Mahajan
Company Sccretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th April, 2019
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Profile of Directors secking Appointment/Re-Appointment at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company

(Pursuant to the SEBI Regulations)

MName of Director

Mpr. Rohir Khosla

Mrs. BEukmani Devi

Mpr. Puneer Raman

Dare of Birth

November 4, 1966

June 24, 1942

Scprember 4, 1965

Date of Appointment

May 7, 2015

June 27, 1988

September 17, 2018

Expertisc in specific
functional arca

Hoteliering

Hoteliering

- International Marketing
- Business Administration

Qualifications

Posst Gradvare Diploma in
Hotel Administration and
Management Diploma in
Hotel Management

M.A. [ Philosophy

Science Graduate from

Sr. Stephen's College, Delln

- Post Graduate in Business
Managemenr from Indian
Institute uFM:m:lgcmunt,
Ahmedabad. (TIM-A)

Dietails of shares held in il 1106 4501
the company
List of Companies in which | - Piem Horels Limired None None
outside Directorships held | - Tay Safaris Limated
ason 31.03.2019 - United Hotels Limited
{excluding private & - Northern India Horels
foreign companies) Limired
Chairman/Member of the Aundit Committee Audit Committee Audit Committee
Committees of other Taj Safaris Limired None MNonc
Companies on which he is | United Horels Limired
a Director as on
31.03.2019
Shareholder’s & Shareholder’s Shareholder’s

Investors’ Grievance
Committee
None

Belationship Committee
MNone

Relationship Committee
None

¥



Venue: Taj Ganges, Varanasi - 221002
Landmark: Opposite Mint Road Crossing
Distance from Varanasi Junction Railway Station: 1.1 km
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BOARD’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Direcrors hereby present the Forry Eighrh Annual Report of the Company together with the Financial
Statement {Audited Statements of Account) for the vear ended 31st March, 2019,

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

(¥ Lakhs) (¥ Lakhs)
2018-19 2017-18
e e e e o GO3R 80 4527 .52
Cicis PrOfit IOt R YRAL cuuiissmnssiimesimiinmiiio o i s A 1816.40 1214.45
Less: Depreciation ......ooeeesrsisssssmssssssssssims s 522.88 417.31
o T o S R TR e P A e R T R ey 75.80 12.32
PIETEREINTRENRE s e b B B e B R AL G 1217.72 78485
Less: Provision for Tax:
L BF L iy o (] {7 SO, T — 271.54 01,30
T T e 73.89 {157.00)
- Provision of tax of earlier years (Net ) ..o - (7.74)
Profits affer TANES .ovoeoiir s s et et sbas s as s s 872.29 48,29
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (Netof Taxes) .o 2.13 1.07
Torl Com BN TVE TGOS . iariisesmnmmrisnissinirssissssiisesss inssvods B74.42 049,36
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year ... 4232.84 818,18
Balance available for appropriations ... i 5107.26 4467.54
Less: Dividend Paid ...ooovooieceer e 195.00 195.00
Less: Tax on Dhividend ..o veinirivaniiane s S R 40.10 39.70
Less: Amount rransferred to General Reserve i — —
Balance Carried forward............... S R R AR R 4872.16 4232.84
OPERATIONS

The Gateway Hotel Ganges Varanasi has been re-branded as Ta) Ganges, Varanasi after extensive renovation which
will enhance the positioning of the hotel leading to higher profitability and revenues. The Hotel has completed
two phases of renovation starting from 2017/18, in which 96 rooms, Lobby and the Tea Lounge have been
completely renovated.

Dring the vear your Company added a new Bangquer Hall with the size of seating capacity approximately 7700
square fieet to is facilities at Taj Ganges, Varanasi to cater to the enhanced demand for meetings and conventions.
This is the largest banquet venue in a five star deluxe hotel in Varanasi,

The Total Income for the year ended 31st March, 2019 at Rs. 6039 lakhs represents a growth of 25% over the
previous vear. The room revenue increased by 18% driven by growth in rooms per day & average room rate. The
Food & Beverage Revenues increased by 36% over the previous year largely driven by Banquer Revenue,

Taj Ganges Varanasi has improved its performance, owing to increase in Room Revenue on account of increase in
ARR post renovation and Increase in F&B Revenue majorly from Banquets. The overall Revenue of The Gateway
Horel Gondia has improved significantly. The  total revenue for Taj Nadesar Palace has however marginally
improved over the previous year. The Gross Operating Profit (EBIDTA) achieved by the Company for the year
was ar Rs. 181640 lakhs i.ean increase of 30% over the previous vear,

BORBROWINGS

The total borrowings (Inter Corporate Deposits) stood at Rs. 5.00 crores as at March 31, 2019 ar the same level as
last vear, borrowed at 9% from United Hotels Limited.



FINANCE COST

Finance cost for the vear ended 315t March 2019 was
Rs.75.8 lakhs | Previous vear Rs.12.32 Lakhs).

PROFIT BEFORE AND AFTER TAX

The Profit before Tax for the vear was at Rs. 1217.72
Lakhs, as compared ro Rs. 784.85 lakhs for the
previous year. The Profit after Tax for the vear was at
Rs. 872.29 lakhs, as compared to Rs. 648.29 Lakhs,

foor the previous year,

DIVIDEND

Keeping in view of the performance of the Company
and rhe planned capital expenditure for the year
2019-20, your Directors recommend the payvment of
dividend @@ 150 % i.e. Rs. 15/- per equity share {pre-
vious year Rs. 15/~ per equity share). The dividend on
equity shares, if approved by the Members would
involve a cash pavour of Rs. 235.08 lakhs, including
dividend distriburion rax of Rs, 40.08 Lakhs.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company had no emplovees during the vear who

WEIC In recelpr of remuneration aggmgari ng o

{a) Not less than Rs, 102.00 Lakhs for the yvear, if
emploved throughour the financial vear,

or

(b) Mot less than Rs, 8.50 Lakhs per month, if
employed for part of the financial year,

DIRECTORS

During the year under report, Mr. Shriraman resigned
from the directorship of the Company with effect
from June 19, 2018, The Directors place on record
their appreciation of the services rendered by
Mr. Shriraman during his tenure as Director of the
Company,

In accordance with Section 149 of the Act and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Lisrting
Regulations), Mr. Puneet Raman was appointed as
Additional Direcror of the Company in the capacity of
Independent Director effective September 17, 2018
on the rccommendation of the Nominaton &
Remuneration Commitree,

In terms of Section 161 of the Act and Article 122 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr
Raman holds office up ro the dare of the Annual
General Meenng of the Company It is proposed to
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appoint Mr. Raman as an Independent Director of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meetng
(AGM) for a period of 5 years commencing from

September 17, 2018.

The term of appointment of Mrs. Rukmani Dev
as an Independent Direcror is expiring on August 27,
2019. Iris proposed to re-appoint Mrs, Rukmani Devi
as an Independent Director for a further period of
five yvears wef. August 28, 2019 upte August 27,
2024,

Pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Act, and the Articles of Association
of your Company, one-third of the Direcrors (other
than Independent Directors) as are hiable to retive by
rotation, shall retive every vear and, if eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at every  AGM.
Consequently Mr, Rohit Khosla (DIN 07163135),
Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotanion
and being cligible seeks reappoinmment in accordance
with provisions of the Act.

The approval of the sharcholders for their
appeintments/re-appointment as Directors has been
sought in the Notice convening the AGM ol vour
Company. The disclosures pertaining to Directors
being appointed/ re-appointed as required pursuane
to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulanions, Clause
1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standards 2 are given in the
cxplanatory statement o the Norice convening the
AGM, forming part of the Annual Report,

The approval of the sharcholders for their
appointments/ re-appointment as Directors has been
sought in the Notice convening the AGM of vour
Company,

Further, during the vear under review, the non
executive Directors of the Company had no pecumary
relationship of ransactions with the Company, other
than sitting fees, commission and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of
artending meetings of the Board/Commirtee and
general mecting of the Company,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Vijay Partap Shrikent, Chief Execurive Officer
(CEO), Mr. Sopan Kedia,Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and Ms, Vanika Mahajan, Company Secretary
of the Company, are the Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company in terms of Section 203 of the
Companies Act 2013



INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE 5 OF
THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
BEEMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The nformation pursuant to Rule 5 of The
Companies  (Appointment and Remuneration  of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in
Annexure 1.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary company.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL) is the
Ultimare Holding Company of the Company.

BOABRD MEETINGS

During the yvear under review, five Board Meetings
were held and the intervening gap berween the
meetngs did not exceed the period of one hundred
and rwenty days, the derails of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report,

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL
MECHANISM

Your Company has an Audit Committee  with
Mr Mo Mivapwala, Mrs. Rukmani Devi and
Mr. Rohit Khosla as its members. During the year
under report, Mr. Shriraman ceased o be the member
of the Audit Committee consequent to his resignation
from the Directorship of the Company,

In line with the Tara Code of Conducr ( TCOC), your
Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its
constituents in a fair and transparent manner by
adopting the highest standards of professionalism,
honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.

Your Company has a Whistleblower Policy establish-
ing vigil mechanism, to provide a formal mechanism
for the Directors and emplovees o report ther
concerns abour unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conducr
or ethics policy. The policy provides for adequare
safeguards against victimuzation of Direcrors and
employees who avail of the mechanism and also
provided them direct access to the Chairman of the
Andir Commitree. It is affirmed that no personnel of
the Company has been denied access o the Audit
Committee. The policy is in line with the provisions of
Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the
SEBI listing Regulations. The said Policy can be
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accessed on your Company’s website at hueps://
www.benareshotelslimited.com/content/dam;thrp/b
cnareshotelslimited/documents/announcement-

policies/Whistle_Blower.pdf

CORPORATE S0OCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE

In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act), vour Company has the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Commurtee of the Board with
D Anant Narain Singh, Mrs. Rukmani Devi and
Mr. Rohit Khosla as the members of the Commitree.
This Committee has also responsible for sustainability
and is now known as CSR & Sustainability Com-
mittee. The Company has in place a CSR policy in line
with schedule VII of the Act. The brief outine of the
CSR Policy of your Company and the initiatives
underraken by your Company on CSRactiviries
during Financial Year 2018-19 are set out in
“Annexure 2" of this Report in the format presenibed
in the Companies (Corporate Soaal Responsibilicy
Policy) Rules, 2014, The CSR policy is available on
the website of your Company ar hteps://
www, benareshotelslimited.com/conrent/dam// thrp/
benareshotelslimited/documents/announcement-
policies/CSR%20POLICY. pdf

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

In terms of Secton 178(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act), the Company has 3 Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board with
Mr. Moiz Miyvapwala, Dr. Anant Narain Singh and
Mrs. Rukmanmi Deyvi as the members of the
Committee. During the year under report, Mr
Shriraman ceased 1o be a member of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee consequent to his
resignation from the Directorship of the Company.
The Commirtee met three nmes during the year on
May10, 2018, August 7, 2018 and March 14, 2019,

The Company has a policy relating o the payment of
remuneration for the directors, KMDPs and other
semior emplovees pursuant to the provisions of section
178(3) and SEBI Listng Regulations. The key
tearures of the said policy are;
= Owerall remuneration (sitting fees and Commis-
sion) should be reasonable and sofficient o
artract, retain and motivate directors aligned o
the requirements of the Company;
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- Overall remuneration practices should be
consistent with recognized best practices;

- Within the parameters prescribed under the faw,
the payment of sitting tees and commission will
be recommended by NRC and approved by the
Board:

- The aggregate commission pavable to the
Directors will be recommended by NRC to the
Board based on company performance, profiss,
retuarn to mvestors, sharcholder value creanon and
any other significant qualirative paramerers as
may be decided by the Board,;

- The gquantum of commission for each direcror
shall be recommended by NRC to the Board
based upon the outcome of the evaluation process
drive by various factors including arrendance and
time spent in the Board and committee meetings,
individual contributions at the meetings and
contributions made by the Directors other than in
meetngs.

[t is affirmed that the remuneration paid to Directors,
EMP and all other employees is as per the
Remuneration policy of your Company. The
Remuneration policy for Direcrors, KMP and other
employees is uploaded on the website of your
Company at heeps:/fwww. benareshorels limited .com

INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE

Your Company has zero wlerance for sexual
harassment at its workplace and has adopred a policy
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at the workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women ar
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 (TOSH Act”) and the Rules thereunder for
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment arworkplace.

The Company has an ‘Intermal Complaints Com-
miuttee’ (ICC) under The Sexual Harassment of
Women ar Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 for the prevention and redressal
of complaints of sexual harassment and for the matrers
concerned, connected or incidental thereto.

During the financial vear 2018-12 the Company
received one complaine ar Nadesar Palace, on sexual
harassment. The said complaint was appropriately
addressed and closed and the accused emplovee has
resigned from the Company and no case remains

pending as on March 31, 2019,
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An 1CC has been constituted in accordance with the
provisions of the POSH Act to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment and all the
provisions regarding the constitution are complied
with.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In rerms of Section 149 of the Act, and Regulation
16( 1) of the Listing Regulations Mrs. Rukmam Dewvi,
Mr. Moiz Miyajiwala and Mr. Puneer Raman are the
Independent Direcrors of the Company as on March
31, 2019, The Independent Directors have submitred
a declaration that each of them meets the criteria for
independence as laid down under Secnion 149(6) of
the Act read with Rules framed thereunder and
Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations and that
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation,
which exists or is anticipared, that could impair or
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an
objective independent judgment without any external
mfluence as required under Regulanon 25 of Lisong
Regulations.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has an  ongoing familiarization
programme for  the Independent Directors with
respect to their roles, rights, responsibilities i the
Company, nature of the industry in which the
Company operates, business model of the Company,
cte. All the Board members of the Company are
afforded every opportunity to familiarize themselves
with the Company, statutory changes impacting the
Company  its Management and 1ts operations and all
the information /documents sought by them isfare
shared with them for enabling a good understanding of
the Company, its various operations and the industry
of which ir is a part. The details of the familiarization
programme for Independent Directors are disclosed
on the Company's website under the weblink:

hirps: /faww benareshotelslimired.com/content/dam/
thrp/benareshotelslimited/documents/indepenent-
directors/Familiarization%20Programme%2()-
% 20BHL.pdf

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
MADE UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees
nor has made any investments under Section 186 of
the Act during the year under review:



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 204 of the
Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Board of Directors have appointed Arvind Kohh
B Associates, Company Secreraries, to undertake the
Secretarial Audir of vour Company for the financial
vear 2018-19. The secrerarial audit report is artached
to this Report as Annexure 3, The report does not
contain any qualifications, reservation, disclaimers or
adverse remarks.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual
Return in Form MGT9 as per Sections 92(3) and
134(3) of the Acr read with the Rules framed
thereunder are given as Annexure IV, which forms part
of this Report, The Annual Berurn for Financial Year
20018-19 is also available on the Company's website ar
www benareshorelslimited.com

CONTRACTS OF. ARRANGEMENTS WITH
BELATED PARTIES

All relared party transactions that were entered into
during the financial year under report were ar arm's
lengrh basis and in the ordinary course of business.

The Company has developed a Relared Party
Transactions Framework under the Policy on Relared
Party Transactions, which policy is also available at
Company's website:  hteps://www.benareshotels
limited.com/content/dam/thrp/benareshotelslimired/
documents/policies/RPTpdf, for the purpose of
identification and monitoring of such transactions,
Prior ommibus approval of the Board is obtained for
transactions which are of a foreseen and repetinive
nature, The transactions entered into pursuant to the
omnibus approval so granted and a statement giving
deails of all the related party transactions is placed
before the Audit Committee for its approval on a
quarterly basis,

Orher than transactions entered into in the normal
course of business, the Company has not entered into
any materially significane related party transactions
during the vear, which could have a potennal conflice
of interest between the company and its promoters,
Directors, Management and/or relatives save and
excepr thar the transaction with The Indian Hotels
Co. Ltd., the uldimare holding company during the
vear exceeded 10% of the annual gross turnover of the
Company for the previous vear, the approval for
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which was taken from the sharcholders by way of a
special resolution at the AGM held on Auguse 21,
2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required by SEBI Listing Regulations, the report
for the vear 2018-19 on Management Discussion and
Analysis and Corporate Governance along with  the
Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of condi-
rions of Corporate Governance norms as stipulated in
Regulation 34 read along with Schedule V of the
SEBI Listing Regularions forms part of the Annual
Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes affecting the financial
position of the Company subsequent to the cose of
the Financial year 2018-19 tall the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the vear under report, there were no
significant and material orders  passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the poing
concern stamas and the Company’s operations.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Although not mandatory, your Company has aligned
Risk Management with Audir Commirtee as a
measure of good governance. The Risk Management
Committee is tasked with the responsibility to frame,
implement and monitor the risk management plan for
the Company. The Committee is responsible for
reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its
ctfectiveness, The details of the Committee and its
term of reference are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report,

Your Company has a Risk Management Policy, pur-
suant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Act, to
identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities
for mitigation of the same on a continual basis. This
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize
adverse impact on business objective and enhance
vour Company's competitive advantage. The risk
management framework defines the risk management
approach across the enterprise at various levels
including documentation and reporting,

The framework enables risks to be appropriately rated
and graded in accordance with their potential impact
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and likelihood, The two key components of risks are
the probability (likelihood) of occurrence and the
impact (consequence ) of occurrence, if the risk occurs.
Risk is amalyzed by combining estimartes of
probability and impact in the conrext of existing
control measures,

Existing conrrol measures are evaluared  against
Critical Success Factors (C5Fs) and Key Performance
Indicarors (KI'Is) identified for those specific con-
trols, Guiding principles to determine the risk conse-
quence (impact), probability of occurrence
(likelthood factor) and midgation plan effectiveness
have been serour in Risk Register.

The Kev business risks idenrified by the Company and
its mitigation plans are as under:

Strategy Risks: Risk of erosion of marker dominance
by losing marker share, which originates from the
choices we make on markets, resources and delivery
maodels that can potentially impact our competitive
advantage in the medium and long term. Loss of F&B
attractiveness on account of pricing/design/
cOmpetition.

Industry and Economic Risks: High dependence
on US, Europe and East Asian markers for foreign
rourists arrival. The economic situarion in these parts
of the world has a porential impact on the enrire
tourism industry. Risks arising from the development
in the regulatory environment that could impact the
HotelTourism Industry. Risks due to geographic
concenrrarion of business, primarily in the city of
Waranasi.

Operational Risks: High dependence on several
technology platforms & systems to operate business
both Internal & Exwernal. Cost overruns/delays in
completion of projects, Loss of critcal/sensitive data
due o leakage/loss/hacking. Increase in fised cost
clements beyond entity control. Highly lidgious
namure of the industry/adverse consequences of
litigation against company. non-renewal of ke
licenses and NOCs,

Safety and Security Risks: Risks arising from
factors such as Fire, Accidents, Electricity mishaps,
ete. Business interruption on account of natural
calamities/act of God/ riots & strikes/ political insta-
bility and terrorism.

Resources: Risks arsing from sub-oprimal
succession planning and retention of ralent pool,
Inappropriate utlizaton of financal capital, talent
and infrastrucrure,
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KEY BRISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

Risk Identification and Impact Assessment: Risk
assessment enables risks to be appropriately rated and
graded in accordance with their potential impact and
likelihood. The two key components of risks are the
probability (likelihood) of occarrence and the impacr
{conscquence) if the risk occurs.  Risk is analvzed by
combining estimates of probability and impact in the
context of existing control measures and included in
the risk register. Apart from risk register, internal audic
findings also provide input for nsk identfication and
assessment, which 15 carmied our on an annual basis
across all functions.

Operational risks are assessed primarily on three
dimensions, namely strength of underlving contrals,
compliance o policies and  business  procedure
effectiveness.

Risk reporting and Disclosure: Risks t the
achievement of key business objectives, trend line of
risk level, impact and mirigation actions, impact and
mutigation action are reported and discussed.  The
escalation of risk information is tmely, accurate and
gives complere coverage of the key nisks to support
management decision making arall levels.

Risk Mitigation and Monitoring: Each Manager
creates a risk mitigation plan by emploving an
effective system of internal controls & checks and
balances to mungate the risks in the most effective
manncr, including designating responsibilities and
providing for upward and onward communication of
any significant issues that may merit attention or
All emplovees actively engage in risk
management within their own areas of responsibility,

escalation,

Integration with Strategy and Business Planning:
Idenrified risks to the business objecrives in the near
term, medium term and long term are used as one of
the key mputs for the development of strategy and
annual business plan.  Key strategic imitiatives are
identified to minigare specific risk.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

PEF Sridhar & Santhanam LLE, Charrered Account-
ants | Registrattion No, 0039905/5200018), were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
by the Members for a rerm of five consecutive vears,
from rthe conclusion of 47thAGM till the conclusion
of the 52nd AGM of the Company under Section
139(1) of the Act and the rules framed thereunder
furnished a certificate of their eligibility.



The report of the Staturory Auditors along with the
Notes to Schedules forms part of the Annual Report
and contains an unmodified opinion withour any
qualificarion, reservation, disclaimer or adverse
remark.,

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not
reported any fraud as specified in Section 143 (12) of
the Act.

COST AUDIT

The Company is not required to maintain cost records
as specified by the Central Government under sub -
section (1) of Secdon 148 of the Act.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECERETARIAL
STANDARDS ON BOARD MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year 2018-19, the Company has complied
with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings
and General Meetings.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company has always been conscious of the need
for conservation of energy and has been sensitive in
making progress towards this end. The Company is in
the process of mnstalling Solar Power Generation
equipment at the Hotel in Varanasi. The Company has
implemented following energy  conservation
initiatives ar the horel:
Installation of New Diesel Generator with higher
cfficiency tor saving of diesel consumprion
- Replacememt of old kitchen equipment with
energy efficient Equipments.
- Replacement of cold rooms in kitchen, which are
energy efficient.
Installation of FCU and LED lights in renovared
rooms with higher efficiency,
Installation of LED lights in back office area in
placc of CFL

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The activities of the Company do not involve the
absorption of rechnology as envisaged ro be furnished
pursuant to The Compames (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
oUTGO

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(3)(f)(m) of
the Act, read with Rule 8(3)(C) of The Companics
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{Accounts) Rules, 2014, the foreign exchange earned

i terms of actual inflows during the vear and the

foreign exchange outgo during the vear in terms of
actual ontflows is furnished below:-

2018-19

Rs. Lakhs

2017-18
Bs. Lakhs
a) Value of Imports

Stores, Supphes and Spare Pares 0.44 8.4
for Machinery

Valhue of Impores 73.85 240.07
(CIF) Capital Tmports

b} Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Professional and Consulaney Fees 7.36 11.73
Orher Expendimare in Foreign Corrency 16,47 2248
¢) Earningsin Foreign Currency

Earnings in Foreign Exchange 818.45 726.57
DIRECTORS EVALUATION

The annual evaluation process of the Board of
Directors, individual Directors and Commirttees was
conducted in accordance with the provisions of the
Actand the Listing Regulations,

Based on the review conducted by the Nomination 8
Remuneration Commitee, the Board of Directors has
made the annual evaluarion of its own performance
and that of its committees and individual directors by
assessing the questionnaires furnished by the
directors/members of various committees in respect
of their selfassessment as well as the assessment of the
Board/Commirtees followed by the discussions with
the directors/members of the Committees.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND
THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has an Internal Control System,
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
its operations. The scope and authority of the Internal
Audit function is well defined i the arganization. To
maintain  its objecoivity and  independence, the
Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Auditors momitors and evaluare the
cfficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in
the Company, its compliance with operating svstems,
accounting procedures and policies ar all locations of
the Company. Based on the report of Internal Audic
tunction, process owners undertake corrective action
in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the
controls.  All significant audit  observanons  and
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corrective actions suggested are presented ro the Audir
Committee of the Board for review. The inrernal
financial controls as laid down are adequate and were
operating cftecrively during the year under review,

In additton, as required under Section 143 of the Act,
the Statutory Auditors have evaluated and expressed
an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on the audit for
the FY 2018-19. In their opinion, the Company has,
in all material respects, adequare internal controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as
o March 31, 2019.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial control
and compliance systems established and maintained
by the Company, work performed by the internal,
starutory and secrerarial auditors including audit of
internal financial contrals over financial reporting by
the statutory auditor and the reviews performed by
the Management and the relevant Board Commurtees,
including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the
opinion that the Company's internal financial controls
were adequare and effecrive during the financial year

2018-19,

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act,

the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge

and ability, confirms that:

a). In the preparation of the annual accounts for the
vear ended March 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and thar
there are no material departures;

b). they have selecred such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimartes thar are reasonable and prudent in
order to give a rrue and fair view of the stare of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and
of the profit of the Company for that period ;

22

¢). they have taken proper and sufficient care to the
best of their knowledge and ability for the
maintenance of adequare accounting records in
accordance within the provisions of the Act, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

B

they have prepared the annual accounts for the

financial vear ended March 31, 2019 on a going

coneern basis;

¢). they have lad down internal finanaial controls for
the Company which are adequate and are
operating effectively; and

f). they have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequare and are
operating effectively:

ACENOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board places on record its appreciation of the

services rendered by the emplovees of the Company
during the vear under report.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr, Anant Narain Singh
Chairman
Place : Mumbai
Date : 24th April, 2019
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Annexure 1

Information under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Particulars of Disclosures
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the | 1. Dr. AL N. Singh 3.22:1
median remuneration of the employees of the | 2 Mre Puneet Chliatwal NLA
Company for the year 2018-19, 2 e et R 1.41:1
4. Mrs. Rukmani Devi 3.27:1
5. Mr Rohit Khosla N.AL
6. Mr. Moiz Mivajiwala 2.64:1
7.  Me Giridhar Sanjeevi N.A
d. Mr. Paneet Raman (26:1
The percentage increase [(decrease) in remuneration | 1. Dre A.N. Singh (29)%
of cach Director®, Chiet Financial Officer etc. in the | 2. Mr Puneet Chharwal NA
e 3. Mz Shritaman (55)%
*Direcrors are entitled to ger Commission on the net & Mk Buldiani De (4)%
profir _f-'ll‘ the Cr}ml:!un}- -.?nd the fiirting fee for 5 Mr Rohit Khosla N AL
artending the Board /Commitree Meetings. o
6. Mr. Motz Mivajiwala 2039,
7. Mr Gindhar Sanjeevi MA
d. Mr. Puneet Raman MNAL
9.  Mr. Ashwarm Anand (CEQ) NA
10. Mr. Vijay Partap Shrikent (CEQ)  NA
11. Mr. Sopan Kedia (CFO) LA
12, Ms. Vanika Mahajan (CS) 32.7%
The percentage increase in the median remuneraton | 15.4%
of employees in the financial yvear
The number of permanent employees on the rolls of | 152
company for the vear 2018-19
Average percentile increase already made in the | Average percentile increase in the remuneration of KMP
salariecs of employees other than the managerial | s 29.0%. while the average percentile increase in the
personnel in the last financial vear and its comparison | salanies ofemplovees other than KMP is 8,9%
with rhe percentile increase in the managerial remu-
neration and justification thereof and point our if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in
the managerial remuneration

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the vear is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company,

Place : Mumbai
Dare : 24th April, 2019

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anant Narain Singh
Chairman
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Annexure 2
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
[ Pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]
1. A Brief Outline of the Policy

The CSR policy of the Company is aimed to improving the quality of the life of the communities served by us
through long term stakeholder value creation. In line with the CSR policy of the Company, the CSR
activities/programmes were undertaken in line with and as specified in Schedule VII of the Act to serve and be
seen to serve society and communiry and create a significant and sustained impact in their lives and provide
opportunities for Tataemployees to contribute to these efforts through volunteering.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company, as approved by the Board of Direcrors is
available on the Company's website www benareshotelshimited.com

2. The composition of the Board-level CSR and Sustainability Commuittee is as follows
i) Chairman: Dr. Anant Narain Singh

Mrs. Rukmani Devi

Mr. Rohit Khasla

i1} Member:

i) Member:
3. Average Net Profit of the Company for the last three Financial Years :  Rs. 1,058.31 Lakhs
4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure : Rs. 21.17 Lakhs
Dietails of CSR spend during the Financial Year 2018-14: Rs. 21.28 Lakhs

f_l'l

A} Manner in which the amount spent during the vear 1s detailed below:-

5.No. CSR Project Sector in | Projects or Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount
or activity which the | Programmes | Outlay spent on the | expenditure | spent: Direct
identificd project is (budger) projects upto 31st | or through
covered project or or March, implementing
Programme | yroprammes | 2019 agency
IR, (¥ Lakhs) (¥ Lalkhs)
(% Lakhs)
L Huospiralicy skill Livelihood | Yaranasi 10,17 13.48 1348 Tara Serive
Centre set-up cost at
Varanasi and food
production fab ser-
up-Training in F&R
service, production
and Housckecping
trades
2. | Livelihood Livelihood | Yaranasi .50 +.61 4.61 Human Welfare
Enrreprencurship Association
{HWA partnership (NGO
program -
handloom weaving
and training
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3 Expenditure for Responsible | Varanasi 2.50 284 2.84 Direct
cheanliness program neighbour-
ar Varanasi Ganga hood
ghats and prowiding
clean drinking
water
4. | Expenditure for Responsible | Gondia 2.00 0,00 0,00 Direct
mraantaining Neighbour-
pathway & garden | hood
cutside the hotel
premises for
providing the clean
space for morning
walk and avoad
road accidents
5| Contribution to Relief Fund | — — (135 (.35 Tara
Reliel Fund Community
Initiatives
Tiuse
Total 2L17 21.28 21.28

6. The CSR Committee Responsibility Statement

The CSR & Sustainability Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
programmes is in compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the Company

On behalt of the Board of Directors

Rukmani Devi Dr, Anant Narain Singh
Diirector Chairman, CSR Committee
(DIN: 00552831) (DIN: 00114728)

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 24¢h April, 2019



Annexure 3
Secretarial Audit Report

The Members

Benares Hotels Limited

We have conducred the Secrerarial Audit of the compliance of applicable starutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate pracrices by BENARES HOTELS LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thercon. Based on our verification of the
Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintamed by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of Secretanial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by

the Campany tor the finanaal vear ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there-under;

1. The Securities Contracts ( Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the mles made there-under;

iii, The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there-under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.  The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
{'SEBRI Act’) viz:-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 201 1;

b. The Secorities and Exchange Board of India { Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢. The Securiries and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014,

¢. The SEBI {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The SEBI {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h. The SEBI (Buyback of Securiries) Regulations, 2018;

i SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as amended from
timie to time,

vi. And other applicable laws like Factories Act, 1948, The Payment of Gratuiry Act, 1972 and other Labour Laws.

vii. And all other laws applicable to Hospitality and Hotel industry and in particular Food and Beverages, the
list of which was provided by the Company.

viii. And all direct tax and indirect tax laws including excise, customs, goods and service tax.
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the tollowing;:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institure of Company Secretaries of India.

(11) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with respective Stock Exchanges.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, crc. mennooned above,
We turther report that having regards to the comphiance system prevailing in the Company and on examination
of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check basis, the Company has complied
with the laws applicable to the Company:
The Company has complied with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedule v, by
constituting a CSR commirtee and undertaking activiries as given in CSR policy. The CSR systems and process
of evaluation is in place.
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of, Non-Execurive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Meeting of Independent
directors was also held.
Adequare nonice, along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda s given to all the directors for the Board
Meetings ar least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarificarions on the agenda items before the meeting, and for meaningful participation ar the meeting,
Majoriry decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

Arvind Kohli & Associates

Company Secretaries

Arvind Kohli

Frop,

Membership No. 4434
CP 2818

Date: 24th April, 2019
Place: Gurugram

This report is to be read with our letter of even dare which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part
of this report.
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Annexure - A

The Members
Benares Hotels Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

o

Mainrenance of secretarial record 15 the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audir practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
abourt the correctmess of the contents of the Secretanial records.  The verificaton was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have nor verified the correcmess and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

We have obrained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
other applicable laws.
The comphliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the

= msibility of management. Our examination was imited to the verification of procedures on rest basis.

The Secrerarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
ctficacy or etfectiveness with which the management has conducred the affairs of the Company.

Arvind Kohli & Associates
Company Secretarics

Arvind Kohli
Prop.
Membership No. 4434

CP

2818

Dare: 24ch April, 2019
Place: Gurugram
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Annexure 4

Form No. MGT -9
Extract of Annual Return
(As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2019)

[ Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Raule 12(1) of the Companics (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014

[. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

iy | CIN:- LA5101UPI971IPLCO03480

i) | Registration Date 03/11/1971

iii} | Mame of the Company Benares Horels Limived

iv) | Category [ Sub-Category of the Company: Company Limited by Shares/Indian Non Government

Company

vl | Address of the Registered office and contact
deratls

Madesar Palace Compound, Varanasi 221 002
Phone: 0542 6660001

vi) | Whether hsted company Yoy

vit) | Mame, Address and Conracr details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

The Indian Hotels Co. Lad.
Beegistrar & Share Transfer Agent
Unit: Benares Hoeels Limired
Mandlik House,

Mandlik Road, Mumbai 400 001,

E-mail id: investorrelations @ taghorels.com

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activites ::nnn'iburing 10 % or more of the total murnover of the Cﬂmpan}.’ shall be as

stated:-
Name and NIC Code of % to rotal
s1. No. Descriprion of the Product/ turnover of the
’ main products/ service Company
services
1 Hutcfi::ring a5101 100

[I1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sl. No. | NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of shares held Applicable
ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY/ Section
THE COMPANY ASSOCIATE
1 The Indian Hotels | L74999MHI1902 | Uldmare Holding 53.70 2(BT)(i)
Company PLCOON1ES {rogether with its
Limited subsidiaries)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Carcgory-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held No. of Shares held at
Shareholders at the beginning of the year the end of the vear

% of % oF | g e Change
o ) ol |during th
Demat Physical Total | Total | Demat [Physical Toral | Total pus e

Shares Shares

A. Promoters

i1y Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 61487 | 22550 | 84037 646 | 61562 23550 B4112| 647 .01
by Central Gove
€) Stare Gt (5)
d) Bodies Corp, 72B138 — | 729138 | 56.09 | 729138
¢} Banks/FI
f) Any Other

729138 56.09 0.00

Sub-total (A) (1):- U625 | 22550 | 813175| 6255 | 790700 ( 22550 | B13250| 6256 (.01

(2} Foreign
a) NRIs-Individuals
by Onther-Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.
dy Banks / FI
¢} Any Other

Sub-total (A) (2):- 0.00)  0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00} 000 (.00

Total sharcholding of
Promoter (A) = TO0625 ] 22550 | 813175 62.55 | 790700 ( 23550 ( 813250( 62.56 (.01

(AN +(A)2)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Insnioutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

<) Central Gove

d) Seare Gowe(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

£ Insurance Companies

g Flls

h) Foreign Venmure
Capiral Funds

1) Dehers {specify)

Sub-total (B){1): 0n.00 | 00 000 0,00 0,00 .00 .00 .00 (.00
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Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at
Shareholders beginning of the year the end of the year % Change
. % of . BeE |
Demat |Physical] Total | Towal | Demar [Physical| Towal | Total ye
Shares Shares
2. Non Insorunions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 193594 TR 20184 1.55( 19859 T4 20599 1.58 (.03
i} Owerscas

b} Individuals

i) Individual sharcholders| 241210) 59159 300369 23.11( 230421( 50581( 290002 | 2231 -(1.80
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

i} Individual
sharcholders holding
nominal share capiral

in cxcess of Bs 1 lakh 90936 20000 110936 B.53( 118061 - 118061 9.08 (.55
c) Dthers
i) Trusts - - - - - - - - -
i} Divecrors & their 1871 H200] 10071 0.77 TR71 32200 11091 (.85 0.08
Relatives
i) Non-resident Indians 3538 - 3538 027 3975 - 3975 (.31 0.03
iv) Clearing members 117 = 117  0.01 684 = 684 0.05 0.04
v) HUF 23890 —| 23890 1.84]| 22868 - 22868 1.76 108
vij IEPF Authoriey 17720 - 17720 L3g| 19470 = 19470 1.50 (.13
v} Sub-total (B}{2):- I9B6T6| BRE149 ) 486825 | 37.45| 432200 54541 486750 | 3744 (.01
Total Public
Sharcholding
(B) = (B)(1) + {B)2) J9B6Tol BE149 486825 | 37.45| 432200 54541 486750 | 3744 0.0

C., Shares held by = A = = = =] = =
Cusrodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)  [1189301 | 110699 11300000 100 [ E222900 | 77091 | 1300000 100} (.00
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(ii) Sharcholding of Promoters

S. Sharcholders Sharcholding ar the Share holding at the
No. Name beginning of the year end of the year
No.of | %oftotal | % of Shares | No, of | % of total | % of Shares | % change
Shares | Shares of the| Pledged! | Shares | Shares of Medged/ in share
the company | encumbered the company| encumbered | holding during
to total shiares to total sharves)  the year
1 | TIFCO Holdings Limited® | 350825 26.99 - - - - {26.99)
2 | The Inglian Hotels
Company Limited 293000 2254 - 643825 4053 - 2699
3 | Myein Hotels Limieed S4063 416 - 34063 416 - -
4 | All Tndia Kashiraj Trust AWM 231 - 0030 2.31 - -
5 | Imlak Varanasi Dl:w:luplru:nm
Privare Limired 1050 0.08 - 1050 0.08 - -
6 | Northern India
Horels Limired 150 0.m = 150 0.01 = =
7 | Oriental Horels Limired 50 - - 50 - - -
8 | Anant Narain Singh 24000 1.85 - 24000 1.85 - -
9 | MK, Krishna Priva 17550 .35 - 17550 1.35 - -
10 | M K Vishoupriya L3000 1.0 - 13000 1.00 - -
11 | Maharaj Kumard Hari Priva®* | 12450 .96 - 12450 0.96 - -
12 | Mahara; Kuman Har Priva®* al00 039 - 100 .39 - -
13 | Mahara) Kumani
Vishiapriya® A0 038 - S0 {1.38 - -
14 | Anamika Kunwar 6937 053 = 01X .54 - (.01
Total B13175 62.35 B13175 62.55 -

* TIFCO Holdings Limited has been amalgamated with the Indian Hotels Company Limited vide NCLET order dated March 8, 2018
with appointed dare April 1, 2017 and effective dare is April 11,2018,

** Shares held mn Pl'r:..r!ii.cn! form and not ver dematenalzed, The Cmrll:rmy has nonhed these promisters the rrquir::n'l.t:ntul.:gl."tting ther
shares demarerialized in terms of Regulation 31(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulsrions, 2015, The shares, however, are not et
demiarerialized despire following up with them by the Company.

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

LN Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
MNo. e .
beginning of the year during the year
No.of | % oftotal shares | No.of % of total shares
shares of the company shares of the company

L. | TIFCO Holding Limited A50825 26,99 350825 26,99

At the begimming of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters Shareholding - 350825+

during the year specifiing the shares on reasons for increase/ shares on

decrease (e.g. allotment/rransfer [ bonus) swear equity eic): 18-5-2018

At the end of the year i [ITH] [IXi%1] .00
2. | The Indian Hotels Company Limired

Ar the hrginnins of the year 2E3000 2254 2U3HH] 2254

Drare wase Increase,/Dhecrease in Promorers Sharehokling + 30825°

during the vear specifying the shares on regsons for increase, shares on

decrease (e, allomment/transfer [ bonus/ swear equiry etc): 18-5-2{H 8

At the end of the vear 43825 49.53 643825 48.53
3. | Avamika Kaivwar

At the beginning of the year 6937 (.38 6937 (138

Date wese Increase,Dhecrease in Promorers Sharcholding Purchased

during the year speaifying the shares on reasons e increase/ 75 sharcs om

decreise (e allotment/oransfer | bonus! sweat equity etc): 7-12-2018

At the end of the year 7013 0.54 7012 054

*Tifon Heldings Limired was holding 15298 number of shares in the Company, which is amalgamared with The Indian Hoels Company
Limited vide NCLT order dated Bth March, 2018 (we.£ Appointed date 1st April, 2017)
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

No. of Shares at the beginning Inereass) Cumulgtive Shareholding during
5L Name {01-04-18)/ end of the year (31-03-15) Date Decrease Reason the year [01-04-16 to 31-03-19)
No. No.of shares | % of total shares in share No. of shares | % of total shares
of the company holding of the company
1 | BrijRaj Singh 20000 154 01 Apei 2018
20,000 154 31 March 2018 o 20,000 154
2 | Vinodchande Mansukhial Parekh 1252 148 04 April 2048
18,252 148 51 March 2008 i 18,252 1.48
3 | Arjun Ramsni 1B, 798 146 04 April 2098
18,738 145 3 March 2019 0 18,794 145
4 | Adtya Dearsh 11,347 0a7 0% Apek 2018
18 May 2018 1,70 Purchase 13,047 1.00
08 June 2018 k] Purchase 13,185 10
15 June 2048 582 Purchase 13237 102
29 June 2018 100 Purchase 13,337 103
06 Juty 2018 ir Purchase 13,354 103
13 July 2018 -] Purchase 13,382 103
A0 iy 2048 a5 Purchase 13437 103
2T July 2XHB 15 Purehase 13,631 105
07 Septembar 2018 an Purchase 13671 105
2 Seplambar 2018 vl ] Purchase 13,558 147
05 Oclober 218 106 Purchase 14,085 108
18 Delobar 2018 175 Purchase 14,540 1.14
26 Oclobar 2048 2 Purchase 15,054 1.18
02 Navambear 2046 264 Purchase 15,328 1.18
16 Navember 2018 10 Purchase 15,538 198
21 Dopambar 2018 3 Purchase 16,358 1.18
18 January 2018 250 Purchase 16,618 1.20
25 Jarwary 2018 651 Purchase 16,268 125
[ Fenuary 213 155 Purchase 16,455 127
22 Manch 2018 415 Purchase 16,680 1.3
30 March 2018 20 Purchase 17,600 135
17600 135 31 March 2009 a 17 63 135
& | Raghubirsingh R Gehl 15960 123 01 Aprl 2018
04 May 2B 3 Sale 15,957 123
154957 1.4 3 March 2018 a 15,657 123
& | Dinesh Makiial Paidwal 13854 147 01 April 2018 i
24 August 2018 138 Purchase 14,002 108
31 August 2018 641 Purchase 14,543 112
OF Seprember 2048 15 Purchase 14,558 112
14 September X148 81 Purchase 14,630 113
09 Movembar 2018 16 Purchasi 14,655 113
14855 1.1 31 March 2018 0 14 655 113
T | Mukilal Ganulal Pakiwa 1.5 0.ag 0 April 2018 000
13 Aprd 2018 4 Purchase 1ra ]
14 Seplambar 2018 4 Purchase 1,743 080
05 Octobar 2018 T Purchase 1,750 (L]
09 havember 218 ] Purchase n,775 (L]
16 Navamber 2018 4 Purchase 1.9 09
11,799 oM 31 March 2019 a 1,798 0at
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
(Contd.)

Ko. of Shares at the beginning Increasal Cumulative Shareholding during
:L o (01-04-18) end of the year (31-02-19) - Decrease | o the year {01-04-18 to 31-03-19)
. No. of shares | % of total shares in share No. of shares | % of total shares
of the company holding of the company
B | Anun Dunichand Ramani 1.2 ] 01 Aprl 2018
11,281 028 31 March 2010 o 1,381 083
B | Sargeey inodchandra Parekh® 6,683 0,53 01 Aprd 2018
A6 Nenesnber 20180 24m Purchass 9374 0.2
B.374 072 31 March 2018 1] 9,374 072
10| Shada Raman B.ES0 L67 01 Apnl 2018 0.00
8,550 n&7 31 March 2019 b 8,650 0,67

* Wal in the kst of Top 10 sharshofders & on Apl 1, 2018, The sama hes baen refiectsd above snce the shareholder was one of tha Top 10 sherehoidars as on March 31, 2018

(v) Sharcholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl No. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
For each of the Directors No. of shares |% of total shares) No. of shares | % of toral shares
and KMP of the company of the company
E: Dir. Anant Narain Singh {Chairman)
Ar the beginning of the year 2400000 1.85 24000 1.45
Drate wise Increase [ Decrease in No change No change

Share holding during the year
specitying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allomment [ ransfer/
bonus sweat equity etc):

Ar the end of the vear 24000 1.85 24000 1.85
2. Mr. Puneer Raman {Director)

Ar the beginning of the vear 45(M) .35 450000 (.35

Dhare wise Increase [ Diecrease in No Change No Change

Share holding during the year

specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g, allotment | eransfer/
bonus/ sweat equiry etc):

Ar the end of the vear 4500 0.35 4500 0.35

3, |Mr Rukmam Devi {Director)

Ar the beginning of the vear 11 009 1106 009

Drare wise Increase/Decrease in No Change No Change
Share holding during the year
specitying the reasons for increase
decrease (e.g. allowment) transfer/
bonus/sweat equiry erch;

At the end of the yvear 1106 0.09 1106 0.09
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
During the vear under report, the Company has borrowed a sum of Rs, 5.00 crores as a short term Inter
Corporate Deposit from a body corporare,
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. BEMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLETIME DIRECTORS AND/OR
MANAGER: NOTAPPLICABLE
B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: (Rs.)
SLL Particulars of Name of Directors
No. Remuneration Total
1. | Independent Directors | Mr Shriraman® | Mr. Puncet Raman*® *| Mrs. Rukmani Devi| Mr. Moiz Mivajiwala
* Fee for amending
Board Jcommittee
MEEHngs = 90,0 5, 10,000 3,90.000 9,90.000
* Commission
{For 2017-18) 4.82.000 - 6,1 1.000 5,14.000 | 16,07.000
= Orhers, please
specify = — - - _
Total (1) 482,000 Q0,000 11,21.000 9.04,000 | 2597000
2. | Other Non-Exccutive  |Dn AN, Singh Mr. Rohir Mr, Puncer Mr. Giridhar Total
b nectonrs Khaosta Chharwal = Sanjecvi ® Amount
* Fee for amending
Board | Commirtee
MeeTings 3,30,000 N.A N.A N.A 3,30.000
* Commission "
{for 2017-18) 7.74.000 - . - 7.74.000
* Onhers, please specify - < = = _
Teatal (2} 11,04,000 - - — [ 11,04,000
Total Managerial
Remuneration ={1+2) 37,001,000
Owverall Ceiling 3% of the ner profit of the Company excluding sitting fees.
a5 per the Ace

= Rl:.-iigm:d wief, June 19, 2018
# Appointed we f. May 10, 2018
5 Resigned wee.f. May 16, 2018

¥+ Appointed wie.f Seprember 17, 2018

“An amount of Rs. 35.79 Lakhs has been prowvided in the book of Accounts towards the commission payable o
the Direcrors for the financial vear ended 31st March, 2019 and shall be paid as may be decided by the Board on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitree after adoption of accounts by the

sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Aogust 30, 2019,




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERTAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

MD/MANAGER/WTD
{Rs.)
Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
LEot | oo gg:r’el’t:’:;' CFO Total
wani | Vijay Partap ! Sopan
Anand | Shrikent | Vonika | gegi
Mahajan
L. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions congined
in sectiony 17(1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961 279495 | 4263389 | 963,483 | 17,05,023 | 72,11,390
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 11,292 | 192678 | 144523 33,730 | 3,82.223
re) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17{3) of the Income-
Tax Act, 1961 = = = = =
2. | Stock Option - - - - -
3. | Sweat Equiry - - - - -
4, | Commission
- as % of profit - - - - -
others, specify...
5. | Others (PE Superannuation, Graruiry) 26,392 | 321998 36,456 25,970 | 440,816
Tortal 317,179 | 47,738,065 | 1144462 | 1794723 | 80,34,429

* for the part of the year,

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/ punishments/ compounding of offences for breach of any Section of Companies
Act against the Company or its Directors or other officers in default, ifany, during the vear.

Place : Mumbai
Darte : 24¢h April, 2019
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Anant Narain Singh

Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

World Economy

After strong growth in 2017 and early 2018, global economic activity slowed notably in the second half of last vear,
reflecting a confluence of facrors atfecting major cconomies. Conditions have cased in 2019 as the US Federal Reserve
signalled a more accommodative monetary policy stance and markets became more opamistic about a US China trade
deal, bue they remain slighely more restrictive than in the fall,

As a resule of these developments, global groweh is now projected to slow from 3.6 percent in 2018 t0 3.3 percent in 2019,
before rerurning to 3.6 percent in 2020, Growth for 2018 was revised down by 0.1 percentage point relative to the
October 2018 World Economic Outlook (WEQ), reflecting weakness in the second half of the vear, and the forecasts for
2019 and 2020 are now marked down by 0.4 percentage pointand (0.1 percentage point, respectively.

Beyond 2020, global growth is set to platcau at about 3.6 percent over the medium rerm, sustained by the inerease in the
relative size of economies, such as those of China and India, which are projected o have robust gronwth by comparison o
slower-growing advanced and emerging marker economies (even though Chinese growth will eventually moderate).
{ Sterve: Wiwdd Econamsic Chutlook, IME Aprdl, 2009)

Indian Economic and Hospitality Scenario

As per IMFE In India, growth is projected o pick up to 7.3 percent in 2019 and 7.5 percent in 2020, supported by the
continued recovery of investment and robust consimption amid a more expansionary stance of monetary policy and some
expected impetus from fiscal policy,

India has emerged as the fastese growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic
powers of the world over the nexe 10-15 vears, backed by its strong democracy and parterships. India has been ranked
I 1th in the Global FI31 Confidence Index 2018, making ir the 2nd highest ranked emerging marker for FIDL

Indaa's GDP is estimated to have increased 7.2 per cent in 2017-18 and 7 per cent in 2018-19. India has remined s
pasition as the third largest starmap base in the world with over 4,750 technology start-ups.

Numerous foreign companies are serring up their facilities in India on account of various government initiatives like Make
in India and Digital India. The Government of India, under the Make in India inigarive, is rying o give boost to the
contribution made by the manufacturing sector and aims to take it up to 25 per cent of the GDP from the carrent 17 per
cent. Besides, the Government has also come ap with Digieal India iniganve, which focuses on three core components:
creation of digiral infrastructure, delivering services digirally and oo increase the digieal lireracy:

The Indian tourism and hospitality industry has emerged as one of the key drivers of growth among the services sector in
India. Tourism in India has significant potential considering the rich culural and historical heritage, variery in ecology,
terrains and places of namral beaury spread across the country.

India is the most digitallv-advanced traveler naton in terms of digital wols being used for planning, booking and
experiencing a journcy: India's nsing middle class and increasing disposable incomes has continued o support the growth
of domestic and outbound toursm.

The launch of several branding and marketing inicanves by the Government of India such as 'Incredible India! and
‘ArhinDevoBhava' has provided a focused impetus to growth, The Indian government has also released a fresh category of
visa - the medical visa or M visa, to encourage medical rourism in the country Incredible India 2.0 campaign was launched
in Scprember 2007, In Seprember 2018, the Indian government launched the 'Incredible India Mobile App' to assist the
traveler to India and showease major experences for travelling, The Government of India 15 working to achieve one per
cent share in world's international tourise arrivals by 2020 and two per cent share by 2025,

Varanasi, being one of the most prominent religiouws & culraral cities in India, aoracts a huge chunk of tourises every vear.
Becently the central government launched a policy o encourage tourism in the ciny, which is expected to boost the sector
significantly. In the recent past The Government of India have approved many projects for making Varanasi a smart city
including beaurification of roads, flvevers, Sanskrit learning, religious work and infrastructure development projects. The
government has also implemented the policy for integrared promotion of ounsm and cultore in Varanasi, in order mo tully
utilize the opportumty of spirtual and religious toursm along the haly river Ganga.

Financial Performance

During the year 2018-19, the toal revenues were at Rs. 60.39 Crores as against Rs, 48.28 Crores in 2017-18. The
operating expenses (excluding Depreciation & Inrerest) increased from Rs. 36.13 Crores to Rs. 42.22 Crores in the same
period while the depreciation increased from Rs 4,17 Crores to Bs, 5,23 Crores, Resultantly, the Profic before tax increased
from Rs. 7.85 Croves in 2017-18 o Rs. 12,18 Crores in 2018-19 and Profic after Tax increased from Rs. 6.48 Crores o
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Rs. 8.72 Crores. The Board meetings were held 5 times in the yvear and the sesults were communicated to the BSE, where
the shares were listed.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Your Company has in place an adequare system of internal controls, with documented procedures covering all funcrions in
the hotel operating units. Systems of internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reliability of Gnancial controls, and
compliance with applicable laws and regulanons.

Adequate intermal control measures are in the form of various policies 8 procedures issued by the Management covering all
critical and importang activites viz, Revenue Management, Hotel Operations, Purchase, Finance, Human Resources,
Safery, erc. These policies 8 procedures are updared from ome 1o tme and compliance is monirored continnonsly. The
Company continues its efforts to align all its processes and controls with global best pracoices.

The inrernal audic process through the Taj group unique "Taj Positive Assurance Model' is an objective methodology of
prowiding a positve assurance based on the avdics of operating units, Iv s 3 convergence of Process Framework, Risk &
Conerol Matrix and 4 Scoring Matrix. A framework developed for each functional area is identified on the basis of an
assessment of risk and concrol as also providing a score, allowing the unic to identify and mitigare high- risk areas.

The Audit committee of the Board oversees the adequacy of the internal control environment through regular reviews of
the audit findings and monitoring implementations of internal audit recommendations through the compliance reports
submitted ro them.

The Starurory Auditors of your Company report that your company has adequate ineernal controls over financial
reporting.

Certifications and Awards

Your Company has been parocipating in the globally recognised "EarthCheck” benchmarking and certificanon system.
EarthCheck certifications are a resule of extensive assessments and audits by Independent Environmental Assessors' -
mapping indicators ranging from encrgy 8 water consumprion, wastc Managcment o sensitivity exhibired vis-i-vis social
an cultural dimensions inall areas of hotel operations. The Company has been certified EarthCheck 'Gold' for Taj Ganges
( previously known as The Gareway Horel Ganges ) continuously for the fourth dime,

Benares Horels Limited has been conferred "India's Best Company for the vear 20 18" Award in the hospitality segment
based on a distinctive and exhansove rescarch and sclection process conducted by Berkshire Media, a muldnarional
bussiness consulting and marker research firm headgquartered in USA,

India’s Best Company of The Year Awards is 2 unique benchmarking project which defines the credibiliny of India’s most
.!:l.u.‘l..'t:a.l:ﬂll, Fastest gnm-ing & 1t|'N.‘un|:'|j1'|1£r ‘,"{Il‘!'il'!l.‘.ﬁli'iuh. It n,'can'm‘.ux the ™ witive contrbutions & I..‘ﬂ:'.ﬂ'i.'l.':il:!r' of the brains
behind the companics thar have played a significant role in the growth of the Indian cconomy,

It also rakes into account the facr that the Company has worked hard in all the aspects to win the trust of their stakeholders
and has reached the pinnacle.

i il = =
Cr. Anant Narain Singh receiving the Award Dr. Anant Narain Singh, Chainrman, Mr, Rohit Khosla,
Mrs. Rukmani Devi, Mr. Moiz Miyajiwala-and
Mr. Punest Raman, Direclars,
Ms. Vanika Mahajan Company Secretary and
Mr. Sopan Kedia CFO with the Award

Workforce
Total manpower employed by the company was 305 as on March 31, 2019 ar the same level as March 31, 2018,
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The Gateway Hotel Ganges, Varanasi rebranded as Taj Ganges, Varanasi
The Gateway Hotel Ganges, Varanasi has been rebranded as Tay Ganges, Varanasi in December, 2018, atter
undergoing an extensive renovation and property upgradartion.

Taj Ganges, Varanasi offers contemporary rooms and suites, a swimming pool, banguet halls, a fitness center
and spa and is ser in 12 acres of landscaped gardens in the heart of one of the oldest cities in the world,
Varanasi.

The restaurants rank among the best in the ciry, with the All Day Dining restaurant, Chowk providing a
selection of Continental, Pan Asian and Indian flavors, while the Indian specialry restaurant, Varuna celebrates
the traditional tood of Varanasi and the coisines of the Muslim Gharana, The Prinsep Bar is an elegant tribute
to the ciry's colonial influence.

The hotel's history has been brought to life with a refreshingly new experience of the signature Taj hospitaliry,
and is perceprible through:

= New artire for the horel ream
*  Newly renovated lobby and banguet hall

*  Luxuriously renovared rooms and suites

%

e e 25
e F N ol
Dr. Anant Narain Singh, Chairman, Mr. Puneet Chhatwal, Mr. Puneet Raman,
Mr. Rohit Khosla, Directors, and Mr. Vijay Partap Shrikent - CEO, unveiling the signage




Report on Corporate Governance

Philosophy on Corporate Governance

As a Company with a strong sense of values and commirment, we believe that profitability must go hand in hand
with a sense of responsibility towards all the stakeholders. The Company's philosophy envisages the protection and
interest enhancement for all the stakeholders, creditors, customers, employees, suppliers and sociery. The
Company seeks to focus on enhancement of long term value creation for all stakeholders without compronusing
on integrity, socal obligatnons and regulatory comphiances. The Company continues to maintain steadfast
commitment to ethics and code of conduer adhered by the company and endeavors to maximize the Sharcholder
value while safeguarding and promising the interest of other stakeholders. The Company complies with legal and
regulatory requirements and meet environmental and local community needs with the highest standards of
integrity, transparency and accountability which are the integral part of the Corporate Governance Policy.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Regulations 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and claoses (b) to
(1) of Sub-regulation (2} of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations), as applicable, with regards o
Corporate Governance details of which are as under :

Board of Directors:

1. Ason March 31, 2019, the Company's Board of Directors comprises six Non-Executive Directors (NEDs),
three out of whom arc Indcpcnd::nt Direcrors of which one is 2 Woman Direcror, Hence, the Board of
Directors comprises Non-Execurive, Independent Directors and as well as a Woman Director and half of the
Board of Directors comprises Independent Direcrors, with the Chairman being a Promoter & Non executive
Director. None of the Directors are related inter-se, in terms of Section 2 (77) of the Act, read with the Rules
framed thereunder. The Directors possess experience in fields as diverse as hotelienng, finance, management,
Agniculture and social service. The experience and wisdom of the Directors, has proved to be of immense
value to the Company. The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriare mix of
knowledge, skills, experience, diversity and independence required for it to function effectively. The Board
periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and size. All Directors, other than Independent
Directors are liable to retire by rotation. The details of the Director secking n:-*a.p}‘-cnnrmcnt at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting has been attached with the notice of the Annual General Me eting,

2. The term Independent Dircctor has been defined under Section 149 of the Act, the rules framed thereunder
and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations,

3. The Company has complied with the provisions with respect to appomtment and term of Independent
Directors which are consistent with the Act and the Lising Regulations. The Independent Directors on the
Board of the Company, upon appointment, are given a formal appoinmment letter inter alia containing the
terms of appointment, role, durics and responsibilities, time commirment, code of conduct, crc. The rerms
and conditions of appointment are disclosed on the website ar hrtps://www.benareshotelslimited.com/
content/daim/thrp/benareshotelslimited /documents/indepenent-direcrors/TD%20Palicy. pdf. None of the In-
dependent Directors have resigned before the expiry of their respective tenures during the yvear under review.

4. The Board has received the Declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company under section
149(6) of the Act and the Lisring Regulations regarding meeting the criteria of Independence. Based on the
disclosures received from all the Independent Direcrors and also in the opinion of the Board, the Independent
Directors meet the criteria of Tndependence’ specified in the Regulation 16(1) of Listing Regulations and
Secrion 149%(6) of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and are independent of the management as
required under Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations.

5. During the vear under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met five times and the period berween
any two meetings did not exceed one hundred and rwenty days. The dates of the Board Meetings held during
each quarter are as follows:
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No. Date of Mecting For the quarter

1 Mav 10,2018 April to June

2 August 7, 2018 July to September

3 October 26, 2018 October to December
+ January 25, 2019 January to March

5 March 14, 2019

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. As required under SEBI Listing Regulations, all the
necessary mformation was placed before the Board from time to time.

During the year under review, a scparate mecting nf]ndtp:ndtnt Directors was held on March 14, 2019,
without the presence of Non  Independent Direcrors and other members of the Management, At the said
meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a
whole and the Chairman of the Company after raking into account the views of the Non-Executive Directors.
They also assessed the quality, quannty, ameliness and adequacy of informanon between the Company's
management and the Board.

The required informarion, including informarion as enumerated in Regulation 17(7) read together with Parr
A of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations 1s made available to the Board of Directors, for discussions and
comsideration ar Board Meerings. The Board reviews the declaration made by the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ)regarding compliance with all applicable laws on a quarterly basis, as also steps taken o remediare
instances of non-compliance, ifany.

With a view to leverage technology and reducing paper consumption, the Company has adopred a web based
application tor transmitting Board / Committes meetings Agenda and papers. The Directors of the Company
receive the Agenda in electronic form through this application, which can be accessed through Browsers or
ilads, The application meets high standards of security and integrity that is required for storage and
transmission of Board / Committee Agenda in electronic form.

As per the Company’s policy, NEIYs of the Company are paid, in addition to commission, sitting fees ar the
rate of Rs, 30,000 per meeting for artending meetings of the Board of Direcrors, Andit & Risk Management
Committee, Independent Directors' Meeting, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainability Committee. The Company also
reimburses the out of pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for artending the Meetings.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their directorships and other interests as required
under Section 184 of the Act and on the Committee positions held by them in other Companies. None of the
Directors hold direcrorships in more than 20 Indian Companies with not more than 10 public limired
companies and none of the Directors hold directorships in more than eighre listed ennties. None of the
Independent Directors serve as Independent Director in more than seven listed entities and none of the
Whole-time Directors of any listed company serve as Independent Directors in more than three listed
companies. Further, none of them serve as Members of more than 10 Commirtees nor are any of them serve as
Chairperson of more than five Committees, across all the public limited companies in which they are
Directors, For the purpose of counting the Chairmanship and Membership of Committees, the Company has
only considered Audit Comminee and Stakeholder's Relationship Commirttee as per the SEBI Listing
Regulations.
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10, The details of the above are as follows: -

Board of Directors:
Mames Caregory Remuneration paid Rs, Mo, of outside Mo of outside | Nowof | Anendance
Dir:ctmshipﬂ. Committes Bﬂ-ﬂ.l’d at the last
As at March 31 | positions held” | Meetings | Annual
. 019 attendod | resal
Salary | Siving | Commisgion | Indian | Foreign Ay As Mecti
B Fees | 2017-2018 Member | Chairman "5
Perks | 2018- hﬂi’;‘“
201 8- 20149 24.08.2018
2019
D, Anvant Narain Singhy | Promoter ~
Sl P 330,000 | 774000 1 . o - I Ves
M, Shriraman® Independent |0 0 482,000 = = = = 0 KA
Mogi-execitive [ © : vy
Mrs. Bukmar Dew 1I:IJ1L"!)ETI|.1LTI.[ MoAL | 510,000 & 1L000 — — — — 5 Yes
NEI-CRECUDIVE
Proemrer - - .
Mr. Rohit Khasla Nioumpsoiicve | b N.A NA 4 — — 2 ] Yes
T Independent "
Mr. Mo Mivajivals PSR NA | 3.90,0HK) 5, 14,000 —_ —_ — — -] No
Mr. Giridhar Sanjeevi®* | Promsorer NA NA NA - . o o 1 NA
Momeexcoutive | T e o i
Mt Puneet Chbagwal # | Promater ; i i
e N it M.A. MNA N.A ) i = 3 Mo
Mr. PMuneer Raman 53 Prowmater NA 90,000 NA - - N N 2 A
Momeenecutive | ; o R

! Bwcludes direcorships in private oompanies, Section 8 Companies and alrernare directorships and afso Benares Hoteks Limited.
* “Board Committes” for this purpose pertains o only the Awdic Commiree and the stakehaolders refationship commiriee of ather Public
Companies as per the Listing Begulanons,

* Besigned from the direcrorship wee ) June 19, 2018 # Appoimnied wef, May 10, 2018

** Resigned we f. May 16, 2018 $% Appointed wef. September 17, 2018

NOTE: Tradinonally, the Direcrors are paid commission each vear after the Financial Statements are approved
by the Members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. A sum of Rs. 35.79 lakhs has been
provided as commission to Non Executive Divecrors for the year 2018-19,

Details of Directorships in other Listed Entities

Name and Category of Details of Directorships of other Listed Entities and
the Director Category of Directorship
Mr. Puneet Chharwal The Indian Hotels Company Limited Managing Director &
Non-Execurive, Chief Execurive Officer
Non-Independent Oriental Horels Limited Non-Executive Director
Taj GVE Hotels and Resorts Limited Mon-Executive Director

Except Mr. Puneer Chharwal, no other Director holds any Directorship in any other Listed Ennity.

11. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and all Non-Executive
Directors have affirmed compliance with the said Code. All Senior Management of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Tata Code of Conduer.

12. Being a subsidiary of Tata Group Company, the Company has adopted the Tata Code of Conduct ("TCOC"),
which clearly articulates the ethical principles and desired behaviours. The TCOC requires the Tata companies
and employees to act with professionalism, honesty and integrity and to preserve the human rights of every
individual and the community. The principles of the TCOC apply to all our dealings with our business
partners who are encouraged to adhere to similar standards. The TCOC covers various subjects like equal
opportunity employer, digniry & respect, human rights, prohibinion of brbery & corruption, gifts and
hospitality, confher of interest, financial reporting and records among others. The TCOC 1s augmented by a
numberof policies that help strengthen governanee pracnces at the Company.
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13. In addition to the above, the Company has also adopred a Code of Conduct for its NED's (“Code™). All
NED's and Independent Direcrors have affirmed compliance with the said Code for the financial vear ended
March 31, 2019 and all Senior Management of the Company have atfirmed compliance with the TCOC, The
above codes are also displaved on the Company's website under the weblink hreps: //www. Benareshotels
limited.com/content/dam/thrp/benareshorelslimited /documents/fannouncement-policies/Code_of_
Corporate_ Disclosure_Practices. pdf. The Annual Report of the Company contains a Certificate duly signed
by the Chairman confirming adherence to the Codes of Conduct.

14. Other than transactions entered into in the normal conrse of business, the Company has notentered into any
materially significant relared party transactions during the year, which could have a porential conflict of
interest berween the Company and its Promoters, Directors, Management and/or relatives save and except
that the transaction with the Indian Hotels Co. Ltd., the ulimate holding company during the vear exceeded
10% of the annual gross turnover of the Company for the previous vear, the approval of which was taken from
the sharcholders by way of a special resolution at the AGM held on August 21, 2015,

Familiarization Programmes for Directors

The Details pertaining to Familianzation Programmes are included in the Director's Report, which forms part of
the Annual Report, The Details are also disclosed on the Company’s website ar https://www.benareshorels
limited.com/content/dam/thrp/benareshotelslimited/documents/indepenent-directors/Familiarization%20
Programme%620-%20BH L. pdf

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
The Committees constitured by the Board of Directors of the Company are as under:

1. Audit Committee:
As per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has an Audit Committee. The commirtee has inter
alia, the following terms of reference:-
i, Reviewing with management the quarterly/annual financial starements before submission to the Board
tor approval, with particular reference to:-
*  Martters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement as provided under Section
134(5) of the Act are included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (¢} of sub section 3 of Section
134 of the Act
*  Changes, if'anj,; inaccounting policics and practices and rcasons for the same.
*  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by the Management.
*  Qualifications in the draft audit report.
* Significant adjustments made in the financial statements, arising out of audit findings.
= The going concern assumprions
«  Compliance with Accounting Standards
*  Disclosure onany related party transactions,
* Compliance with Listing and other legal requirements relating to tinancial statements,

ii.  Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and the adequacy of
internal control systems,

it Discussion with internal audirors on any significant findings and follow-up thereon.

.  Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there s
suspected fraud or nregularity or a failure of internal control syvseems of a material nature and reporring
the martter to the Board.

v, Duscussion with external/staturory auditors before the audic commences, nature and scope of audit, as
well as have post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

vi. The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company,
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vil.  Review and monitor the Audiror's independence & performance and effectoveness ofaudir process,
viii.  Approval of payment to starutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory audiors.
1. Examinaton of the financial starement and auditors' report thereon,
% Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties
it Scrutiny of Inter corporate loans and investments
xii.  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary
xiti.  Evaluation of adequacy of internal finandial controls and risk management systems
xiv.  Approval of appointment of CFO (or any other person heading the finance funcoon or discharging thar
funcrion) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, erc. of the candidare
xv. To frame and review the policies in relation to the implementation of the Tar Code of Conduct for

Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices ('Insider Trading Code') and to
supervise implementation of the same;

wi.  Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and relared marters

wii.  Carrving out any other function as 1s mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commirtee
Although not mandarory, vour Company has combined Risk Management with Audit Committee as a measure of
good governance to frame, implement and monitor the risk management plan of the Company. The Commitree

has a Risk Management Policy, lays down a vigorous and active process for identification and mitigation of risks,
The Committee reviews and monitors the risk management and nutigation plan from time to time,

In addition to the terms of reference of the Audit Commuttee, the terms of reference of the Risk Management
Commitree inter-alia, include the following:

= Toreview the Risk Management Plan / Policy and its deplovment within the Company.

*  Tomonitor the effectiveness of the Risk Management Plan /Policy

* Todecide the maximum risk taking ability of the Company to guide the Board in making new investments.
* Toreview the major risks of the Company and advise on its mitigation to the Board

* Suchother functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

The Company’s Andic & Risk Management Committee comprises Mr. Moiz Mivajiwala - Chairman, Mrs,
Rukmani Devi and Mr. Rohit Khosla, Members. Each member of the Commitree has the relevane experience in
the field of Finance, accounting and hoteliering, with the Chairman being a Chartered Accountant. During the
year under review, the Commitree met four times and the gap berween any rtwo meetings did not exceed 120 days,
MNecessary quorum was present for all the Meetings, The details of the Audit Committee as well as the number of
meetings held and attendance there at during the year are as under:-

SLNo. MEMBERS ATTENDAMNCE AT AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEETINGS HELD ON
10.05.2018 | 07.08.2018 | 26.10.2018 | 25.01.201%

l Mr. Shriraman® - N.A, NLA. N.AL
{Non Exccutive Indcpcnd:nr Darector)

2 | Mr. Rohit Khosla v v v v
{Non Executive Director)

3 Mrs. Bukmam Dewa v v v v
{Non Executive Independent Director))

4 Mr. Moiz Miyajiwala v v ¥ v
{Chairman)
{Non Executive Independent Director)

5 [Mr Gindhar Sanjecvi** v M.A M.A. M.A
{Non Execurive Direcror)
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* Mr. Shriraman ceased to be a member of the Commirtee consequent to the resignation from the Directorship of
the Company w.e.f. June 19, 2018

** Mr. Giridhar Sanjeevi was appointed as a member of the NRC w.e.f. January 25, 2018 and ceased to be a mem-
ber of the Committee consequent to the resignation from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f Mav 16, 2018
The Audit Committec meetings are attended by invitation by the VI Finance Northern Region, CFO, Group
Internal Audit and the Starurory Auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Commitree.
The Internal Auditors and Staturory Auditors of the Company discuss their audic findings and updates with the
Commitree and submit their views directly to the Commuirtee.

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
(the Regulanons), the Board has adopted the CCDP to be followed by Directors, employees and other connected
persons. The CCDP is based on the principle that Directors and the employees of a Tara Company owe a fiduciary
duty o, the stakeholders and public ar large. The Company to place the interest of the members above their own
and conduct their personal securities transacrions in a manner thar does not create any conflicr of interest siruation,
The CCDT contains regulations for preservation of price sensitive information, pre-clearance of wade and
monitoring and implementation of CCDE In terms of this Code, Mr. Sopan Kedia, CFO continues to be
'Compliance Officer’,

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

As per Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has a
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprising Mr. Moiz Mivajiwala - Chairman, Dr. Anant
Narain Singh and Mrs. Rukmani Devi. Mr. Shriraman ceased to be a member of the Nomination & Remuneration
Commuittee consequent to the resignation from the Directorship of the Company.

The derails of the Commitree as well as the number of meetings held and artendance there ar during the year are as
under:-

SL.No. MEMBERS ATTENDANCE AT NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD ON
10.05.2018 07.08.2018 14.03.2019

1 D, Anane Narain Singh ¥ + e
{Non-Executive Director)

2 Mr. Shriraman* - N.A. N.A
{Independent Non-Executive
Dircctor)

3 |Mr. Giridhar Sanjeevi** ¥ N.A. MN.A.
{ Non-Exccutive Direcror)

4 | Mrs, Bukmant Dewi ¥ v v
(Independent Non-Executive
Dirceror)

5 Mr. Mioz Mivajiwala ¥ v v
{Independent Non-Executive
Diirector)

* Mr. Shriraman ceased to be a member of the Commirtee consequent to the resignarion from the Direcrorship
of the Company w.e.f. June 19, 2018
** Mr. Giridhar Sanjeevi was appointed as a member of the NRC weef, January 25, 2018 and ceased ro be a member
of the Committee consequent to the resignation from the Directorship of the Company wee.f. May 16, 2018
The necessary quorum was present at all the Meetings.
The broad terms of reference of NRC inter-alia, include the following : -

- Toidentify persons who are qualified to become directors and who are appoinred in senior management
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- Recommend to the Board the appointment or re-appointmentot directors/KMI/sentor management and
their removal. The Committee shall consider and recommend the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer
{'CFO") o the Audic Committee and the Board.

- Recommend to the Board whether 1o extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent
Director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors,

- To carry out the evaluation of every director's performance

- To formulate the criteria for discovering qualification, positive attributes and independence of direcrors and
recommending to the Board the policies relating to remuneration for the directors, KMIP and other
employvees,

Pursuant to Section 178(2) and (3) of the Act, the Company has adopred 2 Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees based on the recommendations of the Committee, The
Policy envisages payment of remuneration according to qualification, experience. The Company's remuneration
strategy is market driven and aims at attracting and retaining high caliber talent. The policy also recommended the
crireria for derermining qualifications, positive artributes and independence of a director and idenatied persons
whao are qualified ro become director and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the
criteria laid down and recommended their appointment and carmed out evaluation of every director's
performance.

The comnussion payable to NEDs is recommended by the NRC to the Board upto 3% of the net profits of the
Company calculated in accordance with provisions of Section 198 of the Acrand is distributed based ona number
of factors, including atrendance and contribution ar Board and Committee meetings, commitment, effective
deployment of knowledge and expertise, as well as time spent on operational matters other than at the meetings.

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

As per Secrion 178(5) of the Act, the Company has a Share Transfer & Stakeholders Relationship Committee
(5RC) comprises Dr. Apant Narain Singh, (Non-Executive Director) Mr Rohit Khosla (Non-Executive
Dhirector) and Mrs. Rukmani Devi (Independent Non- Execunve Director jwho was appointed as a member of the
Commirtee in place of Mr. Shriraman consequent to his resignarion as the Director of the Company: The scope of
the SRC includes reporting of the status of the sharcholders. The briet rerms of the reference of the Committee
includes resolving grievances of all the shareholders of the Company including complaints related to transfer of
shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends etc,

The Commirttee met once on January 25, 2019 during the period under review and was arrended by all the
members, The necessary quorum was present for the meeting. Dr. Anant Narain Singh, Non-Executive Director,
heads the Committee, The Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer to the Commitree,

Details of complaints received and resolved during the financial vear 2018-19

Share transfers are processed weekly and noted by the SRC, Investor grievances are placed before the SRC.Share
Transter in physical form can be lodged with the Company by providing the necessary documents. The transfers
are normally processed within 15 days from the dare of receipr of duly complered documents, There were no
pending investor complaines which remain unresobved. All valid share transfers lodged upro March 31, 2019, have
been processed. The status of complaings received from sharcholders during the year 2018-19 is as under:-

Complaints received Pending as on March 31, 2019
1 Nil
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) and Sustainability Committee:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has constitured a CSR which has also
been bestowed upon the responsibility towards Sustainability and is now known as CSR and Sustainabilicy
Committee comprising Dr. Anant Narain Singh - Chairman, Mrs. Rukmani Devi and Mr. Rohit Khosla, The
broad terms of reference of the CSR Commitee are as under:
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* Formulatng and recommending to the Board, a Corporare Social responsibility Policy which shall indicare the
activities to be undertaken by the Company;

*  Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the aforesaid acrivities;

*  Monitoring the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time;

*  Providing vision and guidance to the Management to ensure that all long-term business proposals made to the
Board are assessed through the lens of CSR, Environment, Safery, Health, and reputational implications
including associated rsks and opportunities.

* Guiding the Management in ensuring stakeholder engagement and materiality analysis based on key
sustainability 1ssues

= Guiding the management in formulating a comprehensive sustainability straregy for the company; define
appropriate goals, targets, KPlIs, acdon plans and investments, Play an active role in recommending and
periodically reviewing achievement vis-a-vis above strategy.

* Guiding and recommending sustainability disclosures by the Company in line with global reporting
frameworks.

*  Guiding and suggesting strategies to the management o develop internal competencies, inspire emplovees and
suppliers engagement and culture for responsible business.

*  Advising the management on potential business implications of Sustainability performance vis-a-vis corporate
relations & brand perception

The details of the Commuittee as well as the number of meetings held and attendance there at during the vear are as

under:-

S1.No. MEMBERS ATTENDANCE AT CSR AND SUSTAINAVILITY
COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD ON
10.05.2018

1 Dr. Anant Warain Singh v
(Non-Execunive Direcoor)

2 | Mrs. Rukmani Devi v
{Independent
Non-Exeeunive Director)

3 Mr. Rohir Khosla v
i Non-Execurive Director)

The necessary quorum was present for the meeting.
Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Details of Complaints received and resolved during the year are mentioned in the Direcror's Report, which
forms part of the Annual Report.

Transfer of unclaimed [ unpaid amount to the Investor Educations and Protection Fund:

PPursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the Act read with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ('IEPF Rules'), dividends, if nor claimed for a
consccutive period of seven years from the dare of transter to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable
to be transferred o the Investor Educanion and Protection Fund {'IEPEY

Further, shares in respect of such dividends which have not been claimed for a peniod of seven consecutive vears are
also liable to be transferred to the demar account of the TEPF Authority, The said requirement does not apply to
shares in respect of which there is a specific order of Court, Tribunal or Staturory Authoriny restraining any transfer
of'the shares. The provisions relaring to transfer of shares were made effective by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
vide its Notification dared October 13, 2017 read with the circular dated Ocrober 16, 2017, wherein it was
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provided that where the period of seven consecutive vears, as above, was completed or being completed during the
period from Seprember 7, 2016 to October 31, 2017, the due dare of mransfer for such shares was Ocrober 31,
2017,

In the interest of sharcholders, the Company sends periodic reminders to the sharcholders to claim their dividends
in order to avoid transfer of dividend/ shares to IEPF Authority: Notices in this regard are also published in the
Newspapers and the details of unclaimed dividends and shareholders whose shares are liable to be transferred to
the IEPF Authority, are uploaded on the Company's website.

The members who have a claim on above dividends may claim the same from [EPF Authority by submirting an
online application in the preseribed Form No. TEPF-5 available on the website wwwiepfigovian and sending a
physical copy of the same, du]}f signed to the Company, along with requisite documents enumerated in the Form
No. IEPF-5. No claims shall lie against the Company in respect of the dividend, shares so transferred.

Given below are the proposed dates for transfer of the unclaimed dividend ro the IEPF by the Company:-

Financial Year Date of Declaration of Proposed Date of

Dividend Transfer to IEPF*
2011-12 13.08.2012 19.09.2019
2012-13 16.08.2013 23.09.2020
2013-14 28.08.2014 04.10,2021
2014-15 21.08.2015 27.09.2022
2015-16 12.08.2016 18.09.2023
2016-17 (13.08.2017 09.09.2024
20017-18 24.08.2018 30.09.2025

* Indicarive dates, actual dares may vary
In light of the aforesaid provisions, the Company has during the vear under review, transferred to IEPFE the un-
claimed dividends, outstanding for seven consecutive vears from transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account. Further,
shares of the Company, in respect of which dividends have not been claimed tor seven consecutive yvears or more
from wransfer to Unpaid Dividend Account, have also been transferred to the demar account of IEPF Authority
The Company has rransferred an amount of Rs. 4,35,786 o IEPF of the Cenrral Governmenr during the financial
year 2018-19.
The Company has ransferred 1,750 Equity Shares of FY 2010-11 to the IEPF Authority.
In accordance with Section 124(6) of the Act, read with the IEPF Rules, all the shares in respect of which dividend
has remained unclaimed or unpaid for seven consecurtive years or more are required to be transterred ro the demar
Account of the IEPF Authority. Accordingly, all the shares in respect of which dividends were declared upto the
financial years ended March 31, 2011 and remained unpaid or unclaimed were transferred to the TEPE
Compliance Officer :  Ms. Vanika Mahajan

Company Secretary

Benares Hotels Led.

Address :  Corporate Office, Taj Palace, Sardar Patel Marg, New Delhi 110 021
Phone 1 011-6650 3704
E-mail ¢ investorrelations@ tajhotels.com

Disclosure regarding Remuneration of Directors & Shares held by them:-

Remuneration to Non-Executive Dirccrors:

The remuneration drawn by the Non-Execative Directors is in the form of commission distribured out of the
net profits of the Company subject to a maximum of 3%. The commission pavable to Non-Execurive Directors is
decided by the Board on the recommendation of Nominanion & Remuneration Committee and is distribured
based on a number of factors, incuding number of Board and Commirtee meerings amtended, individual
contribution thereat etc.
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Details of shares of the Company held by the Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2019,
are as under:

Dr. Anant Narain Singh - 24000

Mr. Puncer Raman - 4500

Mrs, Rukmani Devi . 1106

Details on General Meetings:

Locarion, date and time of the General Meetings held in the last 3 vears is as under:
Location Date Time Special Resolutions passed
Annual General Meetings August 24, 2018 3.0 pm -
Registered office a Auguse 3, 2017 3.00 p.m -
Madesar Palace Compound August 12, 2016 3.0 pm Approval of payment of
Varanasi 221 002 commission on Ner Profic

to Mon Exccutive Directors

The special resolution passed in the Annual General Meetings of the Company was passed with requisite majority.

During the year under review, there were no Special Resolutions passed by Postal Ballot by the Company,
Currently, no Special Resolutions are proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballo,

Means of Communication:

Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. It is a process of
sharing informarion, ideas, thoughrs, opinions and plans to all srakeholders which promotes management-
shareholder relations. The Company regularly interacts with shareholders through mulniple channels of
communication such as results announcement, annual report, Company's website and subject specific
EUml“llﬂiﬂJ'[iﬂﬂS.

Quarrerly, halfyearly and annual results of the Company are published in leading English and vernacular
newspapers viz, Financial Express and Hindustan. Addinenally, the results and other important information are
also periodically updated on the Company's website viz, waww benareshotelslimited. com.

The Quarterly Results, Shareholding Parrern and all other corporare communication o the Stock Exchanges are
filed through BSE Listing Centre for dissemination on the BSE website,

The Annual Report containing inter alia the Financial Statement { Audited Accounts), Direcrors Report { Board's
Report), Auditors Report, Secretanal Andit Reportand other important information is circulared to the investors.
Management Discussion and  Analysis and Corporare Governance Report forms part of the Annual
Report.Physical copies of the Annual Reports for Financial Year 2018-19 were sent to all members who had not
registered their email ids for the purpose of receiving documents fcommunication in electronic mode.

In line with the SEB] Lisnng Regulations, the Company has emailed soft copies of its Annual Report to all those
sharcholders who have registered their email address for the said purpose. We would greatly appreciare and
encourage more Members to register their email address with their Depository Tarticipant or the Company, to
receive soft copies of the Annual Report, Postal Ballor Notices and other information disseminated by the
Company, on a real-time basis without any delay.

The Annual Reports are also available on the Company's website www.benareshorelslimited. com.

Disclosures:

The Board of Directors receive, from time o nime, disclosures relating o financial and commercial transacrions
trom key managerial personnel of the Company, where they and [ or their relatives have personal interest. There are
no materially significant related party transactions, which have potential conflicr with the interest of the Company
ar large,

The derails of the Related Party rransactions are placed before and reviewed by the Company's Audit Commutree,

in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.
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The Company has not entered into any materially significant related party transactions during the vear under

review, which could have a porential conflict of interest berween the Company and its Promoters, Directors,

Management and [ or relatives. All ransactions entered into with Related Parties during the financial year were in

the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and do not areracr the provisions of Secrion

188 of the Act. Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (IND AS-24) has been made in the

notes to the Financial Statements,

i, The Policy for dealing with Relared Party Transactions has been uploaded on the Company's website at the
following link:
https:,-f,ﬁwu-'w.l'-etmreshcn:isiimirt.'d.-:um;"mntm:fdum,’thrp,-’bcnurushut::]stimi:ud,.-'du:1.1m::ntsf.mnuunccmcn|:-
policies/RITpdf

ii. The Company has followed Accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as specified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant policies during the
vear under review,

tii. The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges [/ Securities and Exchange Board of
India / Starutory Aurhorities on all marrers relaring to capital markets, during rhe last three years. No penaltics
or strictures have been imposed by them on the Company.

iv. The Company has a well-defined Whistle Blower Policy pursuane ro which emplovees can raise their concerns
relaning to fraud, malpractice or any other acovity or event which 15 against the Company's interest by
approaching the Chairman of the Audir & Risk Management Commirtee, No personnel have been denied
access to the Chairman of the Audit Commitree. The policy has been disclosed on the website of the Company
under the link
hetps:/fwww.benareshotelslimited.com/content/dam /thrp/benareshorelslimited /documents /announcement-
policies/Whistle_Bowler.pdf,

Pursuant wo Regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulations, all the Board Members and Senior Management of the

Company as on March 31, 2019 have affirmed compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct. A declaration
to this effect, duly signed by the Chairman of the Board is annexed to this report.

Certifications

In rerms of Regulation 17{8) of the Listing Regulations, the CEO and CFO have issued a cerrificare to the Board

with regard to the propriety of the Financial Statements and other matters stated in the said regulation, for the

Financial Year 2018-19.

A certificare from the Company Secretary in Practice has been received stating that none of the Directors on the

Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of

Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Compliance with non-mandatory requirements

. Audit Report : For the financial year 2018-19, the Auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion  on the
financial statements of the Company. The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure a regime of
unqualified financial statements,

2. The Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
As regards the other non-mandatory requirements, the Board has raken cognizance of the same and shall
consider adopting the same as and when necessary.

General Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting
Date and Time : Friday, August 30, 2019 ar 3:00 p.m.
Venue : Nadesar Palace Compound

Varanas: 221 002
50



Registered Office

Telephone No.
Facsimile No,
Website

E-mail

Financial Calendar

Financial reporting for:

s  Quarrer ending 30th June, 2019

e Quarter ending 30th September, 2019
e Quarter ending 3 1st December, 2009
o  Quarter ending 3 Lst March, 2020

Financial Year :

Date of Book Closure
Dividend Payment Date
Listing on Stock Exchanges
#  Equiry Shares

BENARES HOTELS LIMITED
Forty Eighth Annual Report 2018-19

Nadesar Palace Compound, Varanas: 221 002
91 542 666 0001

01 542 250 3291

www. benareshotelslimited.com

investorrelations@tajhorels.com

onor before Auguse 14, 2019
onor before November 15, 2019
on or before February 15,2019
onor before May 30, 2020

2019-20
August 23, 2019 o September 3, 2019 (both davs inclusive)
On or after September 11, 2019

BSE Lud.

Corporate Identification No.(CIN) : L55101UP1971ILCO03480

ISIN NO.:
Stock Code:

¢ INEG64DO10TY
: BO943R

The Company has paid annual listing fees to the above mentioned Stock Exchange in respect of the financial year

2019-20.

Market Price Data:

High/Low market price of the Company’s shares and performance in comparison to Sensex Indices on Bombay
Stock Exchange Limired, Mumbai during the financial year 2018-19 as furnished below: -

Months BSE High BSE Low
April 2018 13295 1150
May 2018 151%.35 1211
June 2018 1379.8 124575
July 2018 1390 1229:6
Aupuse 2018 1390 1256.35
September 2018 1337 1213
October 2018 1380 1140,35
November 2018 1309.8 1212
December 2018 1349.7 1250
January 2019 15249 1255
February 2019 1417.9 1310.05
March 2019 1605 1301.35
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Secretarial Audit

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 the secreranial audit of the Company for the year 2018-19 has
been carried out by the Secretanal Auditor appointed by the Company. The report of the Secretanal Auditor forms

part of the Board's Report,

In keeping with the requirement of the SEET and the Stock Exchanges, a secrerarial audit by a pracricing Company
Secretary is carried our ro reconcile the total admiteed capital with NDSL and CDSL and the total issued and listed
capiral. The said audir confirms that the toral issued/paid up capital tallies wirh the rotal number of shares in

physical from and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.
Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

As of the end of March 31, 2019, shares comprising approximately 94% of the Company's Equity Share Capital

have been demarerialized.
Status on Demateralised Shares
CDSL

Physical 6.05%
5.93%

- MNSDL
TT—BE.02%

® NSDL ® Physical [1CDSL

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents-  The Indian Hotels Company Limired
Mandlik House
Mandlik Road
Mumbai 400 001.
Phione: 022 6665 1369
Fax: 022-22017442

Location of Hotels: Taj Ganges & Taj Nadesar Palace, Varanasi and
The Gateway Hotel, Gondia

Investor Correspondence

For any queries, investors are requested to ger in touch ar the following addresses
The Indian Horels Co. Lrd.

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Unit: Benares Hotels Limited

Mandlik House, Mandlik Road, Mumbai 400 001.

e-mail id: investorrelations@ tajhotels.com

OR
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Benares Horels Lrd,

Cjo Corporate Office

Tay Palace

S. P Marg, New Delhi 110021

Ihone: 01 1-66503549
Fax-011-26876043

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audir

In keeping with the requirements of the SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit by
a Practicing Company Secretary 15 carried out ar the end of every quarter to reconcile the total admirtted capiral
with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limated (CDSL)
and the total issued and listed capital. The said audic confirms that the total issued / paid up capiral rallies with the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of demarerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Dematerialisation of Shares

The Company’s equity shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. The Company has established
connectivity with both depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL. The International Securities Identification Number
('ISIN'} allotred to the shares under the depository system is INE664D01019.

The Company has approximately 94% of its equity share capiral in demarerialised form as on March 31, 2019. The
Members whose shares are in physical form are requested to dematerialise their shares and update their bank
account and email addresses with the depository.

Report on Corporate Governance

The Company regularly submits to the Stock Exchange, within the prescribed period, quarterly reports on
Corporate Governance electronically through the online portal of the BSE. A certificare from a pracrising
Chartered Accountant on Corporate Governance is attached as an annexure to this Report,

Investor Correspondance

For any queries, investors are requested to get in touch with the Company's share department at Mandlik House,
Mandlik Road, Mumbai 400 001. A dedicared e-mail i.d. investorrelations@rajhotels.com has been set up for
investor complaints,

Declaration by the Chairman on behalf of the Board of Directors regarding adherence to the CODE OF
CONDUCT as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Listing Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Inaccordance with SERI Listing Regulations, T hereby contirm that, all the Direcrors and the Senior Management
personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to
them, for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019,

For Benares Horels Limited

Anant Narain Singh
Chairman
(DINOO114728)
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Independent Auditor’s Certificate
on Corporate Governance

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BENARES HOTELS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporare Governance by BENARES HOTELS
LIMITED (“the Company™) for the year ended
March 31, 2019, as supulated in Regulations 17 to
27, clauses (b) o (i) of Regulation 46(2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulatons, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations-
2015™.

Management Responsibility

2.

The comphance of condiions of Corporare
Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and mainenance of
internal control and procedures to ensure the
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance stipulared in the SEBI Listing
Regulations- 2015.

Auditors Responsibility

3,

Our responsibility is limited o examining the
procedures and implementation thercof, adopted
by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of the Corporate Governance, It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company:.

We have examined the books of account and other
relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purpose of providing reasonable
assurance on the compliance of the condidons of
the Corporate Governance requirements by the
Company.

We conducted our examination of the relevane
records of the Company in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Certficanon of Corporare
Governance issued by the Insoitute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the Standards on Auditing
Spec ified under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in so far applicable for the purpose of
this certificate and as per the guidance note on
Reports or Certificates for special purposes
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{Revised 2016) wssued by the Insttute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance
Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Charrered Accountants of India.

6, We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the Standard on Quality (3QC) 1,
Quaality Conerol for Firms that perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial information, and
other Assurance and relared service engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examinanon of the relevant records
and according to information and explanations
provided to us and the representations provided by
the management, we certify that the Company has
complied with the condinons of Corporate
Governance as supulared in Regulations 17 1o 27,
clauses (b} wm (i) of Regulanon 46 (2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V oof the
Listng Regulations-2015, as applicable, during
the vear ended March 31,2019,

#. We further state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the furure viability of the Company
nor as to the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the Management has conducred the affairs of the
Company.

Restricton on Use

9. The certificate is addressed and provided to the
members of the Company solely for the purpose of
complying with the requirement of the SEBI
Listing Regulanions- 2015, and it should not be
used by any orther person or for any other purpose.
An:nn.iingly, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come withour
OUr Prior consent in writng.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLIP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registrarion No 0039905,/5200018

R. Suriyanarayanan

Partner

Membership No: 201402

UDIN: 19201402AAAAAGRB34G

Place: Mumbai
Dared: 24ch April, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF BENARES
HOTELS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial srarements of Benares
Hotels Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and rhe starement of
Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the vear then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policics and other explanarory
information.

In our opinion and 1o the best of our informarion and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statemenms give the information required by
the Act in the mamner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformiry with the accounring principles
generally accepred in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit, r:h:mgcs in
equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that dare.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under secrion
143(10) of rhe Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Smndards are  further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audir
of the Financial Staterments section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Instinure of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical
requirements thar are relevant to our audic of the
financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe thar the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Key Audit Martters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These marters were addressed in the conrext of our
audit of the financial starements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these marters.

4]

Expansion and renovation of one of the hotel
properties of the Company

During the year company completed expansion and
renovation which comprised a !.igniFn:m!r portion of
additions to the Property, Plant and Equipment of the
year. The process of additions involves completion of all
the related construction contracts, job works and other
related civil, elecrical, landscaping and interior works,
final determination of the cost including allocaton of
indireer costs and ready to wse dates. This mvolves
reconcilianon of relared vendor accounts and obtaining
technical confirmanons. Any incorrect determination
of costs due w error or management bias in allocarion
of indirect costs could lead to matenal misstatements.
Refer Property, Plant and Equipment at Note 4 1o
Financial Statements for the additions made during the
VEear,

How we addressed it in our andit

After obtaining a thorough understanding of the

project break down structure, relevant group policies

and accounting policies adopted, our tests included:

= Test of controls related to system of authorization of
capital procurements, accounting and classification
of related vendor bills, reconciliations of vendor
accounts and approval for journal & payment
CnTrics,

* Verification of final determination of quanrities,
contract dues and vendor account reconciliations

= Validaring the assumptions used in the allocation of
indirect costs

* Comparison of the costs with the budgens and
enquiring in o the reasons for variations and
ensuring infructuous costs, if any, do not getting
added

* Verifving the dassification of additions into various
asset classes and the useful life used for purpose of
depreciation calculations

Onur tests did not reveal any material exceptions,

Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Direcrors is responsible for
the other information. The other information
comprises the information incloded in the Dhirecrors
report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the fnancial
statements, our responsibility s o read the other
informarion and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materally inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audir or otherwise appears to be materially misseated.
If, based on the work we have pcrfnrmtd_, wr conclude
thar there is a marerial misstrement of this other
information, we are required to report that facr. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those
Charged with Governance for Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2003 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepred in
India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Acr.  This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequare
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and derecting frauds and other
rregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting, policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operatng eftectively for
cnsuring  the accuracy and complereness of  the
accounting records, relevant to the preparanon and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial starements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability o
conrinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicahlc,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to Lgudate the Company or to cease
opcrations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the company’s financial reportng process,

Auditor’ Responsibilities for the Audir of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financal scarementss as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or
error, and o issue an auditors’ report thar inchudes our
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opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 5As will always detect a marerial
msstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or crror and are considered material if]
individually or in the aggregare, they could reasonably
be cxpected o influcnce the cconomic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise

professional  judgment and maintin  professional

skepticism throughout the audic. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of marerial
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audir
procedures responsive o those risks, and obrain
audir evidence thar is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
frand may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

= Obrin an understanding of internal  conerol
relevant to the audic in order to design audic
procedures thart are appropriate in rthe
creumstances, Under seedon 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluare the appropriateness of accountng policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimarcs
and relared disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audic evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainey exists related to events or
comditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Iff
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required ro draw atrention in our anditors' report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditons may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
CONneern,

* Ewvaluare the overall presentation, strucnure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial starements
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represent the underlying rransactions and cvents ina

manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other marters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audic findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal conrrol
that we identify during our audit,
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevanr ethical
requirements regarding  independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related saﬁ:gunrds.
From the matters communicared with those charged
with governance, we derermine those marrers thar were
of mose signiticance in the audit of the financal
statements of the corrent period and are therefore the
kev audit matters. We describe these martrers in our
auditors’ report unless law or reguladon precludes
public disclosure abour the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine thar a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report)

Order, 20016 (“the Order™), issucd by the Cenrtral

Government of India in terms of sub-secton (1) of

section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we givr: in

the "Annexure A" 4 statement on the martters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the
extent applicable,

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
thart:

{a) We have soughr and obtained all the
information and explanations which ro the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit,

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

{¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Cash Flow Statement deale with by this
Report are in agreement with the bools of
ACCOUN,

{d) In our opimion, the aforesaid financial
starements comply with the Indian Accounning

Standards specified under Section 133 of the

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

( Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representabons
received from the directors as on 31 March
2019 waken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as
a dhirector in terms of Sectnon 164 (2) of the
Act,

{f)  With respect w the adequacy of the internal
fnancial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating etfectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexurc BT,

{g) With respect to the other marters to be
included in the Auditors' Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Compames (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o
the best of our information and according o
the explanations given o us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements  Refer Nore 27
to the financial statements:

i, The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracrs for
which there were any materal foreseeable
losses as ar 31st March 2019,

iii. There has been no delay in rransterring
amounts, required to be transferred, o the
Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company

(h) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we
report that the remuncration paid by the
company to its directors is in accordance with
the prescribed provisions and the remuneration
paid to every director is within the limir
specified under Section 197,

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Charrered Accountants
Firm's Registrarion No.0039905/5200018

R. Suriyanarayanan
Parmmer
Membership No. 201402

Place: Mumbai
Dared: 24th April 2019



Annexure-A to Independent
Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date to the members of Benares Hotels
Limited (“the Company™) on the financial
statements as of and for the vear ended 31 March
2019,

1l

In respect of the Company's fixed assets:

{a) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars including
quantitative derails and situaton of fixed
ASSCLS.

{b) The Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its fixed assers by
which all fixed assets are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In our
opinion, this periodiary of physical
verification 15 reasonable having regard o
the size of the Company and the nature of its
assers. Pursuant to the programme, certain
fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the vear. In our
opinion, and according to the informanon
and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such
verification,

{€

According 1o the information and expla-
nations given to us, the records examined by
us and based on the examination of the
conveyance deeds provided to us, we report
that, the ntle deeds, comprising all the im-
maovable properties of the land and buildings
which are frechold, are held in the name of
the Company as at Balance Sheet dare.

The inventory has been physically veritied by the
management at reasonable intervals during the
vear. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification 15 reasonable. The discrepancies
noticed on venficanon between the physical
stocks and the book records were not material
and have been dealt with in the books of account,
Based on our audit procedures & according to
the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act and

BENARES HOTELS LIMITED
Forty Eighth Annual Report 2018-19

i

vi.

hence 3{iti) of the Order 1s not applicable to the
Company

Based on our audit procedures & according to
the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has neither given any loan, guarantees
or security nor made any investment during the
year covered under section 185 and 186 of the
Act. Therefore clanse 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on our andit procedures & :u:::m'djng o8
the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the meaning of the Act and the
rules made there under and hence clause 3(v) of
the Order is notapplicable.

The Company is not required to maintain cost

records specified by the Central Government
under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

vii. {a} According ro the information and

explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, except for few
delays, the Company has generally been
regular in depositing undisputed staturory
dues incluoding provident fund, employees'
stare insurance, income-tax, dury of customs,
duty of excise, Goods and Services Tax
{GST]}, cess and any other statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authonties.
According to rthe information and
explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, no undispured
amounts pavable in respect of provident
fund, employees' stare insurance, income-
tax, dury of customs, duty of excise, Goods
and Services Tax(GST), cess and any other
statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31 March
2019 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became pavable.
{b) According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company,
there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax,
Service tax, Goods and Services Tax(GST),
Duty of customs, Excise duty and Value
added rax as ar 31 March 2019, which have
not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute, except
as stared below:

i

1



Mame of | Name of | Amount | Period to | Forum where
the Statute | Duoes | {in INR | which the dispute is
Lakhs) | amounts | pending
relates
Ingome Tax | Demand | 0.98% (FY 2012-13) CIT-Appeals
Act 1961 {Varanasi}
U.P Trade | Demarid | 26.27* |FY 2006-07| 15t Appellate
Tax Act & Authoriry,
FY 2007-08] UI" VAT

*net of amounts paid under protest

viii. In our opinion and according to the informanon

X1.

XL

and explanations given to us, the Company docs
not have any loans or borrowings from the
government, financial institution, bank or
debenrure holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company did not raise money by
way of mital public offer or further public offer
(including debt nstruments) and term loans
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under the
clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during
the year nor have we been informed of such case
by the management.

According to the information and explanarions
given to us, the managerial remuneration has
been paid [/ provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandared by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V o the Acr.
The Company is not a Nidhi company in
accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014 Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are nor

applicable.

Xl

Xiv,

b 4T

X1,

Based on our audit procedures and according to
the information and explanations given to us, all
the transactions entered into with the related
parties during the year are in compliance with
Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian accounting standards.

Based on our audit procedures and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential
allorment of shares during the vear under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xiv) of the
Order are not applicable,

Based on our audir procedures and according to
the informaton and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connecred
with them,

Based on our audit procedures and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registranion No.0039905/5200018

R. Suriyanarayanan
Partner

Membership No, 201402

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 24th April 2019



Annexure-B to Independent
Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on 'Report on Orher Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companics Act,
2013 {*the Act™)

Wi have audited the internal financial conerols over financial
reporting of Benares Hotels Limieed (“the Company™) as of
31 March 2019 i conjuncoon with our audic of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on ehae dare,
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company™s management i responsible for escablishing and
maintaining internal financial contrals hased on the inremal
contral over financial reporting eriteria established by the
Company considering the essennal components of mrermal
control stared in the Guidance Nore on Audir of Inrernal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting dssued by the
Instimure of Chartered Accountanes of India (ICAL), These
responsibilities nclude the design,  implementation and
maintenance of adequare internal financial conrols thar were
operating effectively for ensuring the orcderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence 1 company’s
pohcies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
derection of frauds and errors, the accoracy and complereness of
the accounting records, and the imely preparation of reliable
fnancial informaton, as n.'quir:d under the Cl:amp.'l.nil:ﬁ Act,
2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Char responsibilicy 15 o express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial conrrols over Anancial reporring based on our
audit. We conducted our audie in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Beporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Audiring, issued by ICAIL and deemexd o be prescnbed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, ro the extent
applicable roan audir of inrernal financial controls, both issoed
by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the awdit to obtin reasomable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such conrrols operated
effectively in all material FESpeCTs.

Our awdit involves performing procedures o obeain audir
evidence abour the adequacy of the Internal financial conerols
systemn over financial veporting  and their operating
effectiveness. Our audic of internal finandal controls over
financial reporing included obraining an underseanding of
internal finandal controls over financal reportng, assessing the
risk thar a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluazing
thi: design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
anditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the nsks of
miarerial musstarement of the Anancial statements, whether due
tes frand OF errorn
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We belicve thar the audit evidence we have obrained is sulficient
and appropriare wo provide a basis for our audit opinicn on the
Company’s intermal financial controls system over financial
reperting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company'’s nternal fnancial control over finandial reporting
153 process designed o proside reasonable assurance regarding
the reliabiliey of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial starements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepred accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures thar (1) pertan to the maintenance of records
that, in ressonable demil, acorraeely and fairky reflecr the
rransactions and dispositions of the assers of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance thar sransactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
sccordanice with gererally accepted accounting principles, and
that receiprs and cxpenditures of the company are being made
only i accordance with suthorizations of managenent and
directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or pmely detecrion of unauthorized
acquisition, vse, or disposinon of the company's assets that
contld have a material effecr on the financial staremenes.,
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals Owver
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limirations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, imeluding the possibaliny of collusion or
improper management override  of  contrals,  material
misstatements due o ermor or frand may occur and not be
detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the intermal
financial conrrols over financial reporming o furure periods are
subject tor the nsk thar the internal inanciel contral over
financial reporming may become inadequate because of changes
i conrditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorane.,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material
respects, an adequare internal financial conmals system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls aver
finamcial reporting were operating effectively as ar 31 March
2019, based on the inernal control over fnancial reporting
crizeria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intermal conerol stazed in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Conrrols Over Finangial Beporting
issued by the Insrirure of Charrered Accounrants of India.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0039905/5200018

R. Suriyanarayanan
Partner
Membership No. 201402

Place: Mumbai
Darted: 24th April. 2019
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Note T Lakhs T Lakhs
ASSETS

Non-current Assets
Property, plant and BqUIPMENE ..o 4 8.070.72 5.303.68
Capital Work-in-progress ..o s 132.19 1.463.98
G it Dokl AR i e 5 73.94 G4 94
B.276.85 6,862.60

LTSRN oo s o s i s s b o B R A b s o R s — -
Oeher financial assets ] 26.22 18.95
Achvance INeOMmE B [MEEY. o cime oo cbinnn bens smess smsss sme s eman samsncaian 201.61 20614
L ST N Ty B T 1L PP 120.84 396,76
B,625.52 T ARL 45

-1

Current Assets
I A O e e e e R e T R s A B 128.23 12477
Financial assets
e TeORVERER s isssmains s b Lt s s et s o 434.91 407 .99
Cash and cash cq@IvalEOES .uemesssssssnssisans iesnssssnssmanssnsssnnssnnsiss 10 112.02 481.51
Bank balances other than cash and ¢ash 1::'|uiv.1.il_'nt5 11 178.22 158.25
Oither Firaneial sssets o s asi ann i e s 6 128.48 115.76
8 T e 5 Lot L R B S P A R R ORS LR I 7 52.44 12218
1.034.30 141046
Tl s e e s R e 0.659.82 8.594.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - -
Equity
Eemainy share-canieab.oimimsaim i mmiaalmpmimmms 12 130,00 130.00
Other cquity ..o 13 7,040,224 G,400.92
OB BTN oo v st i RN R AR e A A 7.170.24 6,530.92
MNon-current lahilitics
TR TIN5 N 4 B A RS 14 35.94 3xle6
Dieferred tax labilioies (mo). .o e s ess s snsge s 15 648.52 573.80
Hi4d.46 65 96

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilines

D O R it T e b T i e 16 S00.00 500,00

Trade pavables 17
- e to micro and small L'11|.‘LIT!H'1L‘. 1.93 B11
« Due to ochers .. GR9.30 6235
Orher financial Ilahlllru:s .............................................. v 18 485.95 465909
Oher cncrent Habilimes . o i 19 107.43 162.25
s B M e s L LS e e 14 20.51 19.23
1,805.12 1.7538.03

Total ... 0.659.82 §,894.9]1

hlunm.n v u! ‘ngml:-.am ﬂLLuuntniL, I‘ui;uc 3
The m:nmpammg Motes form an Integral p.m ul thi. E-Ln.mfm] Smummn

As per our Report of even dare attached For and on behalf of the Board

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Dr. Anant Marain Singh Rohit Khosla
Chartered Accountants Chairman Diirector

Firm Regisrration No. 003%008/52000158 DIN: 00114728 DIN: 07163135

K. Surivanarayanan Vijay Partap Shrikent Sopan Kedia

Partner Chicf Exccutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
{Mcmbership No.: 201402

Date : 24th April, 2019 Vanika Mahajan Date : 24th April, 2019
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary Place: Mumbai
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2019

March 31 March 31
2019 2018
Note T Lakhs T Lakhs
I. INCOME (Revenue)
1. Revenue from OQperafions.. o i aiuiiciaising 20 5,267.65 4.742.65
e RO o s o s s S S R iy 21 71.15 84 87
3. TOtal TEVETIUE. ..c.oceeereesrmressnnssrmsrssmsnsssnesmrmennsmemsnesarmsrssases 6,038.80 4 82752
11 EXPENSES
1. Food and beverages consumed v b i 22 58B8.47 446,58
2. Employee benefir expense and paviment to
R A N B s e e e L S B A R T 23 1,059.78 952 .68
3. Finance Costs - (Interest onm IO ) nii i vdidii 75.80 12.32
4. Depreciation and amortisation expense i i 522.88 417.31
5. Other operating and general expenses. ..., 24 2,574.15 2.163.78
"TEAL AR (i sn s iind ki b pee s b bk SRSt R A 4.821.08 4 042,67
Il PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL pe—
TTEME ANTF TAK . i iiumissmssaiimsinmisd s s 1,217.72 78485
IV  EBICRPTIOMAL TTEMS: . dsoisiaunaainisass —_ —
¥V  PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE TAX .....cocoiiiiiminrnirsinsnnsinsns 1,217.72 784,85
V1l TAX EXPENSES
L, Current T ......ooooeenemcsnnrm s eng somenmnsmsmems s semsmsssmemgsmsmsaeas 25 271.54 301,30
= WS B e 3 Y R O SO SO LU U OUEC SIS R O 25 73.89 (157.00)
3. Short provisian of tax of earlier years (Neth.....oiinn - (774
Pt e e S 34543 136.56
PROFITHLOSS) AFTER TAX .....ccoooioerenmmnrinssnssnnsrron 872.29 648,29
VII OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
1, Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation ..., 2.95 1.48
2. Lt TN0ONMS 10X SXPEIIIE Lo insiassmnasassnsaississ issnssnnass phasd 25 0.82 41
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax ... 2.13 1.07
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ......cocovenimanerarns 874.42 649 36
EARNINGS PER SHARE 33 - -
L & T 67,10 4987
2, Diluted - (T) e e ey 67.10 4987
3. Face Value per Ordinary Share - {T) ooocvniienicsninincrne, 10.00 10.00
Summary of Significant Accounting Policics ... 3
The Accompanying Notes form an Incegral part of the Financial Smmements.. i s
As per our Report of even dare attached For and on behalf of the Board
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Dr. Anant Narain Singh Rohit Khosla
Chartered Accountants Chairman Diirector
Firm Regiseration No. 0039005,/5200018 NG DOT14728 M 07163135

R. Suriyanarayanan

Partner

(Membership No.: 201402)

Dare : 24th April, 2019 Vanika Mahajan
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary

Vijay Partap Shrikent
Chief Exccurive Ofhicer

Sopan Kedia

Chief Financial Officer

Drare : 24th April, 2019

Place: Mumbai
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Bet Profit Bebore T ... i i s tab e bams ata e rasiaa
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amormtisation i i i
B e At i i b e T e PR e Rl
Provision: for Doubtfial DIebts ... oo iivmimmmbssmmin s msivmsimsie
(Gam Lot 0n Sale OF ABBEES .. cvrrermirmirirs s
Interese {Mer)....

Provision for i'mp]nw.c Bcn:.htﬁ ...................................................

Cash Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes ...,
Adjustments for:

e Bl s i L T o S e s
D e i s s e B U R
MWon Current = Other Anancial AS80T ..o i i i s e arass i
Ot I O - CEPOTL PURRIETE iy dimsd o i i A
Chrirrent-O0ther Binanctal ABSOIE .. o st oxrsss i an iessssriioes
R TN SRR i e 3 N A S K L R
Trade Payables ...

Current Liabilines -Orcher hm.mlnl Lmh!lmm ...............................
Orther Current Liabilities & ProvISIONS oooevcemmmsssmssimsse s

Cash Generated from Qperaning ACOVITES ..o csmnsmnsimssrorsssinsmnsen
Diireet Takes Tl .. vverusresraismmimsmsrmsimy s ssgtas syumsnnsrmes i s s
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A) ...

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019

Note ¥ Lakhs T Lakhs
1,217.72 784.85
522.88 417.31
75,80 12.32
+.31 8.80
(29.16) (B.60)
(25.17) (63.75)
2.95 148
hbl.6l 367.66
1,769.33 1.152.50
(31.22) 4,17
(3.46) (9.77)
(7.27) 0.40
(15.98) (2.18)
(12.34) (43.96}
69.74 (2,38}
83.77 111.67
(17.28) (45.42)
5.6 (23.78)
71.02 (11.25)
1,840.35 1.141.25
{267.01) {270L73)
1,573.34 370,52

TPrurchase: o Fooed Puash oo i i e i e iy s i sty {1,675.56) {2.834.38)
Sale of Fixed Asscts . 5 36.37 36.30
Short Term Inter Lm'[nm:c Dtprmts Em’lshcd {I'Iu‘cd} ............. = 1, OO0
Interest Recerved i e R R 24.79 RO.57
Bank Balances not cﬂmldrrcd as Lm-h 1nd Cash I'ql. 'ak‘ntﬁ ........ (19.97) HO8.349
Met Cash Used in Investing Activities (B)  ovvvvivnimsimninnn {1,634.37) {(B19.12)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES*®
Inmemes B =g e (73.36) (1110}
Short-term Loans Raised / (repaid) (0et) civiimimmimmmimmmiion — 500,00
Dividend Paid {Including rax on dividend) (235.10) {234.70)
Netr Cash Used in Financing Activities (C) oo, (308.46) 254.20

Ner Increase/ {Decrease ) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) {36949 305.60

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening {Refer Note 10) v vesmiinnen 481.51 175.91

Cash and Cash Equivalenes - Closing {Refor Note 10} 112,02 481.51

*Refer foot note under Borrowings (Note 16) for Met Debt Reconcifiaton,

As per our Report of even dare attached For and on behalt of the Board

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Dr. Anant Marain Singh Eohit Khosla

Chartered Accountants Chairman Director

Firm Registration No. Q0039005,/5200018 DIN: 00114728 N 07163135

E. Surivanarayanan Vijay Partap Shrikent Sopan Kedia _

Partmer Chicf Exccutive Officer Chief Financial Officer

{Membership No.: 201402)
Dare : 24th April, 2019 Vanika Mahajan

Place: Mumbai Company Secretary

o4

Dage : 24th April, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31st March, 2019

T Lakhs
Equity Share Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital Capital General Retained | Grand ‘Total
Subscribed Reserve HBeserve Earnings
Balance as at April 1, 2017 130.00 (1.8 2, 167.22 3B18 18 f,116.26
Restared balance at the beginning of the
reporting period (April 1, 2017} 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 3,818.18 6,116.26
Profic for the year ended March 31, 2018 — -— — 045.29 48.29
RBemeasurements of post emplovment benefit
obligation, net of tax of T (.41 lakhs
{item of other comprehensive income
recognised directly in rerained earnings
(Mot reclassified to P8 1.07 1.07
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear
ended March 31, 2018 = = == 649.36 649.36
Dividends (195.00) (195.00)
Tax on Dividend {39.70) {39.70)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 130.00 (.86 2,167.22 | 4,232.84 6,530.92
Profic for the year ended March 31, 2019 — — — B72.29 872.29
Remeasurements of post emplovment benefir
obligarion, ner of rax of T (.82 lakhs
{item of other comprehensive income
recognised directly in retained carnings
{ Mot reclassificd o P&L) 2.13 213
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear
ended March 31, 2019 - —_ - 874.42 874.42
Dividends — -- - {195.00) (195.00)
Tax on Dividend (40,1 {40,109
Balance as at March 31, 2019 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 | 4872.164 7,170.24
As per our Beport of even dare arrached For and on behalf of the Board
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Dir. Anant Narain Singh Rohitr Khosla
Chartered Accountants Chairman Dhrector
Firm Regiseration No. 00392005/5200018 DIN: 00114728 DIN: 07163135
R. Surivanarayanan Vijay Partap Shrikent Sopan Kedia
Partmer ek Bxecittive Officer Chaet Financial Officer

i Membershap No.: 201402}

Dyage : 24th April, 2019
Place: Mumibai

WVanika Mahaian

Company Secretary

Date : 24th April, 2019

Place: Mumbai



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

Benares Horels Limited (“BHIT or the *Company™), is a histed public limired company incorporated in 1971,
The Company operates its hotels, viz, Taj Ganges and Taj Nadesar Palace in Varanasi and The Gateway Horel
Balaghat Road, Gondia in Maharashtra. In May, 2011, the Company became a subsidiary of The Indian
Hotels Company Limited, a company promoted by Tata Sons Private Limited.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issuc on 24thApril' 2019,

NOTE 2: APPLICATION OF NEW INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and nonfied by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
till the financial statements are authorized have been considered in preparation of these Financial Starements,

NOTE 3: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance:

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the Company has adopred Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) issued under
section 133 of the Compames Act, 2013 and notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from April 1, 2016.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (*Ind AS™) issued under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). The
accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial
STATCMICHTS,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

New standards notified and adopred by the Company

With eftecr from Ist April 2018, the Company has adopred Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Conrraces with
Customers' which introduces a new five-step approach to measuring and recognising revenue from
contracts with customers, Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised ar an amount thar reflecrs the
consideration to which an entity expects ro be entitled in exchange for services to a customer.

The Company has opted for the modified remrospective application permitted by Ind AS 115 upon
adoption of new standard. Accordingly, the standard has been applied for the vear ended 31st March 2019
only (i.e. the inidal application period). Modified retrospective application also requires the recognition of
cumulative impact of adopton of Ind AS 115 on all contracts as ar st Aprl 2018 (‘mansition dawe’) in
equity and the impacr on such transicion date is not material.

Prior to adoption of Ind AS 115, the Company's revenue was primarily comprised of Revenue from Hotel
operations. The recognition of these revenue streams is largely unchanged by Ind AS 115,

(b) Standards issued but not yet effective:

On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, Leases’ as part of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces
existing standard on leases Le. Ind AS 17, Leases with effect from accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st April 2019,

It eliminates the classificarion of leases as either finance leases or operating leases for a lessee as required by
Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee 1o recognise
assers and liabilities for all leases wirh a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asser is of low
value.
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A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asser representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments, Requirements with regard to lessor
accounting are substantially similar to accounting requirements conrained in Ind AS 17, Accordingly, a
lessor will continue to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those rwo
types of leases differently.

The Company’s operating leases mainly relare to real estare assers such as Land, Land & Building and fully
fitted hotel properties which are on long term lease ranging from 30 to 60 vears.

The Company has completed its preliminary evaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 116 and will
adoprt the standard using the 'Modified Retrospective Method' based on the principles in Ind AS 116.
Accordingly, the cumulative effect of initally applying this standard will be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of rerained earnings i.e. Ist April 2019, consequently, comparatives for the yvear ended
31st March 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statement. The
Company expects that this adoption will result in a material increase in the assets and liabilities and is
likely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

Other Amendments of the existing standards but not effective:

1) Mimstry of Corporate Affairs has issued addigonal guidance on Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes pertaming
o “accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment of an irem by tax
authorities”. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact on its financial statements from
adopting this notficanion and plans o adopt the standard as ar 1st April 2019,

i) Other than (a) above, there are certain other modifications notified in the existing accounting
standards on miscellaneous issues which are applicable with effect from 0lst April 2019, None of
these standards are applicable to the Company.

(c} Basis of preparation and presentation:
These financial starements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepr for cermain financial

instruments that are measured at fair value i.e. Defined Benefir Plans at the end of cach reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

As the operating cycle cannot be identfied in normal course due to the special nature of industry, the same
has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. Accordingly, all assets and labilicies have been classified
as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cvele and other criteria set our in Ind AS-1
Presentanion of Financal Starements’ and Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013,

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two
decimal lakhs except otherwise stated.

Fair value measurement:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement dare under current market conditians

The Company caregorizes assers and liabilities measured ar fair value into one of three levels depending on

the ability to observe inputs emploved in their measurement which are described as follows:

(a) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, cither directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices
included within level 1 for the asser or liabiliry.

(¢) Level 3 inpurs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related marker dara or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.
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(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgments:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimartes and assumprions, that affecr the application of accounrting policies and the reporred
amounrs of assets and liabilities, disclosures of conringent liabilities ar the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affecred,

In particular, information abour significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and crirical judgments in
applving accounring policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements pertain ro:

HH

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has with the
help of group technical assessment estimated useful life of each class of assers based on the nature of
assets, the estimated usage of the asser, the operating condition of the asset, past history of
replacement, antcipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the carrying amount of
property; plant and equipment and Intangible assets at the Balance Sheet dare. This reassessment may
result in change in depredation expense in future periods.

Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assers are tested for impairment
when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating unies is
higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost o sell. The calculation involves use of significant
estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and eamings multiples, growth rates and net
margins used to caleulate projected furure cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and
market condinons.

Income Taxes: Deferred rax assets are recognized to the extent that ir is regarded as probable that
deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax assers and
liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including
management’s expectations regarding the manner and riming of recovery of the relared assers. Changes
in these estimares may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred rax
assets and the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax habilities require judgments on the interpretanion of tax legislanon, developments in
case law and the potennial outcomes of tax andits and appeals which may be subject to sigmificant
uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expecrations resulting in adjustments to
provisions, the valwation of deferred tax assers, cash tax sertlements and therefore the tax charge in the
statement of profic or loss.

Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of
each being always subject to many uncertainties inherent in litgation. A provision for litigation is
made when it is considered probable that a payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimared. Significant judgment s made when evaluating, among other factors, the
probability of unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of
potential loss, Litgation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the
changes in facts and circumstances,

Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are based on acruarial valuation using the projected unir credit merhod. An acruarial
valuation involves making various assumptions thar may differ from actual developments in the furure,
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and morrality rares, Due
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tor the complexities nvolved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benehir obligation s
haghly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
dare,

(e) Revenue recognition:

(f)

Revenue is recognised ar an amount that reflects the consideration o which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for ransterring the goods or services to a customer Le. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirece
taxes, returns and discounts.

Revenue from operations
Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets:

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms
are occupled, food and beverages are sold and banguer services have been provided as per the conrracr
with the customer.

Space and shop rentals:

Bentals basically consists of rental revenue eamed from leting of spaces for renails and office ar the
properties. These contraces for rentals are generally of short term in nature, Revenue is recognized in the
peried in which services are being renderned.

Other Allied services:

In relation to the, laundry income, communication income, health club income, airport ransfers income
and other allied services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the rime of service rendered.

Interest

Interest income is accrued on a ime proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend income 1s recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue comprises sale of rooms,
food and beverages and allied services relating to horel operations,

Emplovee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

i. Provident Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly conrributions ar
a specified percentage of the covered emplovees' salary (currently 12% of emplovees' salary}, which is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. The contributions as
specified under the law are paid to the provident fund set up by the respective Regional Provident
Fund Commissioner. The Company is generally liable for annual contributions and any shortfall in the
fund assets based on the minimum rates of return prescribed by the Central Government and
recognises such contributions and shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year in which the
corresponding services are rendered by the Company.
ii. Gratuity Fund

The Company makes annual contributions o gratuity funds administered by the trustees for amounts
notified by the funds. The Gratnity plan provides for lump sum payment o vested emplovees on
retirement, death or termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s last
drawn salary and tenure of employment. The Company accounts for the net present value of is
obligations for granuty benefits, based on an independent actuanial valuanion, derermined on the basis
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(g)

70

of the projected unit credit method, carried out as at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised immediately in the other comprehensive income and reflected in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to the statement of profir and loss.

iil. Compensated Absences

The Company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is
determined on the basis of an independent actuarial valuaton using the projected unit credit method,
carried out at the Balance Sheet date.

iv. Short Term Obligations

The costs of all short-term employee benelits (that are expecred to be sertled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised during
the period in which the emplovee renders the related services. The aceruals for employee entitlements
of benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represent the amount which the Company has a
present obligation to pay as a result of the employees’ services and the obligation can be measured
reliably. The aceruals have been caleulared at undiscounted amounts based on current salary levels at
the Balance Sheer dare,

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaton and accumulared
impairment losses, if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded ar cost. Cosr includes the acquisition cost or the
cost of construction, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), expenses directly related to
the location of assets and making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifving
assets, the attributable borrowing costs. Initial estimate shall also include costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to properry, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associared with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

An assers’ carrving amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimarted recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assers (other than frechold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful hives, using the straight line
method, as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of
the following caregories of assets, in whose case the life of the assers had been re-assessed as under based
on technical evaluation made ar the geoup level, taking into account the nature of the asser, the estimated
usage of the asser, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipared
rechnological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support, ete.

The estimated vsetul lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed ar the Balance Sheer dare,
with the effect of any changes in estimare accounted for on a prospective basis.

In respect of Leaschold Buildings, depreciation on buildings on leased properties is based on the tenure
which is lower of the life of the buildings or the expected lease period. Improvements to buildings are
depreciated on the basis of their estimared useful lives.

Assers under finance leases are depreciated over the expected usetul lives on the same basis as owned assets,
However, when there 15 no reasonable certamnty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, asscts are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
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The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Improvement to the buildings 15 years

Plant and Equipment 10 to 20 vears
Electrical Installation and Equipment 20 years

Hotel Wooden Fumniture 15 years

End User devices Computers, Laptops etc 6 vears

Operating supplies (issued on opening of a new hotel property) 2 to 3 years

Assers costing less than € 5000 4 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is dj:n:::ngnin:d upon disp{mal or when no future economic
benefirs are expected to arise from the continued use of the asser. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property; plant and equipment is determined as the difference berween the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Caprtal work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipments are not ver
ready for their intended use and are carried at cost derermined as aforesaid.

(h) Intangible Assets:

Intangible assers include cost of acquired software and designs, and cost incurred for development of the
Company's website and certain contract acquisition costs. Intangible assets are iminially measured at
acquisition cost mcluding any directly atmbutable costs of preparing the asser for its intended use.
Internally developed intangibles are capitalised if, and only if, all the following criteria can be
demonstrated:

i)  the rechnical feasibility and Company’s intention and ability of completing the project;

i) the probability that the project will generate furure economic benefirs;

i)  the availability of adequate rechnical, financial and other resources to complete the project; and

v} the ability ro measure the development expendimre reliably.

Expenditure on projects which are not vet readv for intended use are carried as intangible assets under
development.

Intangible assers with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication thar the intangible asset may be impaired. The amorrtisarion

periods are reviewed and impairment evaluations are carried out at least once a year. The estimared useful
life used for amortising intangible assets is as under:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Website Development Cost 5 years

Software and Licences 6 years

Service and Operating Rights 10 years

An intangible asset is derecognized on dispasal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asser, measured as the
difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset are recognized in the
Starement of Profir and Loss when the asser is derecognized,

Impairment of assets:
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are nor subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets thar are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
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(1

(k)

(n

7

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estmared future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
retlects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks speatic to the asser for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unir) is estimated to be less than irs carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount,
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrving amount of the asser (or a cash-generating
unir} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asser {(or cash-generaring unit) in prior yvears, A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediarely in Statement of Profir and Loss.

Foreign Currency Translation:

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee.

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applving to the foreign currency

amount the exchange rate berween the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transacrion.

Subsequent Recognition

As ar the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transacnon. All non-monetary
irems which are carried ar fauir value or other similar valuation denominaved in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were fur value measured.

All monetary assets and habilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period.

Exchange differences on restatement of other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

MNon-current assets held for sale:

MNon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrving amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through contunuing use. This condition 1s
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is avallable for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms thar are wsual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and
its sale is highly probable and expected to be completed within one year from the date of classification.

MNon-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured ar the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets taken on lease:

The Company applies Appendix C of Ind AS 17 'Leases' for determining whether an arrangement
contains a Lease. Further, leases are classified as finance lease whenever the erms of the lease mansfer
substannally all the nisk and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All the other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis, unless another basis 1s more representanive of the time pattern of benefirs received from the use
of the assets taken on lease or the payments of lease rentals are in line with the expected general inflation
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compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Assers held under finance lease are capitalised ar the inception of the lease, with corresponding liabiliry
being recognised for the fair value of the leased assers or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, Lease payments are apportioned berween the reduction of the lease labihity and finance charges
in the statement of Profit or Loss so as to achieve a constant rare of interest on the remaining balance of
the hability. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimared usetul life of
the asser and the lease term.

For leases which include both land and building clements, basis of classification of each element is assessed
on the dare of rransition, April 1, 2015, in accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standard.

{m) Inventories:

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried ar the lower of cost (compured
on a Weighted Average basis) or net realisable value. Inventory cost includes the cost of fair value of
consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and other
expenditure directly arriburable o the purchase, Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining
the cost of purchase.

{n) Government Grants:

(o)

Government grants are recognised in the period ro which they relate when there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and that the Company will comply with the artached conditions
Government grants are recognised i the Statement of Profic and Loss on a systemarnic basis over the
periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
[0 Compensate.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current rax expense and the ner change in the deferred rax asser or liabiliry
during the vear. Corrent and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relare o items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equiry in which case, the current and
deferred rax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

i. Current tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for current income tax is made for rthe rax liability payable on taxable income after
considering rax allowances, deducrions and exemprions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing rax laws,
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to ser off
the recognised amounts and there is an intention o settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

ii. Deferred tax :

Dieferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheer approach. Deferred income tax assers and
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising berween the tax base
of asscrs and liabilitics and their carrving amount in financial starements, an asser or liability in a
rransaction that is not a business combinarion and affects neither accounting nor raxable profits or loss
ar the time of the ransaction.

Deferred income rax assets are recognised to the extent rhat ir is probable thar taxable profic will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be unlised,
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Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences arising between
the tax base of assers and habilities and their carrying amount in financal statements.

The carrving amount of deferred rax assers is reviewed ar each Balance Sheer dare and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient raxable profits will be available to allow all or parr of
the deferred income tax asset to be urilised,

Dreferred rax habilities and assets are measured ar the tax rares thar are expected o apply in the period
in which the liability is sertled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacred or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheer dare,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offser when there is a legally enforceable right to ser off current
tax assers against current tax habilides and when they relare o income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to sertle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT") credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
reasonable certainey that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period in
which such credit can be set off under the income tax law, Such asser is reviewed ar cach Balance Sheet
date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asser is written down to the exeent there is no longer
a reasonable cerrainty to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

(p) Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable thar an outflow of resources will be required to sertle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made, If the effect of the tme value of money is
material, the non current provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation and the unwinding of the
discount is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent habilities are recognized only when there 15 a possible obligation ansing from past events, due
o occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of
the Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in rerms of future outflow of
resources, or where a reliable estimare of the obligation cannor be made. Obligarions are assessed on an
ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outtlow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

(q) Borrowing Costs:

(r)
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General and specfic borrowing costs directly atributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets thar necessarily rakes a substantial period of time to ger ready for their intended use or sale, are
added ro the cost of those assers, until such rime as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Interest income carned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifving assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capiralization. Borrowing costs that are
not directly attributable to a qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using the
effecoive interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
{with an oniginal marurity of three months or less from the date of acquisiion), highly hiquid investments
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(t)

that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.
Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before rax 1s adjusted for the
effects of transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipes or
payments. Cash flows for the vear are classified by operating, mvesting and financing activities,

Effective April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to
provide disclosures thar enable users of financial starements to evaluare changes in liabilities arising from
financing acrivities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting
inclusion of a reconciliation berween the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities
arising from financing acrivities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is compured by dividing the profir / (loss) after tax by the weighred average
number of equiry shares outstanding during the year including potential equity shares on compulsory
convertible debenrures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profir / (loss) after tax as
adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any atributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equiry shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighred average number of equity shares which
could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potenrial equiry shares.

(u) Segment Reporting:

(v

i

The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker,

The chief operaring decision-maker, who is responsible for allocaring resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been idenrified as the Board of Directors that makes straregic decisions,
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accountng policies of the
Company, Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Since the Company’s business consists of its hotel operations only, no separare informarion for segment-
wise disclosures is given.

Financial Instruments:

Financial Assets:

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured ar amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income or tair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asser.

Instial Recognition and measurentent:

All financial assets (not measured subsequently ar fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially
at fair value plus rransacrion costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assers that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade dare, i.c., the dare thae the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asser.

Dbt instruments at amortised cost

A *debr instrument” is measured ar the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
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a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting conrractual
cash flows, and

by Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thar are solely pavments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the
cftecrive inrerest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calealated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fees or costs thar are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and advances, deposits, trade
and other receivables,

Debr instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are measured

at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecoguition

A fnancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financal
assets) is primarily derecognised (ie. removed from the Company’s balanee sheer) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its nights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withour marerial delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has transterred substandally all the nisks and rewards of the asset, or

(b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asser,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has enrered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to whar extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership,

When it has neither transferred nor retamed substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor

transterred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of

the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability

The transterred asset and the associared hability are measured on a basis thar reflects the rights and

obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement thar takes the form of a guarantee over the mansferred asset s measured at the

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideranion thar the

Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assety

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

L‘KFItHuI‘l::

a} Financial assets thatr are debt instruments, and are measured ar amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade

receivables which do nor conrain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company o track changes in credit risk.

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet dare, right

from irs initial recognition,
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Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial habilines as subsequently measured at amornsed cost, excepr for
financial liabilioes ar fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives thar are
liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities ar fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, pavables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initally ar fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
pavables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings inchading bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contraces and derivative financial instruments,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities atr fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabiliries designated upon initial recognition as ar fair value through profit or loss, Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivanive financial mstruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109, Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effecrive hedging
INSTIUMETLs,

Gains or osses on linbilitics beld for trading arve vecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designared upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designared ar
the initial date of recognition, only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are sarisfied. For liabilities designated as
EVTITL, farr value gains/ losses areributable to changes in own credir risk are recognized in OCL These
gains/loss are not subsequently mansferred to the Starement of Profic and Loss. However, the Company
may transter the comulative gain or loss within equiry. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as
at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured ar amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabiliries are derecognised,

Amortised cost is calcalated by taking into account any discount or premiwm on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 15 included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profic and Loss,

This caregory generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantally
different terms, or the werms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
maodificarion is rreared as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabiliry
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profir and Loss.

i
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Offetting of financial instriments

Financial assers and financial liabilities are offser and the net amount is reported in the balance sheer if
there is a currently enforceable legal right o offset the recogmsed amounts and there 15 an intention to
sertle on a net basis, o realise the assers and sertle the liabilities simultancously:

Equeity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract thar evidences a residual inrerest in the assers of an enrity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recogmized ar the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducred direcdy in equity. No
gain or loss 1s recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.
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NOTE 4: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Owned, unless otherwise stated) 7 Lakhs

Buildings Furniture
Freehold |Refer Foot- Plant and and Office | Vehicles Tiotal
Land note (i) | Equipment Fixtures | Equipment

Cost
Ar April 1, 2017 13.05 | 2,577.59 1,691 49 336,12 G64.29 012 | 4.682.66
Additions . 64111 6G37.09 44615 12.13 - | 1,736.47
Less: l'.li:iptmh - 142.87 75.79 3119 0.82 - 251.67
At March 31, 2018 13.05 | 3,075.83 2,252.79 750,08 75.59 012 | 6.167.46
Additions - 147672 1,211.64 26986 17.38 - 3,275.60
Less: Disposals - 91.50 4().29 2223 - - 154,02
At March 31, 2019 13.05 | 4,461.05 3.424.14 1,297.71 297 12 | 9. 259.04
Depreciation
Ar April 1, 2017 - 23068 323.78 10]1.62 29.11 - a4 20
Charge for the year = 157.17 Io4.11 A7.58 14.70 - A93.55
[{ Kefer Foor Note (1}
Less: Disposals = 137.65 59.19 2643 0.70 - 22397
Ar March 31, 2018 —| 259.20 428.70 132.78 43.11 - B63.78
Charge for the year = 125.93 262.57 96.32 16.53 = 501.35
[ Refer Foot Note (i)
Adposoments
Less: Disposals = 91.77 35.21 19.83 = = 146,41
Ar March 31, 2019 -] 293.36 656,06 209.26 59.04 - | 1.218.32
Met Block
At March 31, 2018 13.05 | 2,816.63 1,824.09 617.30 32.48 012 | 5,303.68
Ar March 31, 2019 13.05 | 4,167.69 2,768.08 | 1,08B.45 33.33 012 | 8,070.72
Footnotes :

i1 Gross block includes:
Buildings constructed on leasehold land - TNR 993,70 lakhs (previous year - INR 993,79 lakhs)

i1i) During the year, the company has charged accelerared deprecianon amounring o INK Nil Lakhs (Y 118,90 lakhs) in accordance
with provisions of schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, i respect of assets which have been identified to have a shorter vsetul
life, considering Factors such as renovation commenced before approval of Financial Searements or ather factors,

NOTE 5: INTANGIBLE ACCOUNTS (Acquired) - Softwares & Rights

T Lakhs
Cost Amortisation Net Block
Ar April 1, 2017 152.45 Ar April 1, 2017 35.97 At March 31, 2018 T 0474
Addirions 2.22 Charge for the yvear 23.76 At March 31, 2019 T 73.94
Disposals - Drisposals o -
At March 31, 2018 154.67 At March 31, 2018 59.73
Additions 0.54 Charge for the year 21.53
Adpstments - Disposals =
Disposals -~ At March 31, 2019 81.26

Ar March 31, 2019 155.21
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NOTE 6: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

{Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
A} Non Current:
Depaosits with Public Bodies and
Others at amortised costs
Pabilic: Bodivg ane DUIEES... v i s ensns s s it risin s giae s
Deposits with Banks . s

B} Current
Depasits with Public Bodies and Others
T T . v R S A A MR P O A R

Other advances

Considered Food ...k sesisisssi e
Interest receivable

Bank Deposits ..o e s s s

On Current Account dues ;

Belatad Parties (Befer Mote B0 oviniinamsu inaiaeiiiia
i i e e T e S T e S

Total

March 31, 2019
¥ Lakhs

23.96
2,26

26.22

.34
2.34

24.77

2.69
2.69

69.73
28.96

98.69

128.48

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

18.95

18.95

30.22

i

Pad | I
wd

64.73
15.87

Bi.60
115.76

NOTE 7: OTHER ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

A) Non Current
Capital Advances.........cimmisesmnimssmrmsssios R e ey e
Prepaid EXpenses ... ssssss s
Export mcentive réctivable .....ommimmmsmmmsmmspmssoresin
{ Refer Foor Note below)
Deposits with Government Authorines e oo,

Foot Note: Export incentive receivable
Openttg Balanioe .. oo mmmemis murisnssrs i o
SELS acciied during (he i s e iiisioaimsm i
Less: Sale proceeds/ used during the year..........coimin
Closing balance
B} Current
Prepaid Expenses .o s
TGSt B TECOVBERIIE .. .. s o assrsmons sasms b s s it s a3
ACVRRCE TD SUPPHRTS™. oo covssmmrrmsssimssnsinsasisenmimisassvsineronisn:
TR s s s e e S e
*For related party balances refer Note 30,

80

March 31, 2019
¥ Lakhs

26.55
4.30
79.99

L0.00

120.84

67.34
34.22
21.57

79.99

40.48

11.96

52.44

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

31845

67.34

10,97
36.76

50.16
17.18

67.34

41,44
68.92
11.82

122.18
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NOTE 8: INVENTORIES (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
March 31, 2019

T Lakhs
FOOH AN BEVETRITER ... .o vems sumvormospevssmmnrsistremmsiin iy ssss st oeaishpusismensnivins 61.79
Storesand Operating SUPPLISS . ... ovivsrimisinssisnaisirinsssibes sirranssserassons 66.44

128.23

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

49,94

74 83

12477

NOTE 9: TRADE AND OTHER. RECEIVARLES
March 31, 2019

T Lakhs
{Unsecured)
JERT L TEG  e B e E  P e 43491
Carodit D ampeel. s i i R e R 27.63
462,54
Less : Provision for impairment (refer foot note)...................... 27.63

43491
*For related party balances refer Note. 30, _
Footnote:

i) Provision for impairment
March 31, 2019

¥ Lakhs

Opening Balanee it i s 23.32
Add: Provision during the Fear .....eiee e imssessssssrss sisrsssrsssiass 10.24
33.56

Less: Bad Debrs written off against past provisions .........ees, 5.93
Less: Reversal of provision no longer required Lo —
CORINE B EINCR . .o cmamonsipssnuscn e b e mm S A s 27.63

March 31, 2019
T Lakhs

407.99
23.32
43131
23.32
407.99

March 31, 2018
¥ Lakhs

14.43
12.09
26.52

NOTE 10: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
March 31, 2019

7 Lalkhs
e ] s s G i e R T 5.62
Balances with bank in COrrene G000MIL « . iomisimiinimmssssss inisssmssnsiian 57.03
Balances wath bank in call and short-term deposit
accounts (original maruricy less than 3 months) ..o, 49.37
112.02

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

5.83
174.17

301.51
481,51

81
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NOTE 11 : BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018

¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs

Oither Balances with banks
Call and Short-term deposit accounts® ..o 126.84 110.83
Earmar e oo s i s s R R R E 51.38 47.42
178.22 158.25

*includes FIYRs having matarity less than 12 months of INR 3.73 (PY - INR 31,46 lakhs which are under lien for issuance of
Rank Guarantees,

NOTE 12 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018

¥ Lakhs T Lakhs
Authorised Share Capital
Ordinary Shares
15,00,000 (Previous Year- 15,00,000)
Onilinaty Shareof % TSI o i ioiiamsaiism icdudag: 150L00 150.00
150.00 150.00
Issued Share Capital - -
13,000,000 | Previous Year- 13,00,000)
Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10/~ GaCh iiiiciiiiniimeissirsssrssinsinsa ieriasisnnsisn 130.00 130.00
130.00 130,00
Subscribed and Paid Up - -
13,000000 ( Previews Year- 13,000,000
Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10/- each | Befer Foot note (4) ..o 130.00 130.00
130.00 130,00

Footnotes:

(1) The company has onc class [:nfr:quir'_l.r shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each sharcholder is cligible
for one vote share held, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim Dividend. In the event of the
liquidation, the equiry shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assers of the Company after distribution
ofall preferential amounts, in proportion to the sharcholding,

{2) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
the reporting period:

Particulars Opening Balance Fresh Issue  Closing Balance
Ordinary shares
Year ended 31-03-2019
- Number of shares .o 13.00 - 13.00
- Amount [Bupees) connaniaianis 130.00 — 130,00
Year ended 31-03-2018
- Blummiber OF BHaret ..o 13.00 — 13.00
= Amonnt {Bapess) o nsimnaicinmie 130.00 — 130,00
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NOTE 12 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Contd.)

3) Details of shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% shares:
Ordinary Shares with voting rights held by Holding Company along with its Subsidiaries &
Associates Companies
Name of the Company MNo. of Shares No. of Shares
March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Holding Company

The Indian Hotels Company Limited [Refer Foomote (5)]......... 643,825 293 000
Subsidiaries of Holding Company

TIFCO Holdings Limited |Refer Footnote (5) ] — 350,825
P Hotels LImited. ..o e s s isssassssesesss csssmss s esssansnns 54,063 54.063
Northein India Horels TIMIed ...cocmmmmmmremssmsisissismmimmirmmmmmemmssmsen 150 150
Associate of Holding Company

B Lottt U i 5 B T < O S — 50 50
(4) Sharcholders holding more thnn 5% shares in dlr Company :

The Indian Hotels Company Limited. . ..o 643,825 293,000
06 o HOlHng ..oooiiimnmiinsismiismsi ik ismissssssaritssnion 49.53% 22.54%
TIPCE HolAinms: TR ... sy pirmssssssiniissrsp st i - 350,825
% of Holding ... 0.00% 26.99%

(5] MNote on Amn]gmnnnnu of TIFCO Huld.mgb Limited with The Indian Hotels Company Limited
TIFCO Holdings Limited has been amalgamated with The Indian Hotels Company Limited vide NCLT Order
dated 8th March 2018 with appointed date 1st April 2017 and the necessary effect to the same was made in the
current vear.

(6) Aggregate number and class of shares allotred as fully paid-up in previous year pursuant to contracts without
payment being received in cash, bonus shares and shares bought back for a period of § vears immediately
preceding the balance sheer dare NIL (previous year NIL),

NOTE 13: OTHER EQUITY
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
A) Reserves & Surplus

CSAPTEAl TREBETVE vuiviws niss ovinsamoniod s rasd shAsF o b G SEasa Sx SRUA AT EAR R .86 0.86
General Reserve
L L L A T ety 2.167.22 2,167.22
Less : Dividend /T on DIVIAEnd - s — —
Closing Baldaes: Lol meaanialiseana i 2.167.22 2.167.22
Retained Earnings B m—
DpenineBalanee: s 4.232.84 3 818.18
Add: Current year profits ... crrnissrsmm e mssssssmsssssssere s 87442 649 36
Tt CERRETIAEN i i R A SR (195.00) ( 195.00)
LesexFvon Dividend oo {40.10) 139.70)
Closing Retained Earnings ... 4 872.16 4 232 84
L o R R e SR e e 7,040.24 6,400.92
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NOTE 14: PROVISIONS

A) Long Term Provisions

Employee Benefit Obligation (Non-current)

Compensated absenoes .o

B) Short term provisions
Employee Benefit Obligation (Current)

Compensated abSENEEE ....ivimimrmriis o e ssesis isnies
GErattlby ibsiania i e
L e e e e e

March 31, 2019
% Lakhs

35.94

3594

8.63
11.88

20.51

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs
32.16

3lle

503
13.30

19.23

NOTE 15: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Net)

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

T Lakhs T Lakhs
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Properry, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assers ..o 697.74 648.53
e Y o T s G e s, 697.74 648.53
Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for Employvee Benefits ., 12.40 10,60
CCI- Diefined Benefit Obligations. . ... (0.82) (0.41)
Provision for doubthiil debis . ..o i i 7.69 .49
o B o o A b i 29.95 S28.05
BT T S 49.22 74.73
Net Dieferred Tax Liabilities (A-B)..oooooioiiicieieieen, 648.52 573.80
NOTE l6: BORROWINGS

March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

T Lakhs T Lakhs
Short term borrowings
Short Term Borrowings from Related Parties
SECUIEL oottt et e e e e s csseps s e nt e b e — —
o mhermred O I e T T T S 503.66 501.22
Total Short term borrowings ... 503.66 501.22
Less: Interest aocrued (included in Note 18) s s 3.66 1.22
Total BOTTOWINES ......cooovmiemrercrmramrarmrrsmssrass srascamsas nrassasasrasass S00.00 500,00

{Refer foor note below)
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NOTE 16: BORROWINGS (CONTD.)

FOOT NOTE:
Financial liabilities
Net debe reconciliation

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
T Lakhs T Lakhs
a) Net debt
Cashand cash equivalens . csiiinEnmivnamsnninmmsihii n s i 112.02 481.51
eI T OO TNE i St A i e i o L S -
Shiort Term R-::rrnwir!gs (SOH0L00) { B0, M)y
Long rerm Borrowings (Including Curvent portion).......s s s — =
Net (debt)/ Cash B Cash Equivalents ... (387.98) [18.49)
b) Other financial liability —— —
Ednclinrmed Tk st P rmenean o sk i e i iy E - -
e T e e e {3.66) (L22)
Total Other financial LIBTHY...........c.oooooiiiissimaissemmmisseesssssireessssissmm s serssasios X (3.66) (1.22)
R ToY . e e e e e s (391.64) (19.71)
TR Accrued during the Year Paid during the Year
31st Mar., 2019|315t Mar,, 2018|3 Lst Mar., 2019|315t Mar., 2018
Interest Expenses
On long term borrowings = — - =
On shiort erm borrowings 75.80 12.32 73.36 11.10
FV Changes for Derivatives (1.e, IRS) = = = =
Crther Interest costs = = = =
Total .80 1232 73,30 1110
Other Asscts Borrowings m'ﬁﬂﬁ;’chl
Particulars Cashand | Curvent Shor Toral Interest Grand
Cash Lisvestiment Term Net Aceraed Total
Equivalens Bormowings | Borrowings
Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents
as at | April 2007 175.9] - = 17591 = 175.91
Cash Flows

Inerease/{ Decrease ) in cash and cash equivalents 30,60 —{ (50000 { 194 400 - | (194.40)

Borrowings - -

Repayment - - - - - -
Foreign exchange adjusements - - - - - -
Intepest cxpense - - - - {1232} (12.32)
Interest paid - - - - L1.10 11.10
i Met debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents as
at 31 March 2018 481.51 =] (HO0L0Y (18,49} {1.22) (1971}
Net {debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents as
at st April 2018 481.51 = (5000 (1849 (1.22) (19.71)
Cash Flows
Increase| Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {360 449} - = {36045 — | {369.49)
Borrowings = = = = = =
Repayment - - - - - -
Foreign exchange adjusements - - - -
Inferest expense - - - - {7580 {75,800
Interest paid - - - - 73,36 73.36
(Met debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents
as at 31 March 2018 112.02 -| (500.00)| (387.98) (3.66) | (391.64
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NOTE 17: TRADE PAYABLES
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

T Lakhs T Lakhs
Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Footnote - 1), 1.93 5.11
Vendor Payables.c.o. G S T 511.74 360.62
Accroed expenmes and oehers: L S R 177.56 241.73
691.23 607.46

Footnotes:

(1} Theamount due to Microand Small Enterprises as defined in the *The Miceo, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
20067 has been desermined to the extent such parties have been wdentified on the basis of information collected by the
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors. Refer Note 32 for disclosures relating vo Micro and Small Enterprises.

2y Forrelared parry balances refer Nome 30,

NOTE 18: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
Current financial liabilities
Payables on Current Account dues ;
T o B BT, G J s oo e e e e e 4.38 —

13.66 2.85

Deposits from others
VRPN . i w4 A P S S AR S A 36.06 33.79
R A e A S e e R it 36.06 33.79
Interest accroed but not due on bOrFMOWINES . ..o 3.66 1.22
Creditors for capital expenditire® .. .ot me 27922 302.33
Tinclaimed dividend o nnanminsnammniiasmmimarasain 51.38 47.42
Employee related Habilities ..o 81.95 72.33
T i v o R SR R e e A e i 20,02 9.15
A T e A N Sy 485.95 469.09
Foot Note:

1y *Includes payable to MSMED Vendaors af INR Nil Lakhs (IY INR 4.98 lakhs)

2} Asum of INR 4,36 lakhs (Y TNR 3,65 lakhs ) due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund duning the year has
been transferred and theee are no dues inthis respeet which have remained unpaid as az the Balanee Sheer date,

NOTE 19: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

T Lakhs T Lakhs
Current
Advances collected from custOmMErs® .o i b i i 85.85 114.49
SERRIROY IO ivisvionniineibass s Ao s A TPV 21.58 47.76
TTOEAL ..o s e e e 107.43 162.25

*For related party balances veler Note 30,
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NOTE 20: BEVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

T Lakhs T Lakhs
Room Income, Food, Restaurants and Banguer Income o 5,687.82 4 497 82
Shop rentals ..o 48.25 38.50
Membership Foes . o vmimrmnumaismunms srimmisem s 0.25 —
I e e e i il s 231.33 186.33
s T T T e e b L T LA L T O L LS T TR S 5,967.65 4,742 65

NOTE 21: OTHER INCOME
March 31,2019  March 31, 2018

T Lakhs T Lakhs
Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost
Inrer-corporate deposits
Bieposits with banks:...iiunininisiibsammmsmimsrisi s 22.18 33.17
Deposits-with Belated Parting.. il i o mosianis — 28.90
Intérest on income tax refunds ... 2.99 1.68
R s R R R R B s e 2517 63.75
Profit on male OF 28Brts (IO .o s s irsssnrss mbrss brsms s st rsasssssebessesmsntinse 29.16 #.60
Grand Tomal ..ot 71.15 84.87

NOTE 22: FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

7 Lakhs T Lakhs
CICOINE-OUOCK i i ik s v i ¥ e o i o 49.94 45.65
A PUrTRASES Lot et e e n e e 6010.32 500.87
650.26 h46.52
Y s T Tl S O S SO SO, 61.79 49,94
Food and Beverage Consmmed o ieinmmiin i omihiiiiss 588.47 496.58

NOTE 23: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE AND PAYMENT TO CONTRACTORS
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
Salarics, Wages, Bonus et s ssnmmmsaimsyim i 594.80 542 88
Company’s Contribution to Provident and Other Funds ... 44.63 43.19
Reimbursement of Expenses on Personnel Depured
to'the: Company i siinnsnsiniiandataniaimnaniniiiagg 189.50 171.30
PayTrent DO COODRTEDONE .o a tons v i ivusbuisst s i i bbb ey s bt 95.12 56.09
Staft Welfare EXpenises (... i i st 135.73 139.22
ol i R s b L e s e T 1,059.78 952.68
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NOTE 24: OTHER OPERATING AND GENERAL EXPENSES

(i) Operating expenses consist of the following :
Linen and Room Supplies ..o
Carering SUpplies ..o
Kb SRIDEIER o imirions s in i sy b Frea Fe R A SRR RS TS 647
Fuel, Power and Light [Reter footnote (1)] i
Repaits to Butldings... ol i aibasieeas
Rorpairs 10 MAChINErY .. .vcvessarsmmmsmssrammessmsssnmyssapsmymmssanys
B eI 0 TR s s Ty
Crarden Bxpenses. s inamnmiimwa
Linen and Uniform Washing and Laundry Expenses......
Payment to Orchestra Artistes and Security Charges ...
Couest TEansPOrtarion - niims i e i
Travel Agents’ Commission L. o idivmiinbnasa
Discount to Collecting Agents .o,
ChEr CIPETARE BEDETIRES .o s i sty
Tobal o e

(ii) General expenses consist of the following :

L | TR
LacEpeis TR o s R R R R R e
Raresamd TaXes s i
K5l 1 1 o o e Mty et e ey
Fotuy i T R —————
Management Fee BXpenses .o

Reimbursable Fees Expenses- Corporate Services

and B, ClS i e ety i e s
Printing and Statlomery: S B isieea s
Passageé and Travelling ........coormmmmmssimssmeremsnrsopers s ssans

Prowvision for Doubtful Debes/ Bad debis wrirtten off
[Raher IO T oo i onmise iy nasiimims s s v s
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilivy

[Rieher fontriome TN ] nismm s s i sy
Professional Pees i s s e G
Quisourced SUPPOTt SCIVICES ....oociveiericessierarmsrmrssrnrssses
Eachenge Toss (INBEY ovummmmsrimssimmnusinsssponsssssssmnusirvesassas

Payment made to Stamtory Audirtors | Refer
BB RN i e s e

Director® Fees and Commission ... e i e
Othier BXPCNRES .oc.iiionininniissmsmssassonsssinssassssiassins passasiss

L i it e R R e i

1)

March 31, 2019
¥ Lakhs

112.37
64.74
15.04

519.25
64.94

111.65
11.83
57.66
69.41
44.53
52.30
62.35
34.95

140.99

1.362.01

16.40
41.35
4491
10.91
232,36
413.99

117.89
2291
25.15

10.24

21.28
32.21
30.41

0.09

.48
48.99
133.57
1,212.14
2,574.15

March 31, 2018
¥ Lakhs

81.89
36.71
553
41747
51.68
B7.07
9.82
57.06
61.91
45.96
42.38
3713
32.37
104,59
1,067.55

19.08
36,68
122.7%
12,67
183.42
305.64

95.06
1951
20.33

8,89

28.78
47.34
23.71

(.11

6.02
36,19
130,03

1.096.23
2.163.78
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NOTE 24: OTHER OPERATING AND GENERAL EXPENSES (Contd.)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
Footnotes:
(i) Expenditure recovered from other parties :
Fuel, Powerand TAERE 2 ori i s i 2119 14.65
LT —— 21.19 14.65

{11} The following direct expenses incurred during the vear and o the extent atmibutable to construction or
renovation of hotel buildings have been capitalised:

Etnployee Demellis exPeee i wom i i S s 99.45 107.04
Tl pomer Al WEHE s i i i e i 18.05 957
Oiher expenses (NOT) G s S i i o 13.98 848
TEHEAL s s o o o o 131.48 125.09
(i) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure - -
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act....... 21.17 2544
Amount spent during the year on:
(1)  Construction/acquisition of an a55eT e — —
{ii} On purposes other than (1) above . 21.28 28.78
{iv) Payment made to Statutory Auditors:
AE TS o o i e e A s R 5.00 3.70
B A A O o v i e S R e 1.50 1.30
Bor-onhier sertons s s i e 2.20 .80
For reimbursement of expensesi. ... i 0.78 .22
DRI iR S S o S e R 0.48 6.02

* In previous year the pavment o the auditor includes amount paid o the previous andivor of ¥ 142 lakhs,

NOTE 25: TAX DISCLOSURES
i). Income Tax recognised in other comprehensive income:

Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Current Tax
T res et o This COITETIE FOAE 1osimneivensrmivsnss seniosmmsesssimissatimissasssmmsninss 271.54 301.30
In respect of earlier vears
Besulting from reversal of provision for tax for earlier vears ........... —_ (7.74)
Other demands and tax paid for earhier vears...ciinnnnnnn., —
271.54 293.56
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year
Set off of carried forward losses (unabsorbed deducrtion u/s 35A17) — —
Orther items includes the impact on account of change in tax rates., 73.89 (157.00)

Total tax expense recognised in the current year relating to
CONTINWINE OPErAtIONS. ... s rre e e s s e ane e ranee s 345,43 136.56
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NOTE 25: TAX DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

ii) Reconciliation of tax expense with the effective tax:

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Profit before tax from continuing operations (a) .. 1,217.72 78485
Income tax rate as .1.|1FI1L.1|1|L (b)... i i 27 8204 33.06%
Caleulated taxes based on above, without any a.q.l]!.r.-inm.nt': for
deductions [(a) x (h)] ... A3R.77 259.50)
Permanent tax diFEcr:ncEs due to
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit .......... 4.96 17.84
1 S T S o L T el — (3.26)
Deferred tax reversal
Nex Impact of the change in the Tax rates™ ... _— (129.77)
Adjustment to opening-deferred Bar: it il i iais i sea 1.70 —
Prior year taxes
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss i — (7.74)
{relating to continuing operanons |
Totoal tax expense recognised in the current year. ... 345.43 136.56
Foot Note;

* The change of wmx rate from 30% o 25% was enacred on 29ch Mar'l8 and will be effective from st Apr'l8. As a resulr, the
relevant deferred rax balances have been remeasured, Deferred tax expecred mo be reversed in the year ended 315t Mar'l9 and larer,
has been measured using the effective rare which is 27.83%..

Further changes m tax rares are uxpccm.! iry futiare years bur these changes wall be enacred EL'F.]r.‘I‘l'L‘!:F I PESPECTIvE Vears and hence
are Nt r::cu:grri.-ﬂ:d n the hinancal statements.

iii} Income Tax recognised in other comprehensive Income: T Lakhs
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Deferred Tax
{a) Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation .o 0.82 0.41
0.82 041
iv) Reconciliation of deferred Tax Asset and Deferred Tax Liability ¥ Lakhs
Recognised
Recognised in other
Opening in profit | Comprehensive | Closing
March 31, 2019 Balance and loss Income | Balance
Deferred tax liabilities! assets in relation to:
Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assers 648.53 449.21 —| 697.74
Provision for Emplovee Benefits i [ 10,60 (1.80)} — | (12.400)
Provisions for Defined benefit obligations.......... 0.41 (0.41) (h82 0.82
Prawvision for doubtfil debis......oo e, [6.49) (1.209 — | (7.6
Others { Expenses disallowed to be
allowred i Fomape koo s i (38.05) 2810 — | (29.95}
Total Deferred Tax Liability ...........ccoiniiinen, 573.80 73.90 0.82 | 648.52
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NOTE 25: TAX DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

T Lakhs
Recognised
Recognised in other
Opening in profit | Comprehensive | Closing
March 31, 2018 Balance or loss Income | Balance
Deferred tax habilities/assers in relanion o
Properry, Plant and equipment &
Iripariprible ARBRES i smmsviicsenisivisnsan sussseigiaies 842,41 (193.88) —| 64853
Provision for Employee Benefits ..., (13.20) 2.60 —| (10.60)
Provisions for Defined benefic obligations ... (11.08) 11.08 41 041
Prowvision for doubfol debrs. oo (4.99) i 1.509 - (6.49)
Others (Expenses disallowed to be
allored A FOIUIEY. v csum i s minoasisniid wasmsisnnsines (82.73) 24.70 — | (58.05)
Total Deferred Tax Liability ..o 730.39 {(157.00) 0.41 573.80

NOTE 26: OPERATING LEASE

The Company has taken certain vehicle, land and immovable properties on operatng lease, These leases have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal nights. The total lease rent paid on the same 15 included under Rent
and Licence Fees forming part of Other Expenses (Refer note no 24(i). The minimum future lease rentals pavable
in respect of non-cancellable leases entered into by the Company to the extent of minimum guarantee amount are as
follows: -

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars T Lakhs T Lakhs
Mot Later thiah) O08 YEAL ..mmcmssmmimer s e 27.20 27.05
Later than one vear but not later than five vears ... 117.30 135.32
Later than five years . coueaadiui AR A R 275.40 29297
TN st o e S AT A YA o SRS 419.90 455.34

NOTE 27: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR):

a) On account of Income Tax matters in dispute:
1. In respect of other matters for which Company's appeals are pending with appellate authorities against
the order of the assessing officer T 156.97 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 241.78 Lakhs)
b) On account of other disputes in respect of:
1. Service Tax - ¥ Nil Lakhs (previous year - 9,70 Lakhs)
il Sales rax - ¥ 36,27 Lakhs (previous vear - ¥ 36.27 Lakhs)
iii, Others - ¥ 1.21 Lakhs (previous year - ¥ 1.21 Lakhs)
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NOTE 27: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR) (Contd.)

)

Others

Management is generally unable to reasonably estimate a range of possible foss for proceedings or disputes

other than those included in the estimare above, including where:

() pluntffs / parties have not claimed an amount of money damages, unless management can otherwise
determine an appropriare amoune

(ii) the proceedings are in early stages;

(iif) rhere is uncertainty as to the ourcome of pending appeals or motions or negotiations,

{iv) there are significant factual 1ssues to be resolved; and/or there are novel legal 1ssues presented.

The Company’s management does not believe, based on currently available information, that the ourcomes

of the above matters will have a marerial adverse effect on the Company's financial statements, though the

outcomes could be material o the Company's operating results for any particular period, depending, in part,

upon the operating vesults for such period. It is nor practicable for the Company to estimare the rimings of

cash flows, if any, in respect of the above.

NOTE 28: CAPITAL COMMITMENTS:

Estimared amount of conrracts n:nmining to be execured on capiral account net of capital advances and not
provided for is ¥ 254.03 Lakhs (Previous vear - T 64.82 Lakhs),

NOTE 29: SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company’s only business being hotehiering, disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under
Ind AS108 - “Operating Segments” (Ind AS-108), There 15 no geographical segment o be reported since all the
operations are undertaken in India.

NOTE 30: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
30(a) Related party transactions

92

Details of related parties:
(i) Holding Company
ia) The Indian Hotels Company Limired (IHCL)
{Tara Sons Limired has substanrial interest in The Indian Horels Company Limired)
(i} Fellow subsidiaries
KTC Horels Limited
United Hotels Linmted
Roots Corporation Limated
Piem Hotels Limired
Taj Trade and Transport Company Limired
Inditravel Limired
Morthern India Horels Limived
Tay Enterprises Limited
Luthria & Lalchandan Horel & Propernes Privaee Limired
Sk}-'d::ck I"mpl:rﬁn:'s and [kw.lupl:ni Private Limited
Sheena Investmenits Private Lirmred
ELEL Horels & Investmenrs Limited
Taj Internarional Horels (HUE ) Linnted
THOCO BY
St Jamies Court Hotels Linured
Ty International Hotels Linted
THMS LLC - 5an Francisco
ITHMS LLC - USA
PIEM International Howels (H.K ) Limived
BAHCS
United Overseas Holdings Inc,
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NOTE 30: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

{ili) Direcrors who hold the office during the year:
D Anant Narain Singh, Chairman
Mr. Robir Khosla, Non Exccatve Director
Mr. Moz Mivajiwala, Non Execunive Direceor & Independent Dhivector#
Mrs. Rukmani Devi, Mon Executive & Independent Directors
Mr. Puneer Chharwal, Non Executive Director (appointed we £ 100 May 2018)
Mr. Puncer Baman, Addinional Director 8 Independent Direcrors {appointed wee.f. 12" Sep 2018)
Me. Shriraman, Non Executive Divector 8 Independent Director# (resigned wee.£ 19" Jun 2018)
Mr. Giridhar !'i:l.l'tjl;.':.'\-":1 Additional Director (resigned weF 16" May 2018)
Mr. Rakesh Sarna, Divector {resigned we . an® Sep 2017)
Me. B.L. Passi Non Executive Director & Independent Directors {resigned weefo 217 Jul 2017)
# Independent direcrors are inchuded as related parties for the purpose of Indian Accounning Standards (Ind AS 24 Relared
Parey Transactions) only. They are not related under the Companies Aoy, 2013,
{iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP) for current and previous year:
Mr. Ashowan Anand (Chiel Executive Officer )2
Mr. Vijay Partap Shrkent (Chief Executive Otfwcer)*
Me, Sopan Kedia (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Ravi Sharma {Chicf Financial Officer) #
Ms. Vanika Mahajan (Company Secretary)
* For part of the current vear
# Por part of the previous year
{vi  Firms/ Corporation in which Directors are interested
Maharaja Prabha Narain Physical Cultoral Trost
Adirya Drairies Privace Limited
Anane Eleetric Lamp Works Privare Limited
Inlak Varamas: Developments Private Limived
{vi) Relatives of the Directors
Anamika Kumwar
ME Krnshne Priva
MK Vishnupriya
MK Hari Priva
Raglwibir Singh Gohil
Fama Raman
Puneet Raman
Shann Raman
Renu Raman
Mukra Raman
Shrileka
(vii) Subsidiary, JV & Associates of the Entities having Significant influence with whom transactions were
carried out during the current and previous year
Taj Air Limited
Tata Consultancy Services Limired
Tara Communications Limired
Taj GVE Hotels and Resorts Limiared
Taj Kerala Hotels and Resorts Limited
Cirzental Flotels Limated
Tara Teleservices Limited
Tata 51A Adrlines Limired
TC Travel and Services Limited {parr of the previous vear)
Tara Capiral Linvited
Tara International Limited
Tay Sars Aur Catering Limited
Tara Elxsi Limared
Guodrej & Bovee Mfg Co Led
{viii} Others
Hotel Taj Ganges Emploves Grarity Tiust
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BENARES HOTELS LIMITED
Forty Eighth Annual Report 2018-19

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 30: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

30 (c) Details of material transactions with related party during the vear ended 31 March, 2019 and
balances outstanding as at 31 March, 2019:

5. No. Entities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
% Lakhs T Lakhs

Material transactions during the vear

1 The Indian Hotels Company Limited (THCL)
i Management and operaning Fees .ovninsen, 413.99 305.64
ii Foofor other Sorviors. e s S e i 265.25 209.37
il Deputed staff Salaries/ Inner Circle Reimbursements ... 164.77 137.52
iv. Purchase of Capital Asser- Bagrzage Scanner ... — b.28
v Other reimbursable expense at cost ... 149.00 08.78
W Dividenid Paid .. coumosmmimmasiimm s s 96.57 43.95
Fellow Subsidiary company

2 Roots Corporation Limited
i ICDRepayment receiVed ....oomwsimmmsinbisrissaiss — 500.00
it Intcrest InCome BECEIVE. ...vi, i comiyninng siinessrin e psans — 26.71
il Paid for other services ..o R SR, 0,04 0.05

3 Unired Hotels Limited
i TR Reserdd oo s e 200000 S00.010
ii. 1CD Repayment Made ... 200,00 —
i Tnterest Bxpensc aiamiadnsstaiiiEiansiniaiiine 5422 12.32
iv Depured Staff EXPense at 08T ......ccrsomrssmmsssrmms sraessmnnnss 15.26 7.28
v. Reimbursement of expenses at cost v, 0.1 —
vi Reimbursement of Expenses recoverable o, — 0.87

+ Taj Sats Air Catering Limited
(il €5 U 500.00 —
it TCDY Repayment Mlade oo i i iiios S00.00 —
i Interest EXPense o rinmminmmssnssnsissssss s ssssnssssasne s 21.58 —
Subsidiary of Entity having significant influence (Tata Sons Limited)

B Taj Air Limited
i Tnerest Income Remeimed o coiisismm s — 2.19
it 1CD Repayment received oo — 500.00

6 KMT Remuneration - paid as reimbursement to ITHCL
i7" Ahant ARAOE '\ v essrmems oprmssr s e e s s s 3.15 39.00
i Vijay Bartap Shrikent ... 45.87 -
B ST T XA wicns s tmeka b i b et e ek A A e 17.74 11.13
i VR VBN e S 10.31 8.62
v Ry Shuaenved oo e e R — 349



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
NOTE 30: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

5. No. Entties March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Balances outstanding at the end of the year:
1 The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL)
i Management and operating fees payable . 202 .69 152.02
i Recetvable on Current account dues .o, 67.91 53.72
il T Thade Paelivables oo anamiianisnse s e s 4.16 —
Iv Advance Srom CUSMOIMEE . i i v wviaris bbb v bamrass 0.33 —
2 United Hotels Limited
i Borrowings - Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) .. 500.00 500,00
it Interest Expense payable ... 3.66 1.22
iii Payable on Corrent account dues ... 0.47 (.60
5 Payables to Directors & Entities in which Directors are related
i Dr-Anane Naradan Singh cininininsaa 5.86 6.27
i Bukmani Devi Singh ..ooocvveesmmimmeimsnersrssrererem sesrarssens .05 0.14
il Maharagja Prabhu Naraian Physical Cultural trust ... 122 1.1l
iv Adirya Dairies Private Limidted ... mmmmesens 2.44 2.62
v Ananta Elecrrical Lamp Works Limited ..o 1.46 1.31

NOTE 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a}) The Company has recognised the following expenses as defined contribution plan under the
head “Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds”{net of recoveries) :

March 31, 2019

Provident Fund ..o sssmeserrenreees

T Lakhs
35.29

(b) The Company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows :-

Funded : Post Retirement Gmru'ir}r

(¢) Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity) As per Actuarial Valuation on March 31, 2019 :-
Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet and movement in net liability

March 31, 2019

(i)

(ii)

T Lakhs

Present Value of Funded Obligations .......oommmeme. 186.95

Fair Vadoe of Thin ASSEIE i i e spcsisa 175.07

Net (asser) / Liability - Corrent ... 11.88
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss

March 31, 2019

T Lakhs

R SErcE et L e e 14.58

Interest on Net Defined Benefit Liability ..o, 0.25

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

32.38

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

180.72

16742

13.30

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

12.81

1.97

14.78




BENARES HOTELS LIMITED

Forty Eighth Annual Report 2018-19

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

(iii) Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Changes in financial assumptions .............coiin
Changes in demographic assumptions ..................
Experience Adjusmments ...
Actual return on plan assets less interest

OR[N BRBETE s oirvn amensvinnmnnmsiinmasam s s s s

B
Reconciliation of Net Liability/ Asset

Opening Ner Benefir Liability.. .o
Expense charged to profit and loss ...
Amount recognized outside profit and loss ...
Employer Contribumion ...t

Closing Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset).,
Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefir Obligation .......cocoveeeee
CIPEERE SEEVIDE OB s
DBt Sermlos OB e v ikt vesant i
lnterest on defined benefit obligation ...
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) ansing trom change

in financial assUMPLIONS ........o.convmmemesrinensssssnnasaes
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) arising on account of
dmmgmphiu: ARTINPEONG. .o ronsrrsssimr e passs s s
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) arising on account of ...

eXperienice AdMBIMIENES iusmmarsmemsmmisaisrivismrasrnaran
Liabilides assumed/ (settled)™ ..os v
Closing Defined Benefir Obligation ...

*On account of business combination or inter group transfer

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets ...
Emplover Contmibution ...
Interest on plan assels .o
Re-measurements due to Actual remurn on

plan 285615 Jeus IITETEET iiiveeiiovonrsnmsaon ssnesssnibnsssiins
Banefits Pald s nnaninsitimiiien i
Liabilities assumed [ (setthed)® i,

Closing Fair Value of Plan ASSets ....o.ovvvivimiinian

*On account of business combination or inter groap mansfer

March 31, 2019
¥ Lakhs

(0.08)
(4.97)

2.10
(2.95)

March 31, 2019
T Lakhs

13.30

14.83

(2.95)

(13.30)

11.88

March 31, 2019
T Lakhs

180.72

14.58

12.54

(0.08)
(4.97)
(19.81)
3.97
186.95

March 31, 2019
T Lakhs

167.42

13.30

12,29

(2.10)
(19.81)
3.97

175.07

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

421

3.34

7.75

(8.36)
(1.48)

March 31, 2018
2 Lakhs

37.03

14.78

(1.458)

(37.03)

13.31

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

163.94

12.81

11.20

(4.22)

3.34
7.75
(23.97)
9.57
180.72

March 31, 2018
T Lakhs

126.91

37.03

923

3.36
(23.97)
9.87
167.42

a7



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)
(vii) Description of Plan Assets

March 31, 2019
Government of India Securines .. 0%
Corporate Bonds s, 0%
Special Deposit SCHeme ........coovemeamrsmsmsnsnrmmsasses 5%
B cicvensim s stsmsis s 0%
Ochirs - Bank FDR: v coviemsimmissssssimms i Q5%
Caraml AL i R i i e s 100,

(viii) Actuarial Assumptions

March 31, 2019

EHECONNE FADE {Pile] s srusissmsssmismmmimnsn i sovenson

7.55%

Salary Escalation Bate (Paa.) i Staff- 5.00%
Executive- 4.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of Indian government securities as ar the balance sheer dare
tor the estimated term of the obligations, Further, Mortality has been assumed as per the published notes under the

Indian Assured Lives Mortalicy {2006-08) Lt table Change in Benefit Obligation,

(ix) Maturity Profile

Maturity Profile Amount in ¥ lakhs
Expecred benehits foryear L. . i 7.26
Expected benefisforyear D il 18.17
Expected benefits foryeard ... cneeenrnsen 27.62
Expecied benets for year 4 .....memimmcsmesiasasns 718
Expected benefits for yeard ... 44.30
Expected benefits for year 6 ..o innrenaas 21.33
Expected benefitsfor year 7 il 2145
Expected benefits foryear 8 ... 13.24
Expecred benefits foryear? ..oviiniicsiniins 32.18
Expected benefits for vear 10 & above .ovvvinniiinian 170,80

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 7.31 vears,

(x) Effect of Change in Key Assumptions
Year Ended 31st March 2019

March 31, 2018
(0%

0%

5%

(%

95%

100%

March 31, 2018
7.05%

Staff- 5.00%
Execurive- 4.00%

Particulars Discount Rate Salary Escalation Rate
Impact of increase in 50 bpson DBO i —3.55% 3.80%
Impactof decrease in 50 bps on DBO ... 3.76% —3.67%

The expected contribution for the next year is € 20 lakhs.

The esnmate of future salary increases, considered in actuarnial valuaton, takes into account inflation, senioricy,
promations and other relevant factors. The above information has been certified by the actuary and has been relied

upon by the Auditors.
Information disclosed above 1s to the extent provided by actuary.

Exposure to Risks:

These plans rypically expose the Company ro acruarial risks such as: interest rare risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

NOTE 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

Investment Risk: Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefic plan liabiliry is calculared using a
discount rate which is determined by reference to government securnity vields prevailing as ar the Balance Sheet dare. If
the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will creare a plan deficie, The current plan has made investments in special
deposit schemes of banks & FDRs. Due to the long-term nature of the plan habilines, the Trustees of the Fund
consider itappropriate to invest funds in the bank FDRs.

Interest risk: A decrease in the Government Securities | G-Sec Bonds) interest rare will increase the plan liabiliry,
Longevity risk: The presentvalue of the defined benefic plan hability 1s calculated by reference to the bestestimate of
the mortality of plan participants during their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan's liabilicy:

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liabiliry is calculared by reference to the furure salaries of
plan participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

Other Regulatory matters

NOTE 32: DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND
MEDIUM ENTERPREISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

Particulars 31st March 2019 | 31st, March 2018
(i) DPrincipal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as ar the
cend of the accounting vear 1.93 10.0%

(it} Interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as ar
the end of the accounting vear — —

{iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the
pavment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day — —

(iv) The amount of interest due & payvable for the vear — -

(v} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ar
the end of the accounting vear = e

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succecding vear, until such dare when the interest dues as above
are actually paid

Dues o Micro and Small Enterprises have been derermined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management, This has been relied upon by the auditors,

NOTE 33: EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Earnings Per Share is calculated in accordance with Ind AS 33 — “Earnings Per Share’ prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
T Lakhs T Lakhs
Prohit) {1ess) AEETAX [T) ocnmarcns rrmssnmtrssesmasmsnsinss srsmssms sussragsmass 872.29 64829
Number of Ordinary (Equity) Shares in lakhs ..o 13 13
Weighred Average Number of Ordinary ( Equity) Shares in lakhs:
Considered in caleulation of Basic EPS L. i 13 13
Considered in caleulation of Diluted EPS .oiiiiiiisiiseas o 13 13
Face Value per Ordinary (Equity) Share (%) ovvvvnnnmnn. 10 10
Earnings Per Share (T):
Basic 67.10 49 87
Diluted 67.10 49 87
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 34: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis
on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asser, financial liabiliry and
equiry instrument are disclosed,

a. Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories under the most relevant method 1.e. amortised cost
15 as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2013
T Lakhs T Lakhs
Financial assets:
Cashand cash egivRIBES: o i s i 112.02 481.51
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents ... 178.22 158.25
Trade Brcetvables o csaiianmiiin i s e 43491 407.99
s B I I g o s e s S S R — —
Othier finanicial assets - MWon Current™. i ireenrsrrrrssissirsaivaos 26.22 18.95
Oxcher financial assers = CUrTeN™ o eeeenerereerrerrsnmssss e rerens e 128.48 115.76
D e S S T S 879.85 1,182.46
Financial liabilities:
BOPRPWINES o i i R 500.00 MO0
Trade Payables: cininaiinnmimimmmiiimmii i s i 691.23 607.46
Other financial habilities - Non Currene® .o ieis s e — -
Oher financial liabilities - CUummemt™® .o i s sisssiaessis s 485.95 469,09
bl o e e R B R e S R 1.677.18 1.576.55

Fair value of Financial Instruments measured at amortised cost :
The management considers that the carrying amount of assets and labilities recognised at amaortised cost in financial
starements is approximare to their Far value,

NOTE 35: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(A) Financial Risk Management
The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company's nsk management framework.  The Company's risk management policies are
established to idenrify and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to ser appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence o limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The
Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Commitree is assisted in its
oversight role by internal audit ream. Internal audit team undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the resules of which are reported to the audit committee.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 35: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd.)

Market risk

Marker risk is the risk thar the fair value or furure cash flows of a financial instrument will flucruate because
of changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in
the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other marker changes.

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the risk thar a counter party will not meer is obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions and other financial imstruments. Dunng the vear, followmg provisions for doubrtul
debrs has been made:

Particulars March 31, 20019 March 31, 2018

¥ Lakhs T Lakhs
Opening provision for doubtful debts ... 23.32 14.43
Add: Provision made during the vear.. e s e 10.24 12.09
Less: Credic |mpaucd Diebirs written ::ﬂ' abatnsr past [‘I‘l‘ﬂ\.-lﬁ]ﬂl'lq ........ 5.93 —
Less: Reversal of provision no longer required ..o —_ 3.19
Closing provision for doubtful debts ... 27.63 23.32

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer 15 assessed based on a eredit ranng scorecard and ndividual
credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Ourstanding customer receivables are regularly
maonirored.,

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs

Mo of Customers who owed more than 10% of the Total receivables — —

Contribution of Customers in owing mere than

1% of Tomal tecelvaBIBS s e e i e e — —

The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which
do not contain a significant financing component. The application of simplified approach does not requires the
company to track changes in credir risk, rather it recognises impairment loss allowance based on life time expecred
credit loss ar each balance sheet dare, since irs initial recognition.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company
does not hold collateral as security. The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables
as low,

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and finaneial institutions is managed by the Company's finance department in
accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and
within credit limits assigned to cach counterparty. Counterparty credic limirs are reviewed by the Company’s
management on an annual basis, and may be updared throughout the vear. The limits are ser to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make pavments.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 35: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd.)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the nsk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidiry
risk management is to maintain sufficient iquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
Also, The company 15 having short term borrowings in form of inter corporate deposits renewing ar a period of 90

days.

Inter Corporate Deposits Intercst rate % Due in 1st year
¥ Lakhs T Lakhs

Year ended 31 March, 2019

Limited Hiotels: Lammibed oo s i st e ad i ns i O 5010

NI st a e s e R e Py R ST T A et e 500

Year enided- 3T March. 2018 oo i s i i s

Ulnibed - Erotels Trmite] ' oo oo i i e i o Gy 500

TOEAL Lottt et b e b b e e b b b 500

The table below summarises the maturity pmﬂ]u ot the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments,

? Lakhs
Contractual Maturity of Financial Liabilities:; Duein 1st | Due in 2nd | Due in 3rd to Total
vear ath vear

Year ended 31 March 2019

Borrowings (for renewal ) S00.00 — — S00.00
Trade and other payables 691.23 — — 691.23
Orher financial labilites - Non Current

Orcher financial habilines - Current 485.95 — — 48595
Year ended 31 March 2018

Borrowings {for renewal ) S00.00 — - S00.00
Trade and other payables 607 46 — G607 .46
Onher financial liabilivies - Non Current — — — —
Orher financial liabilices - Currenc 469049 - - 469.09

NOTE 36: GUARANTEES GIVEN

Bank Guarantees of ¥ 3.00 lakhs (PY - T 29.22 lakhs) have been given by the company to various government
authorities 8 other parties. These guarantees were issued against the Fived Deposits of T 3.73 lakhs made with the

bank.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

NOTE 37: DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO IND AS 115

With effect from 1 April 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
which introduces a new ﬂ'l.-'c-STEP approach to mn:-.b:uring and rECOgNIsing revenuc from contracts with customers,
Under Ind AS 115, revenue 15 recognised ar an amount that retlects the consideration to which an enoity expects
to be enadtled in exchange for services to a customer.

The Company has opted for the modified retrospective application permitred by Ind AS 115 upon adopnon of
new standard. Accordingly, the standard has been applied for the vear ended 31se March 2019 only (Le. the
initial application period). Modified retrospective application also requires the recognition of cumulative impact
of adoption of Ind AS 115 on all conrracts as av st April 2018 ("wansition date') in equity and the impact on
such transition dare is not marterial.

Also the Company has elected to use the pracrical expedient thar there is no financing component involved when
the credir period offered to customers is less than 12 months. (Also refer Credir Risk)

Prior to adoption of IND AS 115, the Company’s revenue was primarily comprised of Revenue from Horel
operations, shop rentals and membership fees income. The recognition of these revenue streams is largely
unchanged by INID AS 115,

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
T Lakhs T Lakhs

1. Contract with customers
Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, ner of indirecr taxes in its
statement of Trofit and loss,

Income from operations

a) Room Income, Food & Beverages and Banquers ... 5,687.82 4 497 .82

b} .‘ihnp e 1 [ R 48.25 58.50

Y TR oo it o B R T o W b 197.37 16912

Total Income from OPerations.. ... i vt sain i 5.933.44 4 72544

Other operating revenue

a)  EXport INCentive ..o 34.21 17.18

B OEREE PEVEIUE oiareeeresvismsrsress s v rssrasmesessran e s ssaes vasrmsns nes — .04
34.21 17.21

Total Revenue from operations .........ccoovvnmenmismnimemssin 5,967.65 4.742.65

2 Impairment losses
recognised on rade receivable during the year: . 4.31 589

3 Disaggregate Revenue
The following table presents company revenue disaggregated by tvpe of revenue stream and by reportable
segment ( Refer Note 29 for Segment Reporning ):
Revenue based on geography
DR e e s e T e e e S 5,967.65 4,742.65
T R e e e o e S A L — —

Revenue based on product and services

2] Room IO i s b s e e B et b 2.904.99 245313
b} Food & Beverages and Banquehs i i e i 2,782.83 204469
) S R G S e R 48.25 S8.50
d}  Others revenue from contract With CUSTOMCES oevemeeeev e e 197.37 169.12
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Other operating revenue
2) BXpUrt THCERIIE. . oy e resmrmssrsoeppesstons snsssaasps o mssns mepesennss prnsss 34.21 1718
b e DEMeaE v s i e e e A —_ 0.04

4 The Company derives its revenue from the mransfer of goods and services over ome in its major service lines. This
15 consistent with the revenue mformation thar is disclosed for each reportable segment under Ind AS 108,
{ Refer Note 29 for Segment Disclosure ).

5 Contract balances

The following tables present information about trade receivables, contract assers, and deferred revenue:

e o b T 434.91 407.99
DElETe PRI oo onsmmmmrvmmuvminnspiscn oo e — —
Kibvarvee ol tioms . R ARG, 85.85 114.49
'ANCE | T M

Refer Note No. 3 on significant accounting policies for details of performance obligation and revenue
FECOEMITION.

1.1 . T | e e D R S 114.49 129.84
AL IVIREEI . o s inisntiossis s st s st st st 85.85 114.49
Analysed as:

CRMTERE i iissimoni e oS S T B5.85 114.49
MONCCUITRRE iiisiiaiiiismiiiminicimmsebririvtsssiaiassdassiasontorspisesstassionnston = —

Revenue recognised during the period tharwas included in the opening balance of Customer Advances amounted
to INR 11449 Lakhs (PY - TNR 129,84 Lakhs).

NOTE 38;
There are no financial habilices and assers that are set off as at 31se March 2019 and 31se March 2018.

NOTE 39: DIVIDENDS

Dividends paid duning fiscal 2019 represent an amount of ¥ 195 Lakhs @ T 15/~ per equity share towards dividend
for fiscal 2018. Dividends paid during fiscal 2018 represent an amount of T 195 Lakhs @ ¥ 15/- per equity share
rowards dividend for fiscal 2017,

The dividends declared by Benares Horels Limited are in Indian Rupees and are based on the profits available for
distribution as reported in the statutory financial statements of Benares Hotels Limited, Subsequent to March 31,
2019, the Board of Directors of Benares Hotels Limited have proposed a dividend of T 195 Lakhs (T 15 per share) in
respect of fiscal 2019, The proposal is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and if
approved, would result in a cash outflow of approximately ¥ 235,10 Lakhs, inclusive of corporate dividend tax of
T40.10 Lakhs. Remitrance of dividend within India is exempt from tax in the hands of sharcholders.
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NOTE 40: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity
and support the growth of the company. The company determines the capiral requirement based on annual operating
plan and long-term and orher straregic investment plans. The funding requirements are mer through equiry and
operating cash flows generated.

The Company has borrowings of ¥ 500,00 lakhs (previous vear: ¥ 500,00 lakhs) as ar the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the Company has 0.07 gearing ratio ( Borrowings/ Total Equity ) as at 31- Mar-2019 and 0.07 as
at 31- March -20138.

NOTE 41:

The disclosure required to be made in terms of Schedule V of SEBI ( Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
2015 is notapplicable to the company:.

As per our Report of even dare attached For and on behalf of the Board

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Dr. Anant Marain Singh Rohit Khosla
Chartered Accounrants Chairman Diirector

Firm Regseration No, 03%005/5200018 1IN DOL14728 DN (7163135

R. Surivanarayanan Vijay Partap Shrikent Sopan Kedia

Partner Chiet Execurive Officer Chief Financial Officer
{ Membership Nod: 201402) . ,

Date : 24th April, 2019 Yanika Mahsjan Date : 24th April, 2019

[:1 JI'I1|'!I.1I1 }" Ht"l..'l'l‘."l‘.'ln'

Place: Mumibai Place: Mumbai
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BENARES HOTELS LIMITED
Corporate ldentification Mo. (CIN) L553101UP1571PLCOD3480
Registered Office: Nadesar Palace Compound, Varanasi 221 002

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2003 and Rule 1%3) of the Companies iManagement and Adrministration} Rules, 2014]
LT Lol = T PP
R e A R o o e e L T S S R S S s e S R S R S
| O
Rl N IR T NG T e s e T Ry e e s

lWe, being the member is) of Benares Hotals Limited, holding........................ shares hereby appoint

1.

B I, vt ki e o R £ S E=malldd i ...t s

B B s e e e L D et )
N N o S as B SRR R R A TR R T R BRs BRI R e e e e , or failing him/her
£ R SR ST W sy 1 B ———. e S

B R < = (141~ Mt =T

TN o 1 - L

T Dl im0 B K B e T LT T T T e LT T T Lo o b oo

as myfour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on myfour behalf at the Forty Eighth Annual General Meeting of
the Company, to be held on Friday, August 20, 2012 at 3,00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at Nadesar Palace
Compound, Varanasi 221002 and at any adjournment thereaf in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below

Please put a (") in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective resolutions. If you leave the 'For' or ‘Against’
column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she thinks appropriate.

Item z Type of
Ne. Resalution Resolution
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2019, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors therson Crdinary
To declare a dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019, Ordinary
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rohit Khosla (DIN 07 163135), who retires by rotation and Is
ehgible for reappointment. Ordinary
Appointment of Mr. Puneet Raman as an Independent Director of the Carmpany. Crdinary
Re- Appointrment of Mrs. Rukmani Devi as an Independent Director, Speecial

SGNEE e B o | | 2019
Afim
. Reverue
Signatlre of MEmBer_........coen e s mrs e e e s eres s ns sages e pees Stavri
Signature af Prosy Molders) e s

Maote: This farm of praxy in order ta be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Reqistered Office of the Company at Nadesar
Palace Compound, Varanasi 221002, not iess than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting






Taj Nadesar Palace, Varanasi




BENARES HOTELS LIMITED
Nadesar Palace Compound, Varanasi - 221 002
www.benareshotelslimited.com



